SR
B o e R L
Al

iy

% =
: 4

&)
=M

it 3
wééi%'}*ﬁ”‘ T

=

e
e i%?“ﬁ Rl A

“\¢
X




9]74_.!( PROPERTY OF

W E:_ru_“?) MAIMNZE I3 TOMICaL SO8IE

NARRAGUAGUS  VALLEY

- "' . ’I
Y 3

EARLY SETTLEMENT AND SELE LERS

\ SOME)AFQOUN [ 'OF ITi A

. ¥ t .. - “ \ A “"} \' -

‘:
sa' )

BY J& A\QMILLIREN \8\3—“\

\av v\{"‘\’ " Q"‘

LR [, V5 .\\ i\

COVERS

TOWNS OF STEUBEN, MILBRIDGE, HARRINGTON
AND CHERRYFIELD

MACHIAS, MAINE, 1855
REPRINTED
A, J. HUSTON, PORTLAND, MAINE

= 1910

ORANGE CQ1INTY CALIFORNIA
GENEALOGICAL SOCIETY

L]






THE NARRAGUAGUS VALLEY:

SOME ACCOUNT OF ITS
EARLY SETTLEMENT AND SETTLERS

By J. A. MILLIKEN

§

A glance at the map of the western part of Washington
County will show that any treatment of the early settlement
upon the Narraguagus River, necessarily involves more or less
of the histories of Steuben, Milbridge, Harrington and Cherry-
field.

Steuben was formerly township “No. 4, East of Union
River,” and No. 5 comprised the territory now included in the
towns of Milbridge and Harrington. The town of Cherryfield
is composed of No. 11, Middle Division, Brigham Purchase,
and of the northeastern part of what was formerly Steuben.
All that part of Cherryfield lying south of the mills on the first
or lower dam was, prior to 1826, a part of Steuben, and was
called Narraguagus to distinguish it from the settlement in the
southwestern part, which was called “Head of the Bay,” and
the postoffice at Cherryfield was called “Narraguagus” until
within some twenty-five years past. What is now the flourishing
town of Milbridge was a part of Harrington until 1848. Har-
rington (No. 5) was incorporated as a town in 1791, Steuben
(No. 4) in 1795, Cherryfield (No. 11) in 1816, and the northeast



THE NARRAGUAGUS VALLEY.

part of Steuben was annexed to Cherryfield in 1826. I find that
prior to the incorporation of Harrington, that township and No.
11, Cherryfield, held their plantation meetings and kept their
records as one organization. At that time most of the settlers
in Harrington lived at Mill River, where the earliest settlement
was made. There was no settlement at what is now Harrington
village until several years later.

I have found it impossible to ascertain the date of the very
earliest settlement upon the river, or the name of the man or men
who felled the first tree and erected the first rude dwelling.
There is a tradition that a man named Sprague had a home on
the point below the creek near the house of the late David Small,
and it is said that signs and relics of his forge are still to be
found there.

The earliest settlers, whose coming can be fixed by any
well authenticated tradition, were Jabez Dorman, John Dens-
more, Ichabod Willey and Samuel Colson. They came at or
about the same time, 1757. Dorman came from Kennebunk.
Willey and Densmore, and probably Colson, came frem New
Hampshire. Willey was English born, or born soon after his
parents came over. His wife, Elizabeth Bumford, was born in
Londonderry, Ireland. He settled on the side of the hill near
where Marshall Guptill now lives. His sons were William,
Ichabod, John, Charles and James. His daughters, Susan married
Samuel Colson, Elizabeth married John Jordan, Molly married
Eben Downs, Annie married Allen Downs, Abigail married
Wm. White and Jane married Samuel Davis. Jane, the youngest,
survived all her brothers and sisters and died about 1882 at the
age of 96 years. All the Willeys in all the region round about,
and they are not few, are the descendants of this Ichabod and
Elizabeth (Bumford) Willey. Mr. Willey was a millwright
by trade and built the first mill on the Narraguagus River. Old
people remember him as a large man of great strength and en-
durance, though not so strong as he sometimes felt when a little
elated.

William, the oldest son of Ichabod, married Elizabeth Pink-
ham. Their children were, Samuel, William, Robert P.; Richard
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P. Polly m. John Door, Betsey m. Robert Leighton and
m. Loring Wilson.

Ichabod, Jr., married Sally Fernald. Children, Abraham,
John J., Sabin P. Abigail m. Orrin Hall, Lydia m. Robert Pinlk-
ham, and Sally m. Major Dinsmore.

John, third son of Ichabod, married Fanny Guptill. Chil-
dren, Wm. G., Joseph A., Amasa P. Maria m. Samuel Colson,
Olive m. J. B. White, Jane m. Oliver Willey, and Elvira.

Charles, fourth son of Ichabod, married IHannah Guptill.
Children, Ichabod, Charles B., Oliver and Orrin, twins, Daniel,
Andrew and Alvin B. Susan m. Wm. Carlton, Frances m. 1
E. F. Jacobs, and 2 D. E. Nickels, Nancy m. Wm. Carlton and
Eliza m. Bridgham.

Samuel Colson settled on the hill where Nathan C. Tucker
now lives. His sons were John, who went to Robbinston while
young, Samuel, Alexander, Gerrish, Timothy, James and Moses.
His daughters, Sarah m. 1 Ben Ingersoll, 2 Thomas Cushing,
Molly m. John Anderson, Lydia m. Tenney, Fanny m.
John Brady. It is safe to affirm that all the Colsons in the
western part of the county are the direct descendants of Samuel
Colson, named above.

Jabez Dorman married Mary Godfrey and settled on the lot
now occupied by Hannibal Curtis, just west of the Lynch hill,
so called, and the lot continued in the possession of his descend-
ants, male or female, until within a few years. His children
- were Nathaniel—died at sea a young man. Ephraim m. Nabby
Wilson, Benjamin m. Weston, Samuel m. Ruth Kingsley,
Hannah m. Benjamin Sanborn, Olive m. Marshall Hill, Mary
m. Benjamin Wakefield, Lucy m. Elias Foster (Cooper), Hilda
m. Carlaw and Annie m. Wm. Lynch. While the de-
scendants of the daughters are quite numerous in the county,
but very few of the name remain.

John Densmore—now called Dinsmore—settled on the lot
next south of the Dorman lot, where the widow of G. I, Dins-
more now lives. The Dinsmores of Lubec, Trescott and Whit-
ing, as well as all in this vicinity, are descendants of John Dens-
more., It may be well to remark in passing that in the early
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days, the name was sometimes called Denbo, and there is at
least one family in Lubec who call themselves Denbo, but are
descendants of the same John Densmore.

John Lawrence must have been one of the very early set-
tlers on the river. Ie was by birth an Englishman. His wife
is said to have been a Townley. They came here from North
Yarmouth in this State, and settled at what we call the upper
corner, very near where the Alfred Small house is. They had
but one child; his name was John. He was a small child when
his parents came here. He grew to man’s estate and married
Jenny Rolfe, whose parents lived in the Intervale District near
where the schoolhouse now stands. John and his young wife
settled on the lot now in possession of Gilbert Sproul and there
raised a large family of sons and daughters. The sons were
John m. Wilson, Aaron m. Lucy Leighton, Daniel m.
a Sumner, Larkin m. a Kingsley, William m. Reynolds,
James P. m. 1 Amy Patten, 2 an Alline, 3 Matilda Jones, and
Alpheus. His daughters were Polly m. Alex Leighton, Jane m.
Wm. Campbell, Sally m. Amos G. Guptill, Nancy m. Otis Tucker
and Betsey m. George Guptill. Of all these, Nancy Tucker and
Betsey Guptill, are the only survivors. But the descendants of
the sons and daughters are very numerous and are to be found
all the way from St. John to San. Francisco, and each one per-
fectly ready and willing to receive his or her distributive share of
the great Lawrence Townley estate that has waited so long for
a claimant.

In 1762, John Small came from Cape Elizabeth and settled
on the lot below the creek, near the Methodist meeting-house in
Milbridge. His son Elisha, afterward so well known as Deacon
Small, was then four or five years old. He was the oldest son
by a second wife. He had several older half-brothers. One of
these, Jonathan Small, took up the lot next south of the Dea.
Small lot, the same afterwards owned by Joseph Tucker. The
sons of Jonathan were John, Joseph, Timothy, Daniel and James.

The sons of John were John, Larkin, David, Alfred and
William.
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The sons of Joseph were John, who was drowned at the
age of 14 in the river near the island now occupied by Mrs.
Driscoll, and Joseph, father of Joseph now living in Steuben.
His daughters were Hannah m. Barna Strout, Elizabeth, Clar-
issa m. Wm. Nickels and Jane m. Nathaniel Strout.

The sons of Timothy were James and Alexander, and his
daughter Eliza m. Allen Archer, Sophia m. Thomas Guptill and
Priscilla m. Barna Stevens.

Daniel, the fourth son of Jonathan, m. a daughter of Friend
Coffin, so called. Their sons were Samuel m. Betsey Coffin,
Thomas m. Bethia Strout, Isaac m. Assenath White, Levi m. 1
Drisko, 2 a Frankland, and James m. a Wakefield, and there
were daughters, Mrs. James Wakefield, Mrs. Daniel Buzzell and
Mrs. Eli Dinsmore.

James, the youngest son of Jonathan, m. Priscilla Worcester
of Columbia. Their sons, Isaac m. Margaret Spaulding, Aaron
T. m. a Plummer, Amaziah m. a Leighton, Stimson m. Pamelia
Burnham, Simon G. m. Austin and James A. m. Fanny
Wallace, and their daughters, Clarissa m. S. O. Madden, Betsey
m. Levi Leighton, Mary Jane m. Moses Austin, and Martha m.
John Noyes.

Deacon Elisha Small m. Priscilla Strout. Their children
were Benjamin m. Syrene Wakefield, Joseph m. Betsey Tucker,
Elisha, Jr., m. Nancy Ward, William m. Lydia Godfrey, Isaac
married Irene Leighton, Daniel m. Nancy Coffin, Polly m. Isaiah
Leighton, Sally m. Mark Wilson.

Ebenezer Small, a younger brother of Dea. Elisha, m. Nabby
Leighton. Their children were Deborah m. James Colson, Sam-
uel m. Molly Colson, Thomas m. Deborah Tucker, Lydia m.
James Gross, Nabby m. Samuel Tuttle of Perry, John married
at Lubec and Ff:_rn_(;v—t:?i'_tz)_liré—iéport. Eben married a Harriman
at Bucksport, Peggy m. James Cates, Sally m. Timothy Cates,
both at Lubec or vicinity, and Anna m. James Leighton.

About the time that John Small came and settled on the
river, as before stated, came also Joseph Strout, better known
in his day as Deacon Strout. He settled at Back Bay, on what
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was then called Granny’s Neck, said now to be known as Pink-
ham’s Island, the action of the sea having separated it from the
main land. Dea. Small’s wife, Priscilla, was his daughter. Wm.
Ray, who came from England when a small boy, married an older
sister of Mrs. Dea. Small, and became the common ancestor of
all the Rays of Milbridge and Harrington and those who have
gone out from these towns. The descendants of this Deacon
Joseph Strout are very numerous in Milbridge and Harrington,
especially in the districts of Back Bay, Mill River and Oak
Point. But there is another family, or race of Strouts, in Mil-
bridge and Cherryfield not known to be related to these descend-
ants of Dea. Joseph Strout.

\ Jeremiah Strout came from Cape Elizabeth and took up
the \lot on the east side of the river, now in the possession of
James, George and Tobias Strout. At what time he came is
not now known, but I find his name in Lothrop Lewis’s list
of early settlers prior to 1783. His sons were Jeremiah and
Nathaniel, twins, born in 1765. Nathaniel died at 18 years of
age; Jeremiah never married, and died an old man. Joseph m.
Annie Lovett, Elisha m. Rebecca Leighton, and 2d Anna Ricker,
Barna m. Hannah Small. His daughters, Priscilla m. Isaiah
Nash, and Polly m. Ebenezer Nash.

The sons of Joseph were Nathaniel, J. Woodbury and
Barna; daughters, Mrs. Thomas Small and Mrs. Larkin Small.

The sons of Ehsha—Leonard Jason, James, George and
Tobias.

The son of Barna—]John.

Priscilla, who was the third wife of Isaiah Nash, was the
mother of Nathaniel, Adkins and Oliver Nash, and of Hadassa,
widow of David Wass.

Polly, the wife of Ebenezer Nash, was the mother of Elisha
S, Stillman W., Shaw and Francis Nash.

Joseph Wa][ace—better known in his day as Major Wallace
—and his brother Benj jamin came from Beverly, Mass., some time
about 1760. Major Wallace settled on the east side o{ the river
on the road to Fickett Point, near where the late Dea. Wm.. Wal-
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lace lived. He was a man of some means, owned and run a vessel
and had interest in mills in Cherryfield. He had a son, Joseph,
Jr., who was known as Colonel Wallace; he married a Smith of
Machias. Among his descendants are the families of John T.
Wallace, Louis Wallace, William and Charles and George Wal-
lace, and a daughter of his married Stephen Bowles, late of
Boston.

Benjamin, the brother of Major Joseph Wallace, settled on
the lot on the east side of the river, now occupied by Capt. Moses
Wallace.

James Wallace, the son of Benjamin, settled upon a lot on
the west side of the river, nearly down to the lower steamboat
wharf. His sons were James, John T. 2nd, and Ambrose, and
daughters, Mrs. Joseph Cates, Mrs. Jesse Brown, Mrs. Joseph
Brown, Mrs. Eli Foster, and Mrs. Wm. Godfrey.

Jesse Brown and David Brown, brothers, were early settlers,
and have left many descendants. They came from Falmouth—
now Portland. Jesse settled on the east side, near where Fickett’s
wharf now is. David took up the lot now in possession of John
Hutchings. I have not been able to get such information as
would justify me in attempting to give the genealogy of the
different families of Browns of Milbridge and vicinity at this
time. But I think it is safe to assume that they are all of the
seced of Jesse and David.

Among the early colonists were two young Englishmen—
Josiah and Samuel Tucker. Samuel settled in Columbia, and
from him are descended all of the name in that vicinity. Capt.
Josiah Tucker built a house and lived on the hill east of Samuel
Ray’s residence in Cherryfield. Some of the very oldest people
living remember of having attended school in one room of his
house.

The children of Capt. Josiah were, Josiah m. a Worcester,
Robert m. Elizabeth Jordan, William m. a Small, John (some-
times called the Admiral) m. widow Harrington, and Theodore.
Daughters, Betsey m. Daniel Small, Lubec; Dorcas m. Joseph
Small, Polly m. David E. Corliss, and Susan m. a Sparks. A third
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brother of Josiah and Samuel Tucker went to Honduras and
accumulated the great fortune that used to excite the hopes of
the families here, as it was well known that he died without heirs
in that country.

Gowin Wilson came among the earliest pioneers, but where
he came from I have not ascertained. He was distantly con-
nected with the Wilsons who came to Columbia. IHe settled
upon the lot afterwards occupied by his son Joel at the Intervale.
His sons were Gowin, Mark, Joel and Nathaniel. THis daughters,
Mrs. William McKoy and Mrs. Ephraim Dorman.

Gowin, Jr. m. a Libby of Gouldsboro. His sons were Mark,
Gowin, Henry, Edward, Warren and Washington, and his daugh-
ters, Mrs. Sowle, Mrs. Walker, Mrs. D. G. Dorman and Mrs.
Dyer.

Mark m. Sally Small. His children were Loring, Emery S.,
Green and William, Mrs. Eben Leighton, Mrs. Joseph Libby
and Mrs. E. Fernald,

Joel m. Polly Burk. He emigrated to Minnesota some years
ago; was the last survivor of the family, and died lately.

The Leightons will require larger space in this chronicle
than those of any other name, being very numerous in the vi-
cinity, and having intermarried with almost every one of the
old families.

About 1760, two brothers, Thomas and Samuel Leighton,
came from Falmouth to this River. Samuel settled, as nearly
as I can learn, on the lot now in possession of Richard P. Willey.
[is sons were Theodore, Isaac, Parritt and Phineas. Theodore
succeeded to the lot taken up by his father. Of the descendants
of Theodore, I have not been able to obtain any information.
Tsaac m. a Worcester and settled in Columbia. His sons were
Moses, Samuel, Levi, Daniel, Harrison T. and Aaron. His
daughters, Mrs. Silsby, Mrs. Tucker and Mrs. Allen.

Parritt settled at Indian River, Addison, and the Leightons
of that vicinity are descended from him.

Phineas went to Pembroke, and the many Leightons of
that vicinity are of his race and lineage.
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Thomas Leighton, the brother of Samuel, settled upon a lot
at the head of Pigeon Hill Bay, now in possession of Joshua M.
Leighton. Ie had a family of six sons and five daughters.
Robert, Joseph, Thomas, Annie, Molly, James, Ross, Abigail,
Betsey, Sarah and Benjamin.

1. Robert went to Falmouth and settled.

2. Joseph m. a Jordan. His children, Joseph m. Betsey
Downs, Robert m. Betsey Willey, Eben m. Drusilla Wilson, Re-
becca m. Elisha Strout, Lucy m. Aaron Lawrence, Betsey m.
Jacob Leighton, Rachel m. Orrin Willey.

3. Thomas m. Patience Wallace. Their children were Ben-
jamin m. a Brown, Lucy m. Louis’ Wallace, Otis m. Mrs. Eliz-
abeth Wallace, James m. Polly Strout, Robert m. Jane Smallage,
Patience m. Amos Gay and Joan m. Henry Bray. '

4. Annie Leighton m. Tristram Pinkham.

5. Betsey Leighton m. 1 Samuel Davis, 2 Richard Pinkham.

6. Molly Leighton m. Thomas West.

7. James m. Kitty Brown. Children, Betty m. Daniel
Lovett, David m. Eliza Leighton, Hannah m. Gideon Thompson,
Caroline m. James Brown, James m. Sally Smallage, and Jesse,

8. Ross m. Their children, John m. in
Portland, Aaron m. Bethia Wakefield, Jacob m. Betsey Leighton,
William m. Myriam Merritt, Samuel m. Eliza Bunker, Ross m.
, Daniel m. Abigail Joy and James m. Lovicie Leighton.

9. Sarah m. Leighton. Children, Eleazer and Gid-
eon.

10. Benjamin m. Strout. Children, Robert m.
Eliza Davis. James m. Sophronia Leighton, Thomas m. Rachel
Leighton, Joshua m. a Stanhope, Edwin, Persis m. Nathan Hink-
" ley, Polly m. William Pinkham, Alice m. Calvin Corthell.

Nearly at the same time that Thomas and Samuel Leighton
came and settled as T have stated, Thomas Leighton 2d came
from Dover, N. H., to Gouldsboro. His wife was Lydia Tracy.
It is not known that there was any relationship between these
two Thomas Leightons. From Gouldsboro, Thomas 2d soon re-
moved to Steuben and settled upon the lot afterwards known as the
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Henry Leighton lot, now occupied by Joseph Small. He had ten
children, Jonathan, Mark, Charity, Alexander, Hatevil, Pamelia,
Isaiah, Daniel, Israel and Asa.

1. Jonathan m. Annah Dyer. Their children, Jonathan m.
Lydia Strout, Lydia m. Nathan Godfrey, Anna m. Benjamin
Godfrey, Charity m. 1 Samuel Nash, and 2 William N. Nash,
Henry m. Lovice Wass, Handy m. Rebecca Wass, Betsey m.
John Randall, Lydia m. Stephen Hill, Tryphenia m. Wm. B.
Nash, Irene m. Isaac Small, Theressa m. Coy, Persis.m.
Oliver Cleaves, Thomas m. Persis Dyer, and Almon, who lives
in Calais and is the only survivor of the family.

2. Mark m. Sally’Small. Their children were, Abigail

. James Smith, Elisha m. Betsey Parker, Warren m. Joanna

Dyer, Pamelia m. James Parker, Sewall m. Barbara Green,

v/t Freeman never married, Naomi m. James Clark, Lydia m. John

Stewart, Amy m. James Kelley and Belinda m. Alfred Smith.
3. Charity m. Daniel Godfrey. Children, Lydia m. Wm.

o Small, Fred m. Joan Haskell, Lewis m. Betsey Foster, James m.

Elmira Yeaton, and Eliza died young.

4. Alexander m. Polly Lawrence. Children, Direxa m.
Wm. Smith, Jane m. Robert Smith, Anna m. William Stevens,
Abigail m. Ezra Smith, Nelson m. 1 Olivia Smith, 2
Whitten, Daniel m. Mary Jane Lawrence, and Caroline m. Still-
man Smith.

5. Hatevil m. Polly Dunbar. Children, Eleanor m. Elisha
Parker, Geo. m. Lydia Moore, Wealthy m. Heal, So-
phronia m. Doane, Leonice m. Samuel W. Cleaves and
Mary J. m. Frank Martin.

6. Pamelia m. John Patten. (See Pattens.)

7. Israel m. Amy Smith. Children, Seaman m. Eliza Shaw,
Nicholas m. Elsie Haskell, Phebe and Kingsbury both died young.

8. Daniel m. Abigail Nason. Children, Daniel died in
youth. Thomas m. a Patten, Mary m. Justus Bickford, Israel
m. Hannah Drinkwater, Leonard m. a Yeaton, John m. a Nason.

9. Isaiah m. Mary Small. Children, Elisha m. Caroline
Lancaster, Amos m. Louisa Sargent, Lydia m. Walter Hutchin-
SO11.
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Asa m. Loruhami Fickett. Children, Oliver, Lewis R. m.
Dolly Heal, Eliza m. David Leighton, Joan m. John Strout, Is-
abel m. Myrick Small, Cynthia m. John Griffin, George m.
Thorne, and Hannah m. Ephraim Strout.

Amnother old family of Steuben, many of whom have and
do live upon the river is that of the Dyers. Henry Dyer and his
wife Batty came from Cape Elizabeth sometime prior to 1769
and settled at Dyer’s Bay. They had fourteen children, Andrew
m. a daughter of Jesse Brown, Sarah, Batty, Henry, Jr., Annah,
Ebenezer, Lemuel, Abigail, Reuben m. a Whitten, Anna m. Jon-
athan Leighton, Christiana, Asa m. a Yeaton, Walter and Molly.
They were large, strong and healthy men and women. Lemuel
settled in South Addison. IHe had three sons, Luther, Briggs and
March, and two daughters, Mrs. Brown and Mrs. Hough. Two
sons of Andrew, Vinal and Harris, settled in Addison, but emi-
grated to the West, where they died. Those yet living on this
river are descendants of Reuben and Asa, and do honor to their
ancestors.

Deacon Jonathan Stevens and his wife, Mary Tracy, were
early settlers of Steuben. Their children were Samuel, Lydia,
Rhoda Louisa, Polly, Jonathan, Nabby, Bethia and Nancy. Sam-
uel m. Sally Hill, and raised a large family of children, some of
whom are still living. Nabby m. Joseph Stevens of another fam-
ily and raised a family of eight children, one of whom, Luther P,
resides in Cherryfield. Jonathan P. m. —— , and raised
a family in Steuben, who have died or gone to other parts.
Nancy, the youngest daughter of Dea. Stevens, m. Wm. Shaw,
and died but recently.

Deacon Stevens settled near the head of the bay and owned
a grist-mill near where Mrs. Shaw lately lived. He was a pious
man and, having a natural gift of language, as those who know his
descendants might infer, he used to conduct religious meetings
and officiate at funerals. His grist-mill was of rude construction,
and some hours were required to convert a bushel of grain into
meal, and as.all the people for a long distance around depended
upon his mill to grind their grain, he generally found it necessary
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to keep the old wheel in motion day and night, week day and Sun-
day. Nor did this interfere so much with his rest or devotions,
as might seem probable. He used to fill the hopper and leave
the gentle old mill to work away upon it while he took a good
long nap, or, on Sunday went to the meeting, read a sermon and
made a prayer.

Some time between 1766 and 1768, Alexander Campbell re-
moved from Damariscotta to Steuben, and built a mill at Tunk,
now called Smithville, on the east side of the river. It was the
first mill there. Mr. Campbell was afterwards well known, not
only at home but far east and west, as Colonel Campbell. He
was born in Georgetown, this State, and was the son of Alex-
ander Campbell, born in Scotland, and Frances (Drummond)
Campbell, born in Ireland. He was born in 1731. In 1759, he
married Betsey Nickels, who was born in Ireland and came to
Lynn, Mass., with her parents when about six years old. From
Lynn, she came with her brother, Capt. Wm. Nickels, to Damar-
iscotta. At Damariscotta, two children were born to them—
James and Frances. While living at Steuben, Hannah, Peggy,
Polly and William were born. About 1772 or 73, they moved
to this river and built a house at what we call “Shipyard Point,”
where Nash’s lumber yard now is. While living there, Samuel,
Alexander and Betsey were born. In 1790, they built and moved
into the house on the hill, the same now occupied by their great
grandson, F. I. Campbell. Col. Campbell had found it so ex-
pensive getting his lumber to market from Tunk that he concluded
to come to this river and operate, where he could raft his lumber
to the vessels that were to take it away. He first contemplated
building his dam and mill on the privilege now occupied by the
“Forest Mill,” grist mill, etc. He took counsel of Mr. Ichabod
_Willey, who was the only wheelwright, and of others who had
lived here some years, and they advised him to build a dam
down at the point instead, for two very sufficient reasons in their
estimation. 1. A sufficient head to work a mill could not be
raised up at the falls, and 2d, there was little or no timber on
the river above, and he would need to have his mill where he
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could reach it with logs cut upon the river below, and upon the
islands. There was already a mill on the dam now occupied by
Coffin & Co., and that would more than use up the timber that
could be got up river. And so he built a dam and a tide-mill
down below.

In the troublous times that followed soon affer Col. Camp-
bells’ settlement—the struggles and trials of the revolutionary war
—he was very active and efficient. It would be interesting to
the reader, I am quite sure, to relate in considerable detail the
part that Col. Campbell took in the affairs of this county and the
country from 1774 -5 to the close of the revolution. But space
will not permit. I can only say that Col. Campbell was the ad-
viser, aid and confidential correspondent of the famous patriot,
Col. John Allan, who did more than any other one man in all
eastern Maine for the cause of Freedom and Independence, in
thwarting the schemes of the British, and in keeping the Indians
from the St. John to the Penobscot friendly and true to the Amer-
ican cause, and when the people of the region round about had
any appeal to make to the General Court of Massachusetts, or
to the Continental Congress, Col. Campbell was generally their
agent and envoy.

1. James, the oldest son of Col. C., m. Susanna Coffin, a
sister of Dea. Elisha, Matthew and Temple Coffin of Columbia.
They settled at Mill river, where the Kennedys now live. Their
children were James A. m. Thirza Fickett, Nancy m. Joseph
Adams, Richard C. m. Sally Foster, Polly died young, Patrick m.
Smallage, Colin m. Sally Ricker, Alex. F. m. Julia Patten,
Catherine m. Thomas A. Snow and Betsey m. Weston Merritt.

2. Fanny m. James Archibald, who with his brother Thom-
as, had come here from Nova Scotia. He lived but a short time,
and she afterwards m. Capt. Ambrose Snow, a son of the old
pioneer preacher, Elder Snow. Their children, Robert married
in Thomaston, Campbell died young, William m. Myriam Wass,
Ambrose m. 1st . and 2d Eliza S. Nickels, Thomas
A. m. Catherine Campbell, Jane m. Francis Cobb, Polly m. Capt.
Paost.
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3. Hannah m. Thomas Archibald. Their children were
Elizabeth m. Joseph Adams, Margaret died young, Sophia m.
Thompson Lewis; Mary, Hannah, Samuel and Thomas, and Su-
san m. Charles S. Hall.

4. Peggy m. John Foster and was the mother of Alexander
Foster and of Robert Foster who formerly lived where J. A.
Milliken now lives.

5. Polly m. Robert Foster, Sr., and died soon after.

6. William m. Jane Lawrence. Their children were Han-
nah, John L. m. Margaret Lewis, Betsey m. B. G. Ricker, Samuel
m. Elizabeth S. Shaw, James m. Leonice Nickels, Ambrose S.
m. Ann M. True and William never married.

7. Samuel m. Rebecca Wass. Their children were David
W. m. Margaret B. Nickels, Alexander m. Caroline Ricker,
Francis C. died unmarried, Fanny died young, Susan m. J. W.
Moore, William, Abigail, Aaron W. and Robert F. all died young,
and Nancy A. m. J. Q. Adams. Of all these Alexander and Mrs.
Moore only are living.

8. Alexander m. Nabby Collins. Their children were Peggy
m. James Ray and William died unmarried.

9. Betsey, the youngest daughter, died unmarried at the
age of 26 years. Col. Campbell died in 1807.

A sister of Col. Campbell married John Todd. Their chil-
dren were Nancy, Sukie F. and Eliza, and probgﬂy James Todd
and John Campbell Todd, as these two Todds came here and
were certainly connected in some way to Col. Campbell's family.
John Campbell Todd m. a sister of Esq. Alex. Nickels, and was
the first settler upon the Nickels lot, now in possession of John
H. Nickels. Their children were John Nickels Todd, Nancy
Todd m. a Clancy, Peggy m. John Dutch, and William—and per-
haps others. William m. his cousin, Mary Ann Nickels. They
had a family of children, but parents and children lie side by side
in Pine Grove Cemetery.

James Todd took up the lot now known as the Nathan
Hinkley homestead.
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Capt. Wm. Nickels, of whom some mention has been made
incidentally, was born in Ireland, probably in North Ireland, as
his name and Protestant faith would indicate. He came with
his parents to Essex county, Mass., when very young. He mar-
ried Margaret Breck of Massachusetts. They had three sons
and four daughters. The sons were William, and another, neith-
er of whom came here, and Alexander. One of the daughters,
Hannah m. Robert Shaw and became the mother of Robert G.
Shaw, who died some years since in Boston, leaving a large fam-
ily and a great estate, and of William Shaw who m. Nancy Stev-
ens and died in Steuben, leaving a family of sons and daughters.
Margaret, the second daughter, m. Jacob Townsley, a soldier of
the revolution, born in Springfield, Mass. They had two chil-
dren, Peggy died in childhood, and Persis, who married Philo
Lewis. Mr. Shaw having died and Mrs. Townsley also, Mr.
Townsley m. the widow Shaw. The third daughter of Capt.
Nickels m. Daniel Eliot, and the fourth m. John Campbell Todd.

The death of Capt. Nickels occurred in 1785. He was ship-
wrecked in a snow storm on the north side of Grand Menan Is-
land. He and a young grandson succeeded in getting to land, but
were found dead, the boy locked in the arms of his grandfather,
who had tried to shield him from the pitiless storm. The fol-
lowing inscription is found upon a monument in the cemetery
at Eastport:

“Margaret Nickels, died April 26, 1817, aged 87, daughter
of Samuel Breck of Boston, and relict of William Nickels of
Narraguagus, who was lost at sea, as was his grandson, George
W. Shaw, on Grand Menan Island, where they were buried Dec,
18, 1785. This monument erected by Robert G. Shaw of Boston,
grandson of the deceased, through the agency of George Hobbs,
esquire.”

Alexander Nickels first settled on the lot in Milbridge now
occupied by Rufus Fickett and others. Subsequently he pur-
chased the Todd lot in Cherryfield and built the mansion house
that used to stand where E. S. Wilson's house is, and was con-
cerned with Col. Campbell in the tide-mill at the old shipyard.
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He married Martha Holway of Machias. Their children were
William m. Clarissa Small, Jeremiah O. m. Elvira Dodge, Sally
m. Otis S. Godfrey and 2d Thomas Milliken, Daniel E. m. Je-
mima Libby, and 2d Mrs. Jacobs, Margaret m. David W. Camp-
bell, Martha m. Samuel Godfrey, and 2d Eben Wood, Mary Ann
m. Wm. Todd, Robert S. m. Betsey Adams, Eliza S. m. Ambrose
Snow, and John H. m. Betsey, widow of Robert S.

Isaac Patten, by trade a tanner, born in Billerica, Mass., and
who married there and had some family, having lost his wife,
came to Gouldsboro to set up his trade, about or near the time
that Campbell and Nickels came to Steuben. In Gouldsboro, he
married for a second wife Amy Allen, a connection of the Allens
of Prospect Harbor. She was born in Kittery. After a short
time, he removed from Gouldsboro to Foster’s Island in Narra-
guagus Bay. About 1773, Col. Campbell, wishing that a tan-
nery might be established, offered Mr. Patten to relinquish to
him his pre-emption, or settler’s right to some 30 acres of the
southern part of the large lot that he had taken up for himself and
sons. Subsequently this lot was confirmed to Mr. Patten, as a
settler, by the proprietors of the township. The tanyard was es-
tablished near the creek, and relics of it may be found there still.

The children of Isaac and Amy Patten were John, Mary,
William, Elizabeth, Tobias, Lydia, David and Nathaniel.

1. John m. Pamelia Leighton. Their children were Isaac
m. Joan Watts, Amy, Sally and Lydia, all died young, Julia m.
Alex. F. Campbell, Jane m. George Nash, Wm. and John, twins,
died young, Charity m. Bradbury Collins, and Love m. L. D.
Sawyer and by his second wife, Nancy, widow of Tobias, he had
Mary m. Henry Preble, Nancy and John C.

2. Tobias m. Nancy Alline. Their children were Michael
L. m. Amelia Bonny, David, Francis B. m. in Franklin, George
W., and Eliza Ann m. W. B. Austin.

3. Mary m. Seth Norton.

4. William m. Ruth Foster. They settled on the lot after-
wards the Barna Strout lot. Of their further history, the writer
has no knowledge.
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5. Elizabeth m. John Small, the father of David and Al-
fred.

6. Lydia m. Benjamin Alline, and the Allines of Harring-
ton and Addison are descended from this couple.

7 and 8. David and Nathaniel died in early manhood un-
married.

The Fosters of Milbridge, Cherryfield, Sullivan, etc., are de-
scended from a Mr. John Foster, who, with his wife, came to
this river from Cape Elizabeth soon after the close of the revolu-
tionary war. He and his wife were English born; came to Hali-
fax, thence to Cape Elizabeth and thence here. The tradition
is that his position at Halifax was made unpleasant by reason
of his strong sympathy with the Americans in their struggle for
Independence. He settled upon the lot now occupied by John
Bailey and built a house on the high point of land near the river.
He had three sons, James, Robert and John.

1. James m. Lydia Stevens. Their children were Clarissa
m. Reuben Smith, Eli m. Wallace and raised a large fam-
ily at Milbridge. Cynthia m. Col. Henry Sawyer and moved to
Augusta, Rhoda m. Birdsey Lewis, J. Simpson m. Emma In-
galls and is still living in Sullivan. Enos m. Maria Ingalls and
is yet living in Boston.

2. Robert m. Polly Campbell, who lived but a short time,
and 2d Jane Alline, and raised a large family of sons, all of
whom have gone west except one family at Calais. Mrs. Foster
lived to a great age and died a few years ago at G. E. Church’s
in Cherryfield.

3. John m. Peggy Campbell. Their sons were Alexander
and Robert 2d. John and his wife died in 1803. Robert, Sr.,
built a house on the site of John Bailey’s present house, which
was long well known as the John Upton tavern. John built a large
house a short distance north of Robert’s, where George Collins’
house was burned some years ago. James built the house after-
wards owned and occupied by Jonathan Upton, at Milbridge. -

Just before the embargo, James and Robert Foster began
the building of a large brig on the river, and in doing so became
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largely indebted to Robert and Jeduthan Upton of Salem. The
embargo, followed by the war of 1812-15, coming on before they
had completed the vessel, the enterprise proved disastrous and
ruinous. It is said that the brig—mno spars being set—was hauled
into the creek north of the Elias Fickett place, which was then
wooded with large trees to the water’s edge, and there, so covered
with brush, as not to be seen by persons passing up and down
the river. The Uptons, in payment or part payment of their
claim, received title to, and entered into possession of the real
estate of the Foster brothers. Jonathan, a son of Robert Upton,
came and occupied the James Foster place, and John, a son of
Jeduthan, took possession of the Robert Foster place. Such is
the reason or occasion of the migration of the Uptons to this
river. After the loss of his property, James Foster moved to
Great Falls (Deblois) and lived for a time in a house built by
Otis Pineo, on the hill where Bartlett Leighton lives. (Pineo
had been sent to Great Falls by Gen. Cobb to build a mill and
begin a settlement the further history of which the writer has
no knowledge.) From Deblois, James Foster removed to Steu-
ben and built the house lately occupied by Gen. S. Moore, and
thence in his old age, he went to Sullivan to live with his daugh-
ter, Mrs, Henry Sawyer. He died-in Augusta.

The unmarked grave of the senior John Foster lies some-
where in the field near the river, on the lot upon which he settled,
and that of his wife on the Wm. B. Leighton lot in Deblois.

Shubael_Hinkley, some time prior to the revolution, settled
for a time upon the east side of the river, near where Mrs. Han-
nah Strout lives, or nearer to the Talbot Smith house, perhaps.
From there he moved to the Intervale, beyond the Archer place.
He had two sons, Lemuel and Moses, and a daughter who m. a
Miller at Machiasport. Lemuel m. Betsey Norton. Moses m.
Mary Wallace, a daughter of Benjamin. Their children, Herbert
m. Nabby Strout, Nancy m. John Small, Nathan m. Persis
Leighton, Eliza m. Daniel Lothrop, Aaron m. Mary Irons, Ben-
jamin died single, Shubael died young, Mary m. a Davis in Dover,
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N. H., Naomi m. a Dexter at Salem, Susan B. m. Manning Dun-
bar, Ann m. Simeon B. Ray.

The first doctor that settled on the river was Dr. Benjamin
Alline, whose wife was a Lowell, of Massachusetts. He had
been a surgeon in the Continental Army. After the close of the
war he came to Gouldshoro and settled. About 1790, he came
here and settled upon the lot now known as the Hanson place,
owned by Judge Milliken. Of his three daughters, Mrs, Pat-
ten, Mrs. Foster, and Mrs. Dea. Crocker, and of his son Ben-
jamin, mention has already been made.

Joseph Bracy was a very early settler. He took up the lot
now owned by Peter Smith, next south of Wm. Freeman's lot.
He sold this to Capt. Ambrose Snow, and bought a piece of the
Todd or Nickels lot, and built a house on the south side of the
old cotinty road that led to the bridge at Shipyard Point. He was
the father of John, William, Joseph and James Bracy. John m.
Fanny Colson. His son, Augustus, is, I think, the only one of
the name now living in the vicinity. William m. Polly Fickett.
They had two daughters, Betsey, 1st wife of Lewis Colson, and
Martha m. Amaziah Colson.

Samuel Wakefield and his wife Mary Burbank, came from
Kennebunk in 1756 or 57, and settled at the head of the bay
on the lot now comprising a considerable part of Steuben vil-
lage. Their children were Samuel, Lydia, Ruth, Benjamin,
Phebe, Hannah and Sally. After the death of his first wife,
Mr. Wakefield m. a widow Small, and their children were James,
Myriam and Daniel.

1. Samuel, Jr., m. Anna Cox. Their children Cyrus, Drus-
illa, Dudley, Elisha, Lovisa, Lovina, Asa B., and Elias.

2. Lydia m. Ichabod Godfrey. Their children, Nathan m.
Lydia Leighton, Benjamin m. Anna Leighton, Otis S. m. Sally
Nickels, Ruth m. Eben Wood, Hannah m. Salter, Wilson

m. Joan Handy, Samuel m. Martha Nickels, John B., and Mary '

D. m. Ethan Elliot.
3. Ruth m. Capt. Perkins of Kennebunk.
19
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4. Benjamin m. Polly Dorman. Their children were Sy-
rena m. Benj. Small, 2d, Joel FFarnsworth, Sabina m. J. D. Park-
er, Hammah m. J. T. Watts, Amasa m. Jane Dyer, Lewis m. Abi-
gail Watts, Matilda m. Samuel Moore, Elbridge G. m. Clarissa
Allen, Mary m. Dean S. Robinson, Ambrose C. m. Elizabeth
Campbell, George W. m. Susan Campbell, Hulda m. Jotham S.
Whitney.

5. Phebe m.
Ruth, Lucas and Samuel.

6. Hannah m. Nathan Cleaves from Kennebunk. Their
children, Joshua, Hannah, Oliver and Samuel W.

7. Sally m. Wheeler Tracy.

8. James m. Priscilla Small. Children, Hannah, Sally, Na-
than, James A., Thirza, Levi, Lorinda and Myriam.

9. Myriam m. Winslow Gallison. Children, John, Abigail,
Louisa, Henry, Caroline, Winslow, James and Mary Ann.

10. Daniel m. Priscilla , from Lubec. Children, Jane,
Gleason and Samuel.

Kingsley. Children, John, James,

Josiah Sawyer, about 1757, came from Cape Elizabeth and
settled near the river in what is now Milbridge. His wife was
Elizabeth, daughter of Jesse Brown. There were born to them
four sons and four daughters, Josiah, Jr., William, George B.,
John, Lydia, Sally, Jane and Hannah.

1. Josiah, Jr.,, m. Rebecca Grindle of Sedgwick. Their
children were George 2d, Charles, William 2d, Elbridge, Eben,
Philo, Temperance, Louisa, Joanna, Helen and Rebecca.

2. William m. Sarah, daughter of Andrew Dyer. Their
children were Exie m. William Bracket, Mary m. John Sawyer,
Henry died unmarried, Harris unmarried.

3. George B. m. Mary Roberts of Cape Elizabeth, who is
yet living at the age of 90. Their children, Catherine m. Moses
Wallace, Joseph W. m. Mary Jane Wallace, William R. m. Lucy
Ann Gay, Stillman D. m. Nancy Ray, Emery W. m. Phebe Tur-
ner, Frank m. Susan Wood, David m. Henrietta Foster, Mary
Ann m. 1, Melville Nash, 2, Isaac McCollum, Phebe Helen m.
Myrick Preble.
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4. John m. Lydia Dyer. Children Handy, John, Rebecca
and Sarah.

5. Lydia m. Josiah Grindel of Sedgwick.

6. Sally m. Josiah Wallace, Jr. Their children, Joseph,
Mary, Olive and Joanna.

7. Jane m. Thomas Strout. Children, Hannah, Maria,
Everett, Joanna, Elizabeth and Amy.

8. Hannah m. 1, Henry Dyer, 2, French. Their
children were Rosilla and Jackson.

Joseph Sawyer came also from Cape Elizabeth at a date
somewhat later than the coming of Josiah to Milbridge and set-
tled at Dyer’s Bay in Steuben. What their relationship to each
other was, I have not learned. Joseph m. Sarah Dyer, daughter
of Henry and Batty Dyer, already mentioned in these chronicles.
Their children were Susanna m. Nathaniel Ingersoll, Joseph,
father of the Addison Sawyers, Henry m. Cynthia Foster and
moved to Augusta. Nabby m.*~—=— Dyer of Sullivan, Sally
m. Ambrose Coffin, Catherine m. Amos Allen, Ebenezer moved
to Augusta, Lemuel B. m. Handy, and Annie, and by a
second wife, Daniel and Annah L.

Isaac Lovett, a young Englishman, came to this river with
Joseph and Benjamin Wallace. He was clerk and hookkeeper
for Major Joseph for several years. He was a fine penman, as
shown by the old books that he kept, some of which are yet in
existence, and a man of considerable education. He married
Annie Sawyer, daughter of John Sawyer of Jonesport. Their
children were Daniel, Annie, Rebecca, Ruth, Elizabeth, Jane and
Mary.

1. Daniel m. Betsey Leighton. No children.

2. Annie m. Joseph Strout. (See Strout family.)

3. Rebecca m. John Ward. Children, Isaac, William, Sar-
ah m. Amos Worster, Mary Ann m. Samuel Leighton, Betsey m.
A. G. Hamlin, and 2, Samuel Leighton, Nancy m. Elisha Small,
Jr., Jane m. Albert Church, Margaret m. Richard C. Ray, Chris-
tiana m. Henry Bray, and Eleanor.
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4. Elizabeth m. Charles Corthell. Children, David, Daniel,
Levi C., Charles R., Joseph S., and Annie.

5. Ruth m. David Cole.

6. Jane was 2d wife of Moses Hinkley.

%. Mary m. David Thompson.

The Dunbars are all descended from Obed and Abigail Dun-
bar, who were early settlers in Steuben, and came from Taunton,
Mass. Their children were Merrill, Caleb, Polly, Peter, Hum-
phrey and Abigail. Of these

1. Caleb m. Lovina Marston. Children, Obed m. Sarah
Fickett, Abiah m. Wm. Pineo, Tileston m. Abigail Guptil, Jo-
siah m. Susan Cole, Manning m. Susan B. Hinkley, Charity m.
a Herrick of Sedgwick, John m. Betsey Sowle, Joshua m. a
Perry, William m. , and left a family at Jonesport.

2. Peter m. Kate Yeaton. Children, Sally Y. m. Joseph
Tucker, Emma, Dexter m. 1, Mrs. Norton, 2, Mrs. Nash, 3, Mrs..
Young, Susan, Mary Ann m. Caleb Tracy, George m. Delilah
Sargent, Henry m. Emeline Strout, Abby m. James Stecle, and
John Y. m. Caroline Atwater, and there were two or three chil-
dren that died young.

3. Humphrey m. Lovicie Stevens. Children, Alfred F. m.
Ricker, Charlotte and John B.

4. Polly m. Hatevil Leighton.
T have no further record of the Dunbar family.

The Smiths of Steuben, Milbridge, Cherryfield and Colum-
bia are mostly descendants of Job Smith, who, though not one
of the earliest, was an early scttler. He came from Middleboro,
Mass., in the last part of the last century, and settled where his
youngest and only surviving son, William, now lives. IHe had a
large family of sons, who mostly lived to be aged men, and have
left families more or less large behind them. :

John Yeaton, about 1766, came from the vicinity of Fal-
mouth and settled in Steuben. His wife's name was Sarah.
Their children were John; Samuel, Abigail, James, Lemuel, Su-
sanna and Catherine. The oldest born in 1769, the youngest in
1788. These have inter-married with many of the old families,
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and though those bearing the namé are but few, the descendants
are numerous.

The Parkers of Steuben—a quite numerous family—are
descended from Elisha and Eunice, who came from Cumberland
County some time irom 1766 to 1769. Their children were Pru-
dence, Abigail, William, Sally, Eunice, Phebe, James, Elisha and
Jordan.

Thomas Parritt, a Scotchman, with his wife Lydia, came
from Canada and settled in Steuben about 1770. Their children
were Levi, Thomas, Samuel, William, Peggy, Sarah, Isaac, Dor-
cas and Elizabeth. But few of the name remain in the vicinity.

Tristram and Richard Pinkham, brothers, came from Booth-
bay to Gouldsboro Harbor, and built a tide-mill at “Long Cove,”
so called, said to have been one of the very earliest mills built
in all the Eastern region. How long they remained there, and
what was the fate of their mill is not known. But that they re-
moved to Steuben prior to 1769 is shown by the records. They
settled at what is called, from them, Pinkham’s Bay, and built a
tide-mill on “Pinkham’s Mill Stream.” Tristram m. Annie,-a
daughter of the older Thomas Leighton. They had a family of
nine children born from 1769 to 1791. Richard m. Mrs. Betsey
Davis, another daughter of Thomas Leighton. IFrom these two
Pinkhams come all the Pinkhams of Steuben, a numerous race.
At a much later period some Pinkhams came from Harpswell
and settled in Milbridge and Harrington, where their descend-
ants are found.

Prior to her marriage with Richard Pinkham, Betsey Leigh-
ton had married Eleazer Davis by whom she had one child, Sam-
uel Davis. This Samuel subsequently m. Jane, youngest daugh-
ter of the original settler, ﬁ“fchard ‘Willey. They had a family of
threé or four sons, one of whom, Ichabod Davis, is still living at
a great age, and many daughters, several of whom are living.

The early—not the earliest—chronicles of Cherryfield would
be incomplete without some mention of the name of one who is
pleasantly remembered by all middle-aged people of the town
and vicinity. About 180%, Joseph Adams, a young man yet in
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his minority, came from his native place, Lincoln, Mass., to
Wiscasset, Maine, and went into trade there in company with
another young man. IHe remained there but a short time, and
from there came here. I find his name among thz Plantation
officers in 1809, and from that time for more than half a century
he was identified with the history of the town, its pzople and its
interests. In the course of years, he held nearly every town
office, was elected several times to the Legislature of Massachu-
setts before the separation, and to the Legislature of Maine
after the State was admitted. Several times he role on horse-
back from Narraguagus to Boston, and back again after the
close of the session. He was a man of fine perscnal presence
and of genial manners in society. His first wife was Elizabeth,
oldest daughter of Thomas and Hannah (Campbell) Archibald.
By her, he had one daughter, Delia, who m. George S. Smith,
Jr. After the death of his first wife, he married Nancy, the
oldest daughter of Gen. James Campbell. Their children were
James C. m. Harriet Nickels, Samuel F. m. Esther Moore, Bet-
sey m. Robert S. Nickels and 2d John H. Nickels, Joseph T. m.
Louisa Upton, and John Q. m. 1 Nancy A. Campbell, and 2d
Elizabeth Burnham. Col. Adams died in 1872, aged about 90
years.

John Archer, an Englishman, a man of some education, a
land surveyor and a teacher in his time, married a Tupper of
Jonesboro, and at an early date in the settlement of the place,
took up the lot afterwards occupied by his son John, on the Bed-
dington road. They had a family of twenty-three children, most-
Iy sons, and most of whom grew to man’s estate. The youngest
of the family was David Cobb Archer, who lived until about a
year since, and whom travellers between Columbia Falls and
Jonesboro will well remember. But few of the name remain in
the county.

Undoubtedly there were individuals and some families con-
nected with the early history of the locality that I have not named.

Of course there is not much history of the territory included
in our sketch outside of the personal history of the people who
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have inhabited it. The rivers and brooks flow now as they did
one hundred and thirty years ago; the tides ebb and flow in the
river and in the bay as they did then. The surf breaks upon
Petit Menan, upon Ship Stern and Baldwin’s Head, just as it
did when the first lone white man and woman looked upon them
or listened to their distant murmur in the darkness of night.
The hills are the same, and the valleys. But the grand old
trees that then covered and adorned the land from the banks
of the bays and rivers to the summits of the hills have disappeared.
Tradition says, and her testimony is confirmed by the old pine
stumps yet found in the pastures and among the growing birches,
that a growth of pine, tall, straight and beautiful, covered the
whole face of the country. The river swarmed with fish in their
season—salmon and alewives. Within the memory of some now
living, small schooners used to come up as far as Patten’s Creek,
and in a few tides get full loads of alewives. Wild sea fowl
were abundant in the bays; and such as seek the fresh water
came in great numbers to the head of the tide. Moose, deer and
other wild game abounded in the forests. Dea. Small in his
younger days killed five moose and many smaller animals one
season, before Christmas. Indeed it is difficult to imagine how
the early settlers here could have lived at all had it not been for
the easy facility for procuring food from the forest and the water.
They must have been a hardy, brave and persistent people—those
men and women who left the older settlements and penetrated
these forests to make homes for themselves and their expected
children and grandchildren. It is difficult to appreciate the hard-
ships they encountered. There were no roads, no settlement near-
er than Gouldsboro, no sawmills or grist-mills — the rivers
“flowed unvexed to the sea,” and the wild beast and the wild In-
dian were their only living neighbors.

That they were all or generally religious people, we may
not assume; but that God-fearing and God-trusting men and
women were among them, and that such were deferred to and
made leaders and advisers all the records and traditions show.
We find them making provision for schools and for the preaching
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of the gospel at an early date after their arrival. That they were
superstitious, both the religious and the irreligious, we might
safely infer, had tradition brought along to us no instances of
their superstitious fears and notions. Many of them had abun-
dant faith in witches and devils. If a horse shoe was not nailed
to every door-post and in the bottom of every hog’s trough, it
was because it was harder to get old horse shoes than to fight
demons and witches.

The first school was taught by one John Edmunds, an
Irishman, in the house of Mr. Isaac Patten, that stood near the
Creek.

Though from the first the people did not neglect to assemble
themselves together for worship, they made no attempt to settle
a minister until about 1795. In that year, Elder James Murphy,
a native of Nova Scotia, was employed and settled with some
little attempt at formality. He remained until about 1800. In
1796, a considerable revival occurred under his preaching and
that of one Elder Young, and a Baptist church was organized,
of which John Campbell Todd was the first deacon. Elder Mur-
phy had preached. for a while at Moose Island (Eastport) before
coming here. He was not a learned or refined man, and tradition
tells of him that he was a persistent and successful beggar for
himself, for his family, and lastly for the church. After him,
Elder Young was here for a time, but whence he came or whither
he went, what kind of man he was or how long he remained, I
have no means of knowing.

The next settled minister was Elder Robinson. The first
meeting-house was framed and raised in the Patten field, easterly
of the Talbot Smith house, and from there it was removed to
the old shipyard corner, and after a few years it was moved
from there to a spot near where Augustus Allen’s dwelling stands.
There it was fitted up and used for some twenty-five years, both as
meeting-house and schoolhouse. After the building of a new
meeting-house in 1826, the old one was somewhat repaired and
remodeled by the trustees of Cherryfield Academy, and used for
their school until accidentally burned in 1838 or 1839.
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The records show that for many years there was a strong
attachment felt by the people here for the parent Commonwealth
of Massachusetts, and that during the revolution, they heartily
sympathized with, and seconded, according to their ability, the
patriotic efforts and sacrifices of the old Commonwealth; and
subsequently, when the expediency and necessity for the em-
bargo and the war of 1812 became a matter of discussion and of
sharp political division, they were found in hearty accord with
the great majority of Massachusetts statesmen and people in
opposition to the embargo and the war.

I find in the records the following memorial, evidently the
production of the senior John Archer, which I deem of sufficient
interest to be embodied in this sketch:

“To His Excellency, the Governor, the Honorable, the Coun-
cil and the Honorable the Senate and House of Representatives
of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, in General Court as-
sembled: The inhabitants of the Plantation of Cherryfield in
the County of Washington, at a legal meeting holden on the
Eighteenth day of July, 1812, for the purpose of consulting upon
the common good and welfare of our country at this eventful and
alarming crisis, unanimously voted that the assessors be a commit-
tee of safety and correspondence to lay before Government our
situation and sentiments, and to request some pecuniary aid.
Therefore we beg leave to state to your Excellency and Honorable
Body that though we are few in number and through the means
of the embargo restrictions and other embarrassments on us we
are reduced to low circumstances in life, yet we trust we are not
behind the most opulent in attachment to our Constitutional rights
and privileges, the which we are determined to support at the
hazard of all that is near and dear to us; and further we beg
leave to tender our sincere thanks to the Representatives of this
Commonwealth and the minority of Congress and all the friends
of Peace, who have advised their constituents and fellow citizens
on the subject of the present destructive and ruinous war, prov-
ing unto us the inexpediency of it and the destructive conse-
quences attended thereon, of which we are fully sensible, for
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as our situation in the District of Maine is so contiguous to the
British lines that it exposes us to every distress and calamity,
should they attempt it, without any means in our power to pre-
vent any attack on our shores—therefore feeling our inability
of defense and not having resources to furnish ourselves at pre-
sent, we would beg leave to request your Excellency and Honors
to take our case into consideration and grant a small supply of
arms and ammunition to enable us in case of actual invasion
to make a more efficient defense than we now can. The quantum
needed is as follows: Ten stand of arms, one-half cwt. of pow-
der, one cwt. of balls or lead, 200 flints and two camp kettles,
the which articles so supplied the assessors become responsible
for the payment thereof agreeable to the terms and mode as may
be directed by Government, and we indulge the hope and con-
fidence that our Government will do all they possibly can to as-

sist our Perilous Situation.
Jorun ARCHER,

JosepH AbpAMS,
Assessors.”

In May, 1816, a vote was taken upon the question whether
the District of Maine should be separated from Massachusetts
and erected into a State, and three votes only were in favor of it,
and twenty were against it; and in October, 1819, when the
final vote in the State was taken upon the question of separation,
the vote here was four in favor and twenty-one against separ-
ation.

In bringing to a close these reminiscenses of the early settle-
ment of this region, the writer would say that he is fully sensible
that the record of families is not, in all cases, full and perfect.
He has spent much time in the ten years last past in collecting
the facts herecin embodied. No doubt in some cases, wrong
Christian names are given, and in other cases the names of some
members of families have been omitted. It could not well be
otherwise, as the principal source of information has been the
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recollection of old persons, verified when practicable, family
Bibles and town records.

Perhaps it may be well to say that where the good old-fash-
ioned names, such as Polly, Sally, Peggy and the like have been
used, it has been done only where the individuals were so called
by their parents and friends, so far as could be ascertained. They
are dear old names, and it would be no misfortune if they could
be revived and used instead of the foolishly romantic names
now too often inflicted upon girls and women.

FINIS.
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APPENDIX.

Among the very early settlers at Steuben was Lemuel Baker,
who came from Roxbury, Mass. He must have come about, or
soon after, the time that the Leightons came. He married a
Tracy, sister of Mrs. Thomas Leighton, 2d, and Mrs. Deacon
Stevens. He settled near the shore of Joy’s Bay, on what is
known as Baker's Point, afterwards near where the George
Baker house is. By his first wife he had four children. George
died unmarried, Nabby m. Jones of Roxbury, Rhoda
m. Farrington of Roxbury, Dolly died unmarried. After
the death of his first wife, which occurred while these children
were young, Mr. Baker moved to Massachusetts and there mar-
ried Abigail Griggs, and by her had two children, Susanna and
Eli F., both born in Roxbury, and while they were young again
moved to Steuben, where he and his wife lived for the remainder
of their days.

1. Susanna, m. in 1804, Amaziah Ricker. Mr. Ricker
came from Waterbury, Me., to Addison about 1796. He was a
blacksmith, and came to Cherryfield in 1880 and built a shop
where Mr. Samuel Campbell’s house now stands. Their children
were Sally m. Colin Campbell, 2d, Rev. E. Nugent, Benjamin
G. m. Betsy Campbell, Caroline m. Alexander Campbell, George
B. m. Mary E. Upton, Arthur S. m. Jane Stoddard and Abigail
B. m. George Wingate.

2. Eli F. m. Rebecca Downs. Their children were George
m. Mary Ann Smith, Abigail m. Isaac Childs of Roxbury, Susan
m. Joseph Davis of Addison, Forbes m. 1st, Sarah Evans, 2d,
Susan Dorman, John m. Mildred Ann Turner of Georgia, 2d,
Angie Kidder of New Hampshire, Frank m. Elizabeth A. Dork-
ham, Henry C. m. Bessy Crowley, Mary unmarried, Sophia
m. George Kendall, and Wm. G. m. Sylvia G. Hart of St. Louis,
Mo.

{8]
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ifs aged Cilisens.

®Rrom 1796 to 1896.

By Levi Leighton, Esq.,

COLUMBIA FALLS, ME.




Elccount of the Celebration.

Z HE town of Columbia, at its annual meeting, March 17, 1896,
voted to raise $75.00 to be used in celebrating the One
Hundredth Anniversary of the town; and appointed a Centennial
Committee, consisting of Jesse L. Nash, as Chairman ; M. F. Inger-
~ soll, as Secretary ; George H. Leighton, V. N. Look, George C,
Coffin, Augustus Dunbar, E. A. Foster and Jethro P, Hartford,
This committee appointed Asaph H. Leighton as President of the
day, Levi Leighton, Esq., of Columbia Falls, Historian, and Rey. E,
K. Drew, of Harrington, Chaplain ; also decided to hold the cele-
bration July 4th, at the Lower Epping Corner. A program was
posted and carried out as far as the weather would permit, A sunrise
salute was fired by Jethro P. Hartford, a street parade at 7 a. m,,
base ball at 8, and dinner at 12 m.
The Harrington Brass Band was in service all day and dis-
coursed nice music, which was highly appreciated. The literary
exercises were held in the Union Church, the weather not permit-

ting them in open air, as previously arranged. At1:30 p. m. the
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crowded house was called to order by the President, and the

following exercises were carried out:

First—Mausic by the Band
Second—Prayer by the Chaplain.
Third—History by the Historian.
Fourth— Singing by the Choir.
Fifth—Impressive speeches by Hon, John F. Lynch and Geo.
W. Drisko, Esq., editor of the Machias Union, of Machias.
Sixth—Oration by Rev. A. J. Turner, of Columbia Falls.
Last—Singing America by the audience, and giving three
hearty cheers for the speakers and the old town of Columbia.
Fireworks and a dance ended the great Centennial Celebra-

tion of the old town of Columbia.



INTRODUCTORY AND PRELIMINARY REMARHKS
BY THE HISTORIAN.

In writing the following historical sketches of Columbia in
the brief space of time alloted me I have done the best I could.
My friends have responded promptly in assisting me in this almost
Hevculean task, The longer we drift away from the incidents of
our fathers, their doings and farily history, where they came from
and where they settled as pioneers in the town, the less likely we
are to get a true written history. Chronology in history is the
hardest to remember, and the hardest to obtain. Students of
history will tell you that much of the history of the world rests
- upon old tradition, and that most all historians are partial writers.
American historians will err on the side of their own country. So
the English, the French, the Greek, the Roman and the Jewish
historians have not written much impartial history. The history
of nations, states and towns should be ecarefully written, not in
a hurried manner, but after most profound research and patient
inquiry. One hundred and twenty years ago a nation was born
and when christened its name was called the “United States of
America,"” and in its infancy it proudly took its place among the
great, the older and the most powerful nations of the earth, and
took for its motto, “Z Piuribus Unum,” one of many. One of
thirteen states into one nation-and under one government ; and
soon adopted for its emblem or flag, having on its surface of red,
white and blue bunting, thirteen stripes end thirteen stars. The
thirteen stripes represent the thirteen oviginal states, and the stars
the number of states. As a state is acmitted into this union of
st tes anothuer star is put on the flag. until now there should be
forty-five stars. ‘Those stars are the emblems of a higher destiny.
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The ethereal blue is a fit emblem of purity and freedom. That
spotless white the emblem of truth and virtue, and with fervent red
the emblem of pure devotion to our country. Seventy-six years
ago a state was born and soon took its place as the z3d state in
our union of states, and the twenty-three stars was placed on our
flag ; and when christened it took for its name, the State of Maine,
and soon adopted for its motto; “Dizige,” meaning, “I lead;"
and if you know of the high position our delegation occupies in
congress today yon must be convinced the motto was well selected
and well carried out. We are proud to be ranked as the 1o4th
town in our noble state. But as we were in the District of Maine
twenty-four years, and under the laws of Massachusetts before
Maine became a state, we must give credit to that state for much
of our childhood training. We are proud of such a mother whose
motto should be a leader in education and patriotism. An-
niversaries of many kinds are held, and we believe they are proper
and profitable, and serve as mile stones in the history of nations,
states, towns and individuals. In writing this history the plan I
shall pursue is to first write recorded history as found on the town
records and in the Adjutant General's report, and then traditional
history as obtained from family records and aged citizens. In some
instances we shall go behind the incorporation of the town in the
traditional history of pioneer families, and some events in the first
and early settlement of the town. If we err in some instances we
hope to be pardoned.



RECORDED HISTORY.

Commonwealth of Massachuseltts—In the year of our Lord, 1796,
an act to incorporate the Plantations No. 12 and 13, west of
Machias, in the County of Washington, into a town by the
name of Columbia :

Be ‘it Exacrep—By the Senate and House of Representa-
tives in general court assembled, and by the authority of the same,
that the Plantations No. 1z and 13, west of Machias, in the County
of Washington, bounded as follows, to wit : Beginning at the south-
east corner of Plantation No. 13, on the head line of No. 6 ; thence
running west 12 1-4 miles on said line of No. 6 and No. 5 to a
corner ; bounded on the easterly side by No. 11 ; thence running
north 5 3-4 miles to a corner which terminates in a pond ; thence
east on the southerly bounds of Townships No. 18 and 19, 10 1-4
miles ; thence south 5 miles and 209 rods on the easterly line of
Township No. 22 to the first mentioned bounds, together with all
of the inhabitants thereon, be and thus hereby are incorporated
into 2 town by the name of Columbia, and said town is hereby
vested with all the powers, privileges and immunities which «ther
towns in the Commonywealth do or may enjoy ;

And be it further enacted that Alexander Campbell, Esq., be
and is empowered to issue his warrant, directed to some suitahle
person, inhabitant of said town, requiring him to warn a meeting of
the said inhabitants of said town at such a time and place as shall
b= in such warrant for the purpose of choosing such town officers
as other towns are empowered to choose in the month of March
or April, annually. In the House of Representatives, Feb. 6, 1796.
This bill having had three several readings, passed to be enacted.

Epwarp H. Ronins,
Speaker of the House.
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In the Senate, Feb. 8, r796.° This bill baving had two
several readings, passed to be enacted.
THoMAS Daws,
President pro fem of the Senate.
Feb. 8, 1796. Approved by the Governor.
SAMUEL ADAMS.

True copy attest: JoBN AVERY, JR., Secrefary.
°

Under this act the first meeting was called by Obediah Allen,
‘constable of the town of Columbia, the 18th day of April, 1796,
at the dwelling house of Joseph Fatten. This, we believe, was
once known as the Woodward House, and later on, a little while
before it was torn down, it was called the Bee Hive. Joseph Patten,
at the time the town was incorporated, was town clerk, and Thomas
Ruggles, William Wass and David Wass, were the selectmen; At
the first regular annual meeting Benjamin Ruggles was chosen
moderator; Wm. Bucknam, town clerk; Elisha Coffin, Thomas
Ruggles and Gowen Wilson, selectmen ; Joseph Patten, treasurer.
‘Time and space would not allow me to report all the proceedings
at the annual town meetings.  Extracts will be made as we pass
:along, which may be worth recording in this history. To prove
that Columbia early disapproved of foreign immigration, I will
write what the Selectmen ordered the constable to do:

WasHINGTON, ss.  Zo any Constable of the Town of Columiia.
(GREETING :

You are hereby, in the name of the Commonwealth of Massa-
chusetts, to warn and give notice to. Samuel Marston, Sarah, his
wife, and all the family, who have lately come into this town for
the purpose of abiding therein, not having obtained a legate, the
town's consent, therefore that they all depart the limits thereof
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within twenty days, and of this precept with your doings thereon,
you are to make return into the office of the Town Clerk within
twenty days next coming, that such further proceedings may be as
the law directs.

. Given under our hands and seals at Columbia aforesaid this
2g9th day of March, A. D, 1798.

THoyAs RUGGLES,

Ermsna Corriy, - Selectmen of Columbia,
Gowey WiLsox, j

WasHiveToN, ss.  Columbia, April 7, 1798.

Pursuant to the within precept, I have notified and warned
the within named Samuel Marston, Sarah, his wife, and family, the
limits of said town by reading the warrant to them.

NatHAN WHITNEY,

Fees; 62 cents. Constable of Columbia,

Attest :—JOSEPH PATTEN, Clerk.

At their annual town meeting in April, 1801, the town voted
to raise $75 for the support of the gospel. Also that Deacon
Dayid Wass be an agent to hire or engage a person or persons to
supply or preach the gospel.

At a special legal meeting of the inhabitants of the town of
Columbia, the sth day of April, A. D. 180z, for the purpose of
drawing two good and lawful men to serve as Grand Jurors, was
drawn from the box, Mr. Isaac Nash and Joseph Patten, Esq.

Attest ; WiLLian Bucksas, Zoamn Clerk,
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At the same meeting, Article 26, the town voted that the 850
that were raised for the support of the gospel shall be appropriated
to the use of schuols,

At the annual town meeting of 1803 a vote was passed to let
hogs go at large, being lawfully yoked.

At a legal meeting of the inhabitants of Columbia, in the
County of Washington, holden on the first Monday of September,
being the 6th day of the month, 1819, to give in their votes for
the approbation or disapprobation of the constitution as prepared
by the convention of delegates assembled at Portland on the ad
Monday of Qctober, last, pursuant to an act entitled, “an act re-
lating to the separation of the District of Maine from Massachu-
setts proper and forming the same into a separate and independent
state, The whole number of votes given in said town were sorted,
counted and declaration thereof made in open meeting of said
town by the selectmen who presided at said meeting, and there
were twenty votes given in, of which nine were in favor of the
constitution prepared by the convention as aforesaid, and eleven
were ‘opposed to said constitution.

Attest: IcuasoD Bucksam, Town Clerk.

So we see that a majority then, of the voters of the town,
chose to remain under the laws and control of their mother state,
rather than set up for themselves, but other older and larger towns
thought different and the District of Maine became a state.  From
this date we take quite a leap in the town's recorded history.

In the year 1862, at the annual town meeting, Charles A.
Wilson was elected town clerk to succeed his father, Truman Wil-
son, who had filled that office since the year 1840, twenty-two
consecutive years. March 24, 1863, the last annual town meeting
was held in Hamlin Hall, before the division of the town. In the
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year of 1863 an act was passed by the legislature of Maine divid-
ing the town on the division line between Nos. 12 and 13, setting
off the eastern half of No. 13, by a line stated in the act, a town
of itself which was named Columbia Falls. A satisfactory line
was run by Addison Dodge, Esq., of Ellsworth, and stone monu-
ments erected by both towns. Financial committees were soon
appointed by both towns to settle:all financial matters. The old
town of Columbia chose for their committee: Levi Leighton,
Abraham Nash and W. H. Puffer. The new town of Columbia
Falls chose: George Harris, George W. Ruggles and Gowen
Wilson. The former committee are all alive at this date, and the -
latter committee are all dead; your Historian of today having been
chairman of the former committee, and of course, then a resident
of Columbia. Ina few years all financial matters were amicably
settled between the two towns withont much cost or litigation;
and ever since a friendly feeling has existed between the towns.

About this time both towns were called upon for soldiers to help
put down the Southern Rebellion. According to the Adjutant
General's repost Columbia furnished for the Sixth Maine Volun-
teers as follows: Wm. K. Stiles; Fones G. Leighton, Frank G.
Leighton, Hannibal H. Leighton, Stephen S. Leighton, George
Leighton, John E. Stewart, Robert Worster, Eli Tracy and Sydney
W. Tucker. :

At the next call Columbia sent as Volunteers in the 1sth or
Heavy Artillery Regiment ;: Harrison G. Smith, who went out as
captain and was promoted to the rank of major, Joseph W. Wor-
ster, James Buzzell, William H. Cates, GeorgeS. Tibbitts, Philander
D. Low, William A, Buzzell, Albert J. Dunbar, Elisha C. Grant,
Osecar Tracy, Lewis Barton, Warren L. Hall, Joshua I. Nash, Alex-
ander Parker, William A. Sinclair, Zimri D. Tabbutt, Benjamin N,
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Tucker, and Aaron L, Worster Coluwmbia sent; to be assigned
to some regiment : Charles A. Drisko, John E. Dorr and Green
Leighten,

At the next call, for nine months, men who went south in the
22d Regiment, Columbia sent: Nathaniel White, Lincoln Rhodes,
Isaac N. Allen, Wm: H. Allen; John Buzzell, Wi I. Dorr, Venleson
E. French, George M. Di Grant, John B. Grant, Jethro P, Hartford,
Alfred E. Leighton, Jotham 8. Leighton, Warren G. Leighton, Went-
worth A. Leighton, Henry Low, Jeseph D. McKenzie; George L. Mc-
Dowell, Sydney L. Preble, David F. Wass, Charles Sinclair, Rufus
Tabbut, Amos H. Tucker, John Webb, Algenon A. Worster, Asa T.
Worster, James Worster, Moses Worsterand William G. Worster. In
the thirteen sent Matthew Wood and Philander F. White went first
in the navy and then enlisted in the 2oth Regiment. Sent in the
rith Regiment ; Columbus Nash and James McCarty,

The old pioneers of Golumbia and their descendants were
always loyal to their government and willingly responded to
every call when help was needed in defense of their country’s
honor. T would that I had time to speak of the many deeds of
valor these veterans of the Grand Army of the Republic performed
to save their country from being rent in twain. Can time ever
efface from the records or from memory such heroic deeds, hardly
found in Roman or Greeian story?

We must here leave the recorded history as found in the
town records and Adjutant General’s report and take up tradition-
al history of the pioneer families, or fitst settlers of the town,
where they eame from, when they settled, what they did and who
their children were. This has been gathered from family records
and verbally from the oldest residents in town. Of course so
hastily gotten up there may be some errors in it.
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The first settlers, as tradition says, in Columbia, were two
brothers, William and Noah Mitchell, who came from Falmotth,
Me., about 1750. It issaid that in entering the mouth of Pleas-
ant river they saw large areas of marsh land which they thought
would afford them great privilege for cutting hay for stock, which
privilege they soon utilized in cutting and feeding-it to cattle
brought there. They at first constructed rude log houses to live in
and hovels for their cattle. Itis further said that William built
the first frame house in town.  Exactly where located it is not
known, but there are old cellars on Bryant's Hill, and on Coffin’s
Point. Capt. Joseph Wilson, who died Dec. éz, 1796, aged 72
years, was one of the first settlers in Columbia.  Capt. John Buck-
nam came from North Yarmouth, an early settler, and scon com-
menced to build mills, and commenced the lumbering business in
1773- He married Mary, daughter of Joseph Wilson, who came
from Kittery with his family and went into the lumber business
with others, Joseph Patten, a blacksmith from Wells, Me., settled
here about 1792. James Bailey also came from Wells and settled
here in 1802. He set up the first coloring and cloth dressing ma-
chine, which often went by the name of the “Fulling Mill.” Cloth
for yofir historian’s freedom suit was fulled, colored and dressed in
this mill. After the decease of James Bailey, Jotham Lippincott,
Esq., in 1822, married his widow, and’ in company with Henry
Bailey, son of James Bailey, continued the business; .and at the
decease of Lippincott and Bailey, A. A. Lippincott, son of Jotham
Lippincott, continued the business as long as it would pay.

The first resident minister was Elder Joshua Young, a Baptist,
who settled here about 1798, and returned to Massachusetts in
1800. Doctor Caleb Haskell, from Massachusetts, was the first
regular physician to settle here in 1799. He also returned to
Massachusetts in 1812. He put up the first wool carding machine
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in Columbia. Wool carding was carried on afterwards a long time
by Samuel Bucknam, succeeded by his son Charles C., who at this
date runs the machine. Sheep husbandry is about played out, and.
but a small quantity of wool is brought to the mill. Jonathan
Western, Esq., was the first lawyer to settle in Columbia, in 1802.
As this was then a new and sparsely settled country it was a hard
place for a professional man to get a living in, and they did not
stay long.

THE CARLTON FAMILY.

John Carlton/was born in Methuen, Mass., in 1772 ; married
there and had one child by the name of Samuel ; lost his wife there
and then came to Maine to do blacksmith work for Joseph Patten
and others, who were building vessels here at that time. He soon
married here a woman by the name of Amie and had the follow-
ing named children: Esther, Pamelia, Daniel, Dayid, Isaac and
Nancy Carlton. He died in Columbia in 1814. At this date
Daniel is alive at the age of 88 years.

THE LOW FAMILY.

Jenathan Low moved from the town of Sanford, Me., into
Columbia, when Daniel Low, his son, was four years old. He
first settled on the Enoch Low place, where George Norton now
lives. Afterwards he sold that place to his son Enoch, and moved
on to the place now occupied by A. J. Merritt. A. J. Merritt at
the death of his mother, Mrs. John Merritt, went to live with
Deacon Daniel Low, when he was four years old.  Jonathan Low
was a revolutionary soldier. Daniel, his son, was a long time
deacon of the Baptist church in Columbia,
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THE JOHN McCASLIN FAMILY.

John MecCaslin was a revolutionary soldier and when the war
was over he came into Columbia and married Susie Knowles. He
took up the place where Asaph Leighton now lives, as government
land ; paid only $5, which was for making out the title. He had
nine children: Reuben, Andrew, Alexander, John, David, Shep-
ard, Hannah, Mary and Sally,

THE ISAAC LEIGHTON FAMILY.

About 1760 two -brothers, Thomas and Samuel Leighton,
came from Falmouth, Me., to the Narraguagus river. Samuel, as
near as we can learn, settled on the lot now in the possession of
Richard P. Willey. His sons were: Theodore, Isaac, Parrot and
Phineas. Isaac was born Feb. 25, 1763. He married Mary
Worster in 1813, a sister to Deacon Moses Worster.  He built a
small house down south of the Epping road, leading over the Ep-
ping plains. After he got a farm cleared he built a house and
barn up on the said road. It was near the house which Hollis J.
Leighton now occupies. He had nine children: Moses, Samuel,
Daniel, Levi, Harrison S., Aaron, Lovicy, Sally and Anna. The
only one living at this date is Flarrison T., who will be g5 ytars
old the 25th of next November. He livesin a house a few rods
from where he was born. He retains his faculties and badily
health to a remarkable degree.

THE ARCHER FAMILY.

John Archer was born in England, March 26, 1752. He was
a soldier in the revolutionary war and came into Columbia in 1789.
He was a brick mason by trade and raised a family of twenty-three
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children. Next to the last was the well known David Cobb
Archer. Some of these children died young, and only nine of
them were bora in Columbia.

THE INGERSOLL FAMILY.

William Ingersoll, the first Ingersoll settler, known as Governor
Ingersoll, came to Columbia in 1779 from Varmouth, Me. He
married Elizabeth Knowles; built a house in Epping, then so
called, but in the town of Columbia, a little southeast of the corner
on what has been known as the Ingersoll farm. The old cellar
can now be found near the line between the land of W. H. Wor
ster and that of L. P. Ingersoll. He, with others, built a2 mill
which was burned, and the place where it was located: is now
known as the “Burnt Mill Rips.” Their children were William,
Nathaniel, Samuel, James, Thomas, Sarah, Eliza and Susan,
Thomas went to Pennsylvania and settled there. William married
Susan Wass and built the house at the corner, now owned by W.
H. Worster. They had fifteen children: Abigail, El, Elvina,
Green, Root, Luther, Temperance, Irene, Mary, Mellen, Hezekiah,
Margaret, Rebecea, Fannie and Abi. Nathaniel married (1) Pru-
dence Stewart. Children: Luther, Daniel, Nathaniel, Ulmer,
Julia, Dency, Sally and Ruth. (2) Married Susanna Sawyer.. No
children. Samuel married Elizabeth Look. Children: Phebe,
William, Cynthia, Eliza, Nathaniel, David and Susan. James mar-
ried Margaret Wass. Children: Rebecca, Levi, Emma, Heman,
Maria and Christiana.  Sarah married Robert Allen, Children:
Amos, Henry, Sophia, John Truxton, Francis, Joseph and Jones,
Mary married Solomon Root, and moved to Pennsylvania, where
her brother went. Eliza married I[saac Littlefield. Children :
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Isaac C. and Caroline. Susan married one Hines; one child.
They settled in Brewer, Me.

[1 have a more detailed account of this large family on account of its

prominence in settling this part of the town; and 1 was assisted more by the
family:

Governor Ingersoll died in 1807, and as no stone was placed
at his grave his last resting place cannot be found, but we presume
that he was buried-a few rods west of the Union Church.

DR. ALPHEUS CHANDLER'S FAMILY.

Dr. Alpheus S. Chandler was born in Elliot, Me., 1796; ed-
ucated in Phillips’ Exeter Academy and graduated from the Har-
vard Medical school. He married Christiana Milliken of Belfast,
Me., and commenced the practice of medicine in Columbia in
1820 ; had three children: Dr. Charles P., Emeline A. and Sam-
uel H. He was an able physician and had a wide and lucrative
practice, extending from East Machias to Steuben. FHe wonld
often face the toughest weather to attend the poorest family in
town, He died July r1, 1871.

JOSEPH CRANDON’S FAMILY.

Joseph Crandon was born in New Bedford, Mass., in 1802,
and after enjoying a whaling voyage, learned the tanner's trade.
As a journeyman tanner he drifted down into Columbia, Me., and
hired with Daniel Townsley to work in his tan yard, He was a
steady, industrious young man and soon captured for his first wife
Ruth, a daughter _of Thomas Ruggles. He soon bought out Mr.
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Townsley. He built the house and lived in it until he died, now
reconstructed into a hotel, called the Crandon House. He also
built the store which is now occupied by Levi Leighton & Son. He
also built several vessels which will be mentioned under the head
of vessels. Children by his first wife: George R., John H,,
Sophia and Augustus. He married for his second wife Mrs. Alice
B. Small. Children: Alice, Joseph and Ruth. He was a practi-
cal business man. He died in 1883.

GIDEON ALLEN'S FAMILY.

(zideon Allen married Miss Susan Rideont. Where they came
from has not been ascertained. In the history of the Allen family,
which follows, his name is not found, but nevertheless, they were
true pioneers of Columbia. They went back into the wilderness,
some three miles, away from roads and schools, and made a clear-
ing and erected rude dwellings to live in. Here, where the farm
on which W. H. Ingersoll now lives, he raised the following named
children: Obediah, Abraham, Isaac, Nickolas, Jacob, Dolly,
Polly, Prudence, Ruth and Hannah. Obediah married Polly
Mausfield., Abraham married Polly Worster. Issac married
Judith Nash. Nickolas married Polly Dorr. Jacob married Fannie
Tinney. Dolly married Thomas Sinclair. Polly married (1) Brown
then McKenzie. Prudence married Moses Leighton. Hannah mar-
ried Peter Magee. Ruth married Christopher Chandler.

THE ALLEN FAMILY.

The Allen family, of Maine, sprang from a Charles Allen, who
came over from England in 1635. Obediah Allen, with brothers
Robert and Samuel, settled in Machias, Me., over one hundred
years ago. Obediah moved to Robbinston, Me., about 1793,
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where he settled and brought up a large family.  He died there in
1863, at the age of g9 years. Robert and Samuel settled in Columbia,
Me., where some of their descendants now live. They all had
large families. Rev. William Allen was one of the early Baptist
ministers of Maine. He was associated with Rev. Isaac Case,
Daniel Merrill and others. Gen. Ethan Allen, of Vermont, was a
connection of the family, belonging to the Connecticut branch,
Capt. Obediah Allen w as an old settler in Robbinston in 1798 ;
he married Ruth ‘\ndrewfc of Machias, daughter of Ephriam An-
drews, who came from Scarboro in 1765.

MOSES WORSTER FAMILY.

Moses Worster came from Old York on or before 1775. He
married Susanna Knowles, of Addison, in 1802, He settled in
that part of Columbia known as Saco. Children: Amos, Leon-
ard, Moses, Molly, Judy, Hannah and Deborah. He was a long

time ‘deacon of the Baptist church.

THE TABBUTT FAMILY.

Joseph Tabbutt came from England when a young man. He
married Betsy Drisko ; tarried a short time down to Moose Neck
and then came up and settled on the Ames place, on the south
side of the Epping road, southwest from the place where George
M. Coffin now lives. He afterwards sold this place and took up a
new place on the southern border of Township No. 1g, in middle
division, where A. W. Tabbutt now lives. Children: Susan,
Thomas, John, Moses, Olive, William and Rufus. All the boys
settled near by in adjoining lots; hence the name “Tibbetts-
town" was applied to the northern part of the town. They all
had large families except Rufus,
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THE PUFFER FAMILY.

John Puffer was born in Canton, Mass.,, Nov. 29, 1793, and
died in Columbia, Dec. 28, 1877. He married Catharine R. Stan-
wood, who was born in Gloucester, Mass., May 6, 1797. He en-
listed in the navy in the war of 1812 and was taken prisoner soon
after and lodged in Dartmore prison, where he remained two
years and five months. He came into Columbia about the year
1823, and bought the betterments of the place at Little River, so
called, of Moses l.eighton, where his son John and daughters
Taphenus and Arabella now live. ‘Three of his children were born
in Boston, one in Frankfort, Me., and the rest in Columbia.
Childrens Jerusha A, Catharine R., Mary A., John, Alice H,,
Redman, Elijah R., Taphenus N., Winthrop J.,, William H. and
Arabella Puffer.  He was active in town affairs and took an interest
in building up society.

THE TUCKER FAMILY.

Among the early colonists were two young Englishmen, Josiah
and Samuel Tucker. Samuel settled in Columbia, in the neighbor-
hood of Saco and raised up a large family. Mark, Thomas, Justice,
Deborah and Sally, were a part of his family., fustice Tucker mar-
ried Sally Leighton.

THE DORR FAMILY.

Jonathan Dorr came from Wales, England, and first settled
in Steuben, Me., where he married Eunice Downes. He then
came into Columbia in 1788. He had four children: Bedford,
who matried Ruth Whitten: Polly married 'Nicholas Allen, Jane
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married Richard Barefield, and Jonathan married Judith N. Wor-
ster. Jonathan raised up a large fumily and died July 22, 1883,
aped gz years, 3 months and 4 days.

THE COFEIN FAMILY.

A full history of the Coffinfamily as furnished by Dr. Charles

J- Millikeen, of Cherryjield; Me.:
X

Sir Richard Coffin came from Normandy with William, the
Norman, and fought at the battle of Hastings, Oct. 14, 1066. He
received for his reward the manor of Alwingtzn, county of Devon,
a fair reach of fields, woodlands and sea coast, looking out upon
the Bristol Channel. Upon receiving the estate he made solemn oath
Lof loyalty to his sovereign. From that hour to the present century
the estate thus acquired descended from father to son. the eldest
born of suceessive generations, bearing the name of the knight who
rendered his sovereign signal service in that battle which in its
effects must ever be regarded as one of the turning points in
history. A direct descendant of Sir Richard was (1st) Peter
Coffin, who married Joan Thimber. They had children: Tris-
tram, John, Eunice and Mary. Peter Coffin died in 1628. (2d)
Tristram, son of Peter Coffin and Joan Thimber was born in 1605,
probably at the parish of Brixton, two or three hours’ walk from
Plymouth, as hewas living there when 15 yearsold. He was 23 years
old on that day in 1628, when the ship Abigail with John Endicot
and his fellow colonists sailed from Dorchester for the New World,
Tristram married Dionis Stevens. Children: Peter, Tristram,
Elizabeth and James. These were born in England. In 1642
Tristram and his family, consisting of his wife, mother; two sisters
and five children came to America and settled at Salisbury on the
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Merrimac river, where Mary, John and Stephen were born. We
hear of him at Haverhill, Mass., the same year, witnessing the deed
given by Passaconaway to the settlers of that town. In 1644 heis
keepinga tavern and ferry at the crossing between Salishuryand New-
bury. For 18 years they lived at Salisbury. But yearafter year the
surroundings of these hardy, quiet, loving pioneers had been growing
more and more unsatisfactory to them until finally the unpleasant
snnoyance was succeeded by a feeling of insecurityfwhich soon
deepened into one of depression and almost alarm, and they
looked about them anxiously for relief. From the unrighteous
judgments and persecutions of fanatical judges, magistrates and
ministers of the Holy gospel, from exorbitant fines, imposed as
penalties for deeds of kindness done their fellow men: from
whipping post, the prison, thé stocks, the stake and the gallows,
which in that black, unnatural night of bigotry and superstition,
made life upon the coast of Massachusetts a veritable hell upon
earth. From these, it was, they fled in indignation, in dismay and
well nigh despair.  In Nantucket our patriarch lived for more than
twenty years a prominent citizen, taking an active part in all mat-
ters connected with the welfare of the common domain. In 1675
we find him with other representatives from Nantucket and
Martha's Vineyard, before Gov. Andros in New York, in a contested
matter, relating to the courts of these two islands. His autograph
letters written to Gov. Andros about this time, which may be seen
at the office of the Secretary of State at Albany, are neatly penned
and well composed, indicating his possession of a better education
than was common at that time. (3d) John Coffin, born of Tristram
and Dionis married Deborah Austin. They had eleven children,
(5) Richard Coffin, born Oct. 20, 1729, son of Tristram and Mary
Bowker, married Mary Cook (date not known, bat about 1750.)
Richard and his family came from Vineyard and toock up a lot on
the west side of the Branch and the same that in after years was

A
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occupied by Deacon David Coffin, his grandson. The child-
ren of Richard Coffin and Mary Cook were: Mary, Matthew,
Richard, Elisha, Abigail, Susanna, John, Jane and Temple.
Deacon Elisha, of Richard, married Ruth Cates and settled on a
lot in Columbia, (Epping,) the same now occupied by Joseph W.
Coffin. Their children were: Ambrose, married Sarah Sawyer;
Campbell died Apr. 6, 1807, aged g years ; Leonice martied Levi
Leighton, son of Isaac Leighton, and Hannah married John Wil-
son, son of Joseph Wilson, Jr. Deacon Elisha died Jan. 22,
1830, aged about 72 years. Matthew Coffin, of Richard and Mary,
was born at Edgartown, Martha's Vineyard, about 1756, and came
with his family to Addison about 1768. He married Jane Wass,
of Wilmot, (1st) and settled on a lot next west of the Deacon
David Wass lot, Their children were (1st) Matthew married
Lydia Whitten. Richard married Hannah Whitten, (3d) Elisha
married Rebecca Drisko. (4th) David married Hannah Nash,
of Abraham. (3d) Benjamin C. married Lucy Wass, of William.
(6th) Susan married Joseph Wass, of Wilmot (2d). (7th) Abi-
gail married (1st) Tucker, (2d) James Crowley, (3d) Leighton.
(8) Polly married Joel Hall. (9) Sarah married Simeon Hall.
(10) Betsy married Samuel Small.  (11) Permelia married Adol-
phus Corthell and (1z) Miriam married William Wass, of Wil-
liam (1st). Matthew Coffin died Jan. 17, 1830, aged 74 years;
his wife, Jane Wass, died Dec. 28, 1853, aged g2 years, 4 months
and 1o days. It is said that all the Coffins in the United States
are descendants of Tristram, who came over in 1642.

SMITH FAMILY.

Eben Smith came from Middleboro, Mass., to. Steuben, when
he was 10 years old: From thence he went on a whaling voyage,
which lasted about two years. He built the first tide mill in Jones-
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boro, when he married Deborah Farnsworth and came into Col-
umbia in 15827 to enter into the lumber business in the neighbor-
hood of Saco. He had nine children: Sylvina, Diadem, Pris-
cilla, Russell, William, Harrison G., Richard (who died young),
Eri H. and Harriet. Harrison G. servcd in the.war of the rebel-
lion and was promoted from captain to major for meritorious service.
He married Mary A. Puffer, daughter of John Puffer,

CAPT. THOMAS RUGGLES’ FAMILY.

(,apt ‘Thomas Ruggles came from Rochester, Mass 1IN 1770,
He soon became a prominent business man. He was postmaster
a number of years, and extensively engaged in the mercantile and
farming business. He was married to Ruth Clapp, of Dorchester,
Mass., in 1796. He was then 26 years old. Children William,
Charles, Frederick, George W., Benjamin F., Ruth, Betsey, Lucy
and Sophia. He was a military man and served as an officer in:
the militia of the state. In 1820 he was commissioned a Justice
of the Court of Sessions. He once owned or controlled the
Township of land now the town of Centreville. He built the “old
Ruggles House,” so widely known for its unique and expensive
finish. The westermn room or parlor is finished with hand-carved
work; said to have cost $1000. We hope that this ancient struc-
ture will be allowed to remain as a relict of former times. Of late
it has attracted the attention of many visitors, Lizzie Ruggles,
the daughter of Frederick and Caroline Ruggles, the only one by
this name in town, now occupies it. She is unmarried and the
6nly one of the family living.

THE NASH FAMILY.

Joseph Nash, as far as we can find any record, came from
Falmouth or Scarboro, about 1770. He was the first Nash to
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settle on Pleasant river. He built a log house on the north or east
side of the present road, leading from Addison Point to the Branch
and “took up” a squat on quite a large tract of marsh and wood
land which he retained and passed into possession of his sons,
grandsons and great grandsons, who yet own a part of it. Joseph’s
sons were : Isaiah, Abraham, Joseph, Jr., Ebenezer and others,
with daughters. The number of children is not known. ' Isaiah
was born in Yarmouth, May 10, 1763. Judith Downs was born in
Hebron, Me., Sept. 11, 1763, married in Yarmouth and removed
within a year after marriage to Columbia and settled on what was
known as a part of the Shaw-Nash or Ebenezer Nash farm, where
Abraham Nash and Edgar White now live. Isaiah and Judith's
children were: Isaac, born Sept. 10, 1783, died young; Joseph,
born Apr. 5, 1784, died at Calais ; Elizabeth, born June 13§ 1486 ;
Jacob, Mar. 28, 1788 ; Jennie, Mar. 25, 1790; Polly, Nov. I,
1791 ; Amaziah, Jan. 23, 1794, died in Iowa ; Joshua, May 2, 1793,
died in Columbia ; Isaac, born May 7, 1797, died in Harrington ;
Judith, born Dec. 27, 1798 ; Susan, Aug. 17, 18c0. Susan married
Jesse L. Nash, son of Abraham Nash ; Susan died in 1839 ; Jesse
L. died Jan. 1888. He was the father of Mrs. I. Woodbury White,
Mrs. Esther C. Drisko, and Elizabeth Whitney, deceased. Susan
married B. F. Spinger ; VanBuren married Abbie Dorman, of Har-
rington and now resides in Holliston, Cal., and Jesse L. Nash, Jr.,
who lives on the homestead at the Branch, married Eliza, daughter
of Ransom Nash.

THE MILLIKEN FAMILY.

James A, Milliken came into Columbia about 1840 as a
school master, and soon married Lucretia B. Coffin, only daughter
of Col. B. C. Coffin, of Columbia. About this time he commeneced
to preach the Universalist doctrine, which was not very popular at
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that time. He built a house in 1846 on the south side of the
main Epping road, leading by the Union church, which was burned
a few years ago. After a few years of preaching in Columbia, In-
dian River, Machias and East Machias, he commenced to study
law in the office of George E. Talbot in Machias, and soon opened
a law office in Cherryfield. He was for many years Judge of Pro-
bate, and was holding that office when he was stricken down with
a paralytic shock. He wrote and published a pamphlet; entitled :
* Narraguagus Valley Notes," which is of much value as a book
of reference. He had one son, Dr. Charles J. Milliken, born in
Columbia ; graduated from a medical school, and is now having a
lucrative practice in Cherryfield.

=

The Bucknams and Willsons figured largely in the early settle-
ment of Columbia. First securing the mill privilege and about all the
land adjacent thereto ; they then built mills and dwelling houses,
and took an active part in building up the town.

THE BUCKNAM FAMILY.

Samuel Bucknam probably removed to Falmouth in the Pro-
vince of Maine, about 1720. John Bucknam was married to Mary
Wilson in Columbia Jan. 27, 1773. Children: William, Anna,
John, Jeremiah, Ichabod, Mary, Samuel, Robert P, and Nathan.
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THE WILSON FAMILY.

Joseph Wilson was born in Kittery, July 5, r725. He mar-
ried Mary Swett, of Falmouth. Came to Pleasant river or Co-
lumbia about May 25, 1762. Children: Mary, Joseph, Ichabod,
Gowen, Nathaniel, Anna S. and Phebe. He built and occupied
the Dr, Chandler house. A genealogical history of these families
can be found in, “Narraguagus Valley Notes,” by J. A. Milliken,
Esq., written in 1887. We have no reliable data as to exactly
where or when they first built their houses and mills.



TRecord of the Vessels
BUILT IN COLUMBIA,

The first vessel built in Columbia was named after the fown.
Shewas a topsail schooner of g8 tons. Joseph Patten, Gowen Wilson
and Mrs. Mary Bucknam were the builders. Capt. William Wass
was master. The next was the Hiram of 130 tons, built in the
same yard by Mrs. Bucknam, Wilmot Wass and William Buck-
nam. These vessels were built in the yard afterwards occupied by
Isaac Carlton. About this time Joseph Patten and Joseph Fenno
built a ship yard near what is now known as Whitney’s Landing,
where they built several vessels, including two large ships. They
were (riven out of the business by the embargo act in 1806. From
this time until 1830, but little was done in shipbuilding. About
this time Jotham Lippincott built a small schooner, called the
Valant, He afterwards built the schooner Signet. He and others
afterwards built the sloop Henry. About this time Joseph Cran-
don began building vessels; his first being the brig Radius, followed
by the Sultana, Tangient, Alice Bently and E. H. Conant. He
built vessels of larger tonnage ; among them were: Bark Joseph
Crandon and the brig A. Richards, which was destroyed by the

“ Confederate cruiser Alabama. Mr. Crandon closed his shipbuild-
ing at Joneshboro, where he built the schooners Kioka and Sarah P.
In the year 1847 James Bailey built the schooner Wreath. During
the year 1855 Arthur Bucknam built the schooner Sylvia of 82 tons.
In the year following he built the Crystal Palace of 130 tons.
William Bucknam and aothers built a schooner called the Fannie
and May. Isaac Carlton in 185: built the schooner E. Wright,
and afterwards the Mary E. Gage and the I. Carlton. He also
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built the brig Callao, and others. His tonnage of vessels built sums
up 2900 tons. In r8y7r John H. Crandon commenced building in
his father's yard. He built the Sarah and Emma, Atalage, John
Swan, Marena, Lenora and J. C. Crandon ; and barks H. L. Gregg,
Justin H. Ingersoll, Charles Deering, J. B. Rabel and John Swan ;
also the schooners Yreka, Josie, Eagle, Rock, Jennie Hall and
Lucy Belle.

VESSELS BUILT AT THE BRANGH.

Florence, B. F. Nash, Pedro, Mary and Gertrude, were built
in the Ransom Nash shipyard ; A. H. Wass and Minnie Miller in
the J. L. Nash yard, and the Samuel Train and Wave in the Sam-
ugl Drisko shipyard: J. Lowell Nash, son of D. M. Nash, and Geo.
B. Drisko, son of Samuel Drisko, were master builders of some of
them.
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Citizens of Columbia

WHO HAVE GONE OUT FROM US TO SEEK THEIR

FORTUNES IN OTHER LANDS.

In 1849 we sent around Cape Hom, in the Oriental from East
Machias, the Agate from Machias and the Belgrade from Cherry-
field, some of our best young men. Philander Leighton, Elisha
Nash, Stillman Magee, Benjamin Tabbutt, Hiram Tabbutt and
David Coffin, The only survivors are Philander Leighton, now in
Montana, and Stillman Magee, now in California.

We haye sent out for professional men :

Doctors—Willard E. Pineo, Charles P. Chandler, C J. Milli-
ken, A. C. Lippincott and Augustus C. Hamlin.

Ministers—Theodore F. White (Baptist), Milton F. Bridg-
ham (Methodist) and Raymond C. Drisko (Congregational).

As lawyers we have sent out—Fred C. Nash, Howard Nash,
Charles A. Bailey and Charles A. Bucknam.

The nearest we came to sending out an editor was the better
half of George W. Drisko, editor of the Machias Union; Mrs.
Esther Drisko, who was the daughter of Jesse L. Nash.

The nearest we came in sending out a vice-president—Han-
nibal Hamlin studied law a short time with his brother, Elijah L.,

in Columbia.
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As an agricultural, lumbering and shipbuilding town we have
sent abroad many skilled laborers, honest sons of toil. They can
be found in'the New England states and the Far West.

_Thus ends our first Centennial history, and the next has begun.
We can hardly realize the important position we now occupy;
standing as it were with one foot on the retiring edge of the last
century and the other on the verge of the new. We know some
of the past, but what will be the new? It will be what we make
it—noble or ignoble, happy or unhappy. Remember this and
start right.
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ROOTS OF THE PAST IN WASHINGTON COUNTY
MARGARET XELLEY ASEE

(Published in the Machias "Union Republican)

(June 9,1938)
EARLY HARRINGTON MARRIAGE INTENTIONS
(From the compilation of A.S.Willey ,arranged alphabetically

»y Mrs.Margaret Kelley Ashe)

ALEXANDER,David,agh Tsabella Strout,10-20-1834,

ALLEN,Nicholas,and Sarah Strout,3-14-1832.

ANDREWS,Jerry of C. and Mary Amn Dinsmore,10-2-1843.

ARCHER,Stillman of C.,and Serems Wakefield,11-7-1840.

BABRIGE, John,and Isabella 8trout,10-22-1834.

BAILEY,Betsey,and Francls Mullin,4-18-1836,

BENNET , Edward,of Jonesbkoro and Mergaret Fickett,3-3-1837.
John,and Betsey DinsmoTe, 3—15:;823.

BRADBURY , Samuel,and Bethiah Dinsmore16-39—1823.

BRAY,Henry,and Jonanna Leighton, 9-6-1828,

BREWER, John,and Susan Strout,5-17-1833.

BROWN,Abigail,and Warren Foster, B-6-1832.
Abigail,and James Wallace,12-22-1833.
Berthiah,and Daniel Cothell,8-14-1840.
Betsey,and Thomas A.Parker of8.,3-5-1823.
Deborah,and William Foster:Munson of Cooper,8-18-1834.
Deborah,and gprdag_ﬁrace,la-l—IBgs.
Emeline,and Jesse Strout, 10-26-1837. P
Hannah,and Leon ra strout of C., 2-10-1836.
James,and Priacilla Jordan, 8-31-1822,

John S.,and Margaret Joy, 11-8-1832.
Joseph Barber,and Rebecca Nichols,11-20-1833,

Joseph W.,and Sophronid_wallaoe, 1-3-1824,
Mary,and Ebenezer Kelley of Jonesnort,9-9-1833.
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BROWN, ( cOntinued)
Mehitable,and James Strout, 9-13-1828.
Nancy,and Nathaniel Huckins of Lubec,9-29-1837.
Oliver ,ahd Betsey Jordan, 5-5-1821.
Saloma,and Hiram Strout, 11-17-1824.
8tillman,and Ruth Tinney,11-26-1841.

Susan,and John Leighton, 10-5-1840.
William and Susen Jordan,4-13-1827.
BURKE,George of 8.,and Eliza H.Wallace, 4-13-1818,

BUZZLE ,Robert,and Mary c.Wallace,8-11-1833,

CALIGAN, Timothy of Addison,and Mary S.Hoggn,g-e—lsls.

CAMPBELL,Catherine,and Thomas A.Snow, 5-6-1824,
Dennison,and Martha Wake ield,12-21-1835.
Elizabeth,and Weston Nerritt,4-14-1831.
Margaret,and James Ray, lo—-26-1818.
Patrick,and Louise Smallidge,12-19-1825.

CARLOW,Richard of Lubec,and Huldah Dor@gn,g-,—lsza.

GATES,Joseph,and Christian Wallace, 9-6-1819.
Ruth,and Joseph Strout,lo-5-1832.

@HALLONER,Elisha,of N.B.,and Susan W.Small,5-20-1841.
CLARK,Nelson,of Machias,and Nancy W.Wallace, 11-1-1841.

COFFIN,Esther Ann,and Ben amin Fickett,1-14-1829,
James C.,and Cagferine s.Dyer,10-27-1833.

John,and Ruby Strout,11-28-1834,
Simeon,and Rebecca ash,4-4-1827.
Sophia,and Wilson Noyes of columhia,s-a-lszs.

COLE,Diana and James Warren of Addison,8-7-1819.
Nancy Ann,and Benjamin Lovell,1-21-1843.
Peter,and Eliza mall,9-15-1818.
COLLINS,Mary,and &harles W.Ray,8-9-1833.
Sophia,and Dennis DinsmoTe,1-30-1831.
COTHELL,Daniel,and Berthish Brown, 9-14-1840.
Levi,and Elsie Lei;ﬁfon,lB-lO-lBSl.
Mary,and “eorge Dinsmore,12-12-1840,
CROCKETT,William of Portland,and Abigail Libby, 3-3-1821.
CURTIS,Daniel,and Betsey Strout,1-26-1839.,

Capt.Harmon,and Thirzé 8trout,10-25-1827.
Joel G. of Ellsworth,and Joenna Leighton,9-29-p839.
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DENSMORE ,Bethiah and §§ggel Bradbury,6-20-1823.
Betsey and John Bemmett ,3-15-1828.
Dennis and Sophia Collins,1-30-1831.
Dorcas and Patrick Jordan,123-15-1840.
Eli and Marlam Smail,11-29-18286,
George D. and Mary Corthell,13-12-1840.

RMAN,Israel. and Joan Kinsley,of C.,3-1-1824, '
Josiah W. and Sophia Farnsworth of JOnesport, 5-30-18235,
Di7iovdullia Ann and Freeman Nash,8-14-18307 - _

DINSMORE,Lorana and David Patten of Beddington,5-8-1830.
Mary Ann gnd‘ﬁerr§ Andrews of C.,10-2-1842,

Mary G. and Jo illey,Jdr.,11-15-1840,

Richard g. agd Marzaret Gnggill of 0.,7-27-1839,

Susan and C.B.Pineo,10-38-1837.

William of Lubec ané Eliza A.Fickett,8-11-1841,

sAnna and William Lynch,1-17-1822, .
Betsey and Stephen Farnsworth of Neddington,2-14-1832.
Charlotte and Lphraim Strout,11-28-1835. ) -
Hannah and William Marston of J nesboro,10-17-1826.
Huldah and n_‘mﬁr‘—w rd Cariow of Lubec,9-?7-1822,

ary,and John Lawrence,of C.,3-6-1823.

DYER,Amos and Deborah A.Wallace ,8-13-1838,
Catherine and James C.Coffin of C.,10-27-1833.
Ezeklel and Mary Ray,12-12-1832,

George W. of 8,,and Elinor Ray,10-19-1832.
Lgﬁia and JPhn‘8q;jer,1-57—1§%3.
354386234 TRATTSA30080438038048

i"
).

FARNSWORTH, Sdphia of Jgnesport and Josiah Dorman,5-20-1835.
S8tephen of Neddington and Betsey Dorman,2-14-1832,

FICKETT,Alvin and Mahala Fickett,12-6-1834,
Benjamin and Esther Ann Coffin,P1.23,1-14-1829,
Benjamin and Ruth Putnam,§-1§:1830..
Eliza and William Dinsmore,of Lubec,8-11-1841,
Harriet and Eagfisf Long, 7-14-1832,
Lovina and Edw.Foster Jacobs of Col.,?7-9-1827. ,
Mahala,and Alvin Fickett,12-6-1834,
Margaret and Bawgrd Bennett of Jonesboro, 3-338827,
Mary and Williem Ray,11-1-1824,
Maria and Elisha Norton,3-27-1837. -

Moses and Eallz'50weli,of Portland,5-13-1826.
Mprtha and EFli Fogter,9-9-1833,

Otis and Sgllg erritt,11-7-1832,

Patrick and Mary Leighton,13-21-1835.
Rufus gnd Thirza Flckett,1-5-1833,

~/8ilas and Lois Strout,1-13=1836. ,
Sophia and Dpniel Eerrttt,6—16—1841. -
Sephronia O, and Rufus Parker of 8., 6-14-1838.

i ——REE

Stillman and Diana Pinkham;10-28-1832,
Susan and Lev;'Sar:ent£5-26-1822

B SRRt 1587 1883 Machiae,9-8-1827.
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FOSTER,Mrs.Ablgail,and James B.Mansfield of Portland,8-4-1840,
: Eli and Martha Ficket$9-9-1833,

John gnd Catherine Ray,8-24-1840,
Lewis and Mary Wellsce,10-25-1837.
Warren and Abigail ﬁrown,e-e-lasz.

GAY,Amos & Patience Leighton,?7-11-1825,
Bulah and E1Iaa'r1e§ett,3—az-1eas.
GODFREY,William and Dolly Wallace,10-25-1837.

GRACE,Jordan and Deborah Brown,12-1-1833.
T Richard & Sally Jorden,12-2-18320,

GRADY,Mary and Adam Wallace,10-29-1831. N
GRIFFIN,Hohn L. and Cynthia Leighton,4-19-1836. .
GUPTILL,Margaret of Cherryfield and Richard Dingmore, 7-27-1839

HALL,John and Dorcas Willey of C.,4-5-1820.
Sephronia& John J.Willey,8-20-1829.

HINCKLEY,Herbert and gbigail Strout,9-2-1826,
HOGAN,Mary S. and TimothyCaligsn of Addison,9-6-1818.
HOOPER, Samuel,and Mary “eighton,2-39-1840.

HOWELL,S8ally of Portland & Moses Fickett,5-13-1828,
HUCKINS,Nathaniel of Lubec,and -- Brown,9-29-1837.

JACOBS ,Edw.Foster of Columbia & Lovina Fickett,7-9-1827,

JORDAN,Abigail & Joseph Tucker,of C.,2-11-1832,
Betsey & Oliver Brown,5-5-1821.
Ebenezer & Ruth ®abba e, 3-24-1830.
Patrick & Dorecas insmore,13-15-1840,
Priseilla & Jgmes Browh, 8-31-1823.

D —————— e Y

S8ally & Richard g?aee,la-a-lezo.
Susan & William ®rown,4-13-1827.

JOY,Jane & Patrishe Killy #-25-1827,
= Margaret & John B.Nrewn 11-Besoa.

KELLY,Ebenezer of Jonesboro & Mary Broyn

KILLY,Patricks dane Joy,4-25-1827.
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KINSLEY,Joann & lsrpel Dorman, 3-1-1824,

LAWRENCE,Emma & Woodbury Leighton,3-21-1843,
thn & Mar ary EErman 4-§:1822

LEIGHTON,Cynthia & John L.Griffin,4-19-1836,

Betsey & Baniel Leveit,?—zs-lsas
‘:nten,8—13-1829

~~"a"‘ hten,1-20-1835,
Elizabeth & Dg .heighton,l-20-1835,
Elsie & Levi 3.3@#5911 12—15L1831
James,Jr, ,and Mary gtrout ,T1-11-1821.
James 3rd & 8al mallage, 6—27—1838.
John & Susan Brown, 10-551340 ‘
Joanna & Henr Era ,9-6-1828,
Joanna & Joel G. Gurtis of Ellsworth,9-29-1829,
Lucy & Lewis J.Wallace 9-15-1820.
Mary & Spmuel Hooper, 2-29—1840‘
Joann & John B. strout 4-10-1836.
Hannah & ﬁEﬁiel Lei hten 2-13-1829,
Margaret & John L.Smith, 18-87-1824
Mary & Patriek Flickett, 12-21-1835.
~gtia & Elizabeth Wallaee ggzgugusta ,0=35-1835,
atience & Amos 5&1 7=11=

8ally of O.,& Mie gel Shea,1-12-1840,
Woodbury & Emma Lawrence, 2-21-1843

LIBBY,Abigail & William Orockett of Portland,3-3-1821.
Ephraim & Sally Ecaaalin 10-20-1821.
8tephen & Sally ' 1-17—1884 ,
LONG,Baptist,& Harriet Fickett,7-14-1832,
LOVETT,Abigail & Daniel MoLa%g¥lin of C., 6-8-1843,
Benjamin & Naney Ann Oole,1-21-1843,
Daniel & Betsey Leighton, 7-25-1826. :
Mary W.& Da Ompson,4-10-1819.

LYNOH,William & Anna Dormen,1-17-1822.

MARSTON,William of Jonespor¢ & Hannah Dormen,10-17-1826,
MANSFIELD,James B. of Portlend & Mrs.Abigail Foster, 8-4-1840.

McGASLIN,Nancy Ann & David Strout,10-30-1834.
Sally of Col. & Ephraim Libbz 10-20-1821.

McLAUGHLIN, Daniel of C. & Abigeil Lovellf?), 6-8-;843.

MERRITT,Daniel & Sophia Fickett,6-16-1841.
Sally & Otis Fickett 11-7-182

Weston & Klizabeth O: Ggggbell 4-14-1831
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MITOHELY, John,Jz. ,and Margaret Nash, 3-3-1821,
MULLEN,Franecls & Betsey Bailey,4-18-1826,
MUNSON,William Foster &fDeborah Brown,8-18-1824.

NASH, Ambrose & Elizabeth Ray,9-13-1831., -~
Charlette & Stillman Nagh, 12-31-1826.
y Webb,11-17-1825.
Freeman & Julia Ann Dinsmore,8-14-1830.
Margaret & Jo. 1 1l,dr,  3-3-1821,
Mary Ann & Robert Hallaee$-13-1838.
Lewls F.& Sarah Ann Strout,10-19-1841,
Rebecoa & Simeon Coffin, 4-4-1837. —
8tillman & Charlotte Nagh,12-31-1826.

NICHOLS,Rebecea & Joseph Barber Brown,11-3031833.
NORTON,E1isha & Meria Fickett,3-27-1837.

NOYES,Wilson & Sophia Coffin,5-8-1833.

PARKER ,Rufus of 8. & Sophronia Fickett of 0., 6-14-1838,
Thomag A. of 8.,& Betsey Brown, 3-5-1823, .

PATTEN,David of Bedﬁington & Lorane Dingmore,5-8=1830.
' Warren & Luey Wilson,10-24-1828,

PINEO,C.B. & Susan Dinsmore,10-38-1837.

PINKHAM,Diana & Stillman Fickett,10-28-1832.
' Ebenezer & Mary Wallace, 9-12-1842.

'PLUMMER, Amos B. & Phebe C.Wass,1-3-1825.
PREBLE,Jerem ah & Ddbor;h Strout,1-13-1827.
PRIBBLE,Betsy & Benjamin Strout,11-38-1826.
PUTNAM,Ruth & Benjamin Fickett,9-16-1830.

RAY,Catherine & John Foster,8-24-1840.
¥C. arles & Mary Collins,8-9-1833.
Elizabeth E‘Eﬁsisas’ﬁaéh,9-1a-1ezl.
Elenor& George W.Dyer,10-19-183Z,
Fames & ell, 12-26-1818,

! rgeret Camp!
Luther & Msris Small,12-3-1840,
Mary & Egeklel Dyer,12-12-1832,
Richard C. & Marparet Ward,s-28-1827.
*Ruby,& Henry Strout,9-19-1835,

8 & Mo .
Wi1lian EUETY FRORRNS 11-104Rs.

(o))
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ROBINSON,Stillman & Della Strout,9-25-1842.
SARGENT,Levi & Susan Fickett,5-36-1822.

SAWYER,Catherine & Moses W llace 2-3-1838,
Jane & Th 1 1831

8ally & Les :".“allaoe ,11-17-1821.
Temperence & John §?evens, 7-10-1834,

SHEA ,Michael of C. & Sally Leighton 1-12-1840.
**SMALL,Eliza & Peter Cole,9-15-1818.
James & Hane WaEefind 6-30-1832.
B8arah & Josep allaee, 12-26-1818.
* SMALLIDGE,Loulse & Patrick Campbell, 12-19- 1825,
**¢ SMITH,Lydia & Lewis Strout, 5-12-1820.

**SMALL, ﬁar%a 2 L&tﬁarnabaslc Smithoof Addison,12-13-1833,
aria uther Ray, 1o-3-1840.
Mariam & Bii ﬁInsmore 11-29-1826.
Moses & Susan ﬁﬁz 5315-1843 -

Roxanna & Ambrese Wallace, 11-24-1836.
Susan & Eligha T.Chaloner, 5-20-1841.

* SMALLAGE, Sally & James Leighton,8-37-1833,

**% SMITH, Amy & Lewis Strout,10-25-1833, '
Barnabas O. of Aadiaon & Maria Small, 13-13-1833.

John L.& Margaret Leighten,13-27=1 24
Thomes A.& Gatherine Ggggﬁell 5-6-1824,
STEVENS,John & Temperence Bawyer, 7-10-1834.

STROUT,Ablgall & Herbert Hinckle 9-2-1826
AchsahR& John G.W sa,?—§—¥833
Benjamin & Eefse_.Pribble,11-28-1826\

Betsey & Danle tis,1-26-1839,
Catherine B.& Sabine P.Wille , 8=6-1843,
David & Nancy Ann MeC 13Tn 10-30-1834,
Debérah & Jeremiah Preble, 1-13-1827
Dellia & 8tillman ﬁdSInson, 9-25-1842,
Ephraim & Charilotte Dorman,11-38-1835.
george & Nane wa111%9-23-1a42
enry & RESI §a§ 9=19-1835

Hiram & Saloma rown,11-17-1824
Isabella & Bavid Alexander,10-20-1834,
Isabella & John Babbage, 10—23—1834
James & Mehitsble Brown, 1%able Srown,0-15-1828,

Jesse & Emeline Brown,l0-26-1837.

John B.& Joann Lei E%on 4-10-1836.

John & Hanpah Walls, 15—14—1838 .
JJoseph & Ruth Cates,12-5-1832.

Joseph W. & EiEi Ehitteg of Gouldsboro.
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§23991'£88%§%2926&annah Br°§§,2-10-1836.

Lewis & Lydia Smit io.%gz%ggg.

Lewis & Amy Smith, .

Lois & S8ilas Figkett, 1-13-1826.
Mary & James Leighton,Jr.,11-11-1821,
Ruby & Jo loffin,11-38-1834,

Ruth & John Tinney,4-15-1830.

S8arah & Nieholas Allen, 3-14-1832,
Sarah Anna & Eewis-?iﬁasgliggg9—184l.
8imeon & Mar: Wallg,ll=3 .

Susan & John ®rewer,b5-17-1823.

Susan & Gleason Wakefield, 12-8-1838,
Thbrza & Harmon Curtis, 10-25-18237.

Thomas & Jane Sawyer,4-14-1821.
william &m, 9-13-1826.

THOMSON,David & Mar% W.Lovett,h 4-10-1819,
Mrg.Mary & Zebulon Fickett,9-8-1827.

TINNEY,John & Ruth 8trout,4-15-1830.
Ruth & 8tillmen Brown,11-26-1841,

TUCKER,Joseph & Abigail Jordan, 2-11-1833.

UPTON,Nancy & James Wallace, 13-18-1830,
Sally & William Strout,9-13-1828.

WAKEFIELD, #leasoné& Susan Strout, 13-8-1838,
Jane & James Small, 6-30-1832,

Martha & Dennison Campbell,12-21-1825,
Serena & Stillmen Areger of C.,11-7-1840.

WALLACE ,Ambrose & Roxanna Small,1l1-24-1836,

Adam & Mary Grady,10-39-183T.

Christian & Joseph Cates,9-6-1819.

Deborah A. & Amoes gger,s-13-1838.

Dolly & -William rey,10-35-1827.

Eliza H. & George Burke of 8.,4-13-1818.

Elizabeth of Auguste & Otis Leighton,3-25-1835.,

James & Nancy Upton,123-18-1830.

James & Abigall DBrown,12-23-1833.

Joann & do .Hallace,8-11-1833.

John T.& Joann Wallace,8-11-1833.

Joseph & Sarah Small,12-36-1818,

Josiah,Jr.,& Sally Sawyer,11-17-1821.

Lewls J.& 8ally leighton,9-15-1820,

Mary C.& Reobert Bugzle,8-11-1833,

Mary & Lewis Fogter, 10-25-1837.

Mary & Ebenezer Pinkham,0-12-1842.

Moses & Catherine Sawyer,2-3-1838.
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WALLACE, (continued)
Nanocy W. ﬁ Nelson Clark,11-1-1841.

Robert & arg Ann Nasgh,3-12-1838,
8ophronia & Joseph W.Brown,1-8-1824.
WALLS,Hannah & Jehn 8trout,12-14-1838,
Mary & Simeon S8trout,l11=30-1838.

Naney & eorge 8trout, qn.pa-1842. -
WARD,Margaret & RichardOpRay, 6-28-1837.
WERREN,James of Addlson & Diana Cole, 6-7-1819.
WASS,John & Achsah R.Strout,?-8-1833,

AR i e

WEBB,Nancy & Elisha Nagh,1ll-17-1825,°
8ally,& Stephen Libby,1-17-1824,

WHITTEN,Sybil & Joseph W. gtrout, . 0-/F33

WILLEY,John J. & Sophronis Hall,6-30-1829,
John,Jr. & Mary G.Di nsmore,11-15-1840.

Dorcas & John Hall,4-5-1820.
Sabine P. & Gatherine B.Strout,8-6-1842,

WILSON,Lucy & Warren Patten,10-24-1826,
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Mechias "Union~Republican®,July 2,1836. (

BROWN FAMILY OF NARRAGUAGUS “
Two brother,David(4) and Jesse§4ulnrown,sett1e in Narraguagus

about 1783. They came to this »nlace from Falmouth,Maine. Both had

service in the Revolutionary War as follows:Jesse Brown,private in

John Bohanme's Co.,Col.Benjamin Foster's 6th Lincoln CpuntyRegiment,

enlisted Pec.17,1778;discharged Dec.19,1773,service 3 days.Regiment

called out by order of Lieut.Col,Campbell in defense 6f State Stdres

on board the "Merry Sheet? from Boston bound to the garrison at

Machias. Roll dated Narraguagus. )

Dewid Brown,Narraguazus,Sergeant in Capt.Samuel Libby's Co.,Col.
Benjamin Foster's Regiment. Enlisted Aug.31,1777,at Machias;discharp-
ed Sept.14,1777. Also Lieutenant in Capt.John Bohanne's Co.,Col.Fos-
ter's Regiment,in Dec.,éz?a,in defense of the "NMerry-Sheet”;also Lieu-
teaant . 4th Co.,8%th Linoolnﬁﬁegiment;also Capt.Joseph Wallis's 6th Co.,
Oo.Regiment. Also Capt.John Hay1tg Co.,00l.Foster's Regiment, Aug.7,1779
to Sept.7,1779. Marched to Major Bagaduce with Gen.lLovell's expedition
Roll dated Boston.

(Reference:Mags.Soldiers and Sailors of the Revolutionary War)
Jesse(4)Brown was born No#.1,1738,at Eastham,Mass. ,and David
Brown on Dec.13,1744,at Silver Spring,Cape Cod,Mass.,the sons of
Jesse and Elizabeth(Walker)Brown who were married Aug.14,1729,at East-

ham,Mass.

Jesse(4)Brown married Lydia Smith,Oet.4,1760,at Falmouth.The

census of 1790 gives 2 males over 16 years,2 males under 16 years,
and 3 females in his family. His children of whom there is record
were Jesse(5),who married Elizabeth,daughter of John and Mary(Jordan)

Sawyer of J.nesport;8imeon(S5),who merried Isabella ---=;Ruth(5),who
married Andrew,son of Henry & Betty(S8imonton)Dyer.
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David(4)Brown was thrice married:first to S8ally Jordan,in 1768,
in Falmouth;second to Hannah Alden in 1786;third ,to her sister,
Abizail Alden,in 1797. By his three wives,he had twenty-seven chil-
dren,of whom twenty are listed below. Of the others I have found

no record.

1.John;3,George;3,Polly,who mirried James Leizhton:4 Luey;5,8a
b.l??S,mairied Ratﬁaﬁ gl %rout-G,Jesse,m.Deboraﬁ Wa~iaée; V:Bé 11.’
».1783,d.young,in New rleans; 8,Elizabeth,b,15-14 '7§2:9,ch113,1757;
10,Hannah,m,. S8amuel Rich;11,Belsey,m.Bzekiel Richs:12,Joseph W.,b.
é?éQig.ggggronia nglaegégznéslé824i 1%,5ggjam;n 0.,b.2-13-1803gnd

PE® o - \ b ﬁmBS . . 01 05. 5, Qbora-h b 6-3 —18 5 . .
Munsoen of Géoper,xugfls,1824;IG,MeﬁitaETEZEWTﬁO?,m.ga eg sgrou',

9-13-18238; 17,Almira,b.1809,m.David Bexﬁton;18,Abigail,b;1811,m.

Warren Foster,6-6-1832;19,William P, ,m.Mary Dyer,and m.2nd,Sophia

Eaﬁfrex;zﬁ;James,b.June 10,1815, m.Caroline Doyle. ,
Jesse Brown,father of Jesse and David,was bornat Eastham,Mass.,

Jan.21,1706/7. He was the son of James(2) and Ruth(Snow)Brown,who
o~ were married April 13,1704. Ruth Snow was the daughter ofJoseph

end Mary Snow,and was born Oc¢t.14,1679,at Eagtham, Her father,
Joseph,was the son of Nicholas and Constance( Hopkinsg)Snow,of Ply-

mouth and Eastham,born in 1634. Oonstaneeuﬁogkins came in the"E@y—

flower" in 1620,with her father,Stephen Hopkins, her stepmpther,

her brother Giles,and her sister Dameris. .
Jemes(3)Brown was the son of William and Marxgmnrcock}Brewn,

who were married July 16,1649. He was probably born after the famly

moved to Eastham in 1656 or 1657,

' William(1l)Brown was the immigrant ancestor of this line., He

came to Plymouth in 1635. He toe part in King Philip's War in 1675
and was in the Swamp Fight. He was commissioned a captain im Col.

Groton's Company. It was sald to be his musket that killed King

Philip,and he was granted an extra bounty of 25 pounds for that dis-

tinction.



12
WASHINGTON COUNTY ~
(Machias "Union-Republican®,Dec.24,1936)
ALEXANDER CAMPBELL OF CHERRYFIELD
Alexander(2)Campbell was an early settler of Steuben and later
moved to Cherryfield. He was born Feb.9,1731,in Georgetown,Maine,or
Newcastle,Maine,the son of Alexander(1l) and Frances(Drummond)Campbell
He married Ellzabeth Nichols at Georgetown,Dec.l1,1758.8he was the

daughter of Alexander and Hannah Nichéls. Their children were:

1. James b¢n£waastle,reb 2,1761;m.8usanna Coffin,Addison,Aug.24,1788,
3 jolilar mArchlibald at MaeETas,Eug ,T?EO.

| B.Mary,m.Rgbe. t .
6.Williem,m.Jdgne Low
7.8amuel, 5. Gherry*ield m,
8. Alexander m, g@;ggg;hﬁijggui

9. Beteey,unmarried.

_A;gggggggillggggggl_bis said to hpve come from the North of
Ireland 1 1729. He was of Scotch descent. He married Franees
Drummond,whe was born in Ireland and was a settler at 8t.CGeorge as.
waEly as 1736. In 1745,most of the settlers left St.CGeorge,and Ms.
Campbell went to Boston,where he died. ,

Revolutionary service as follows: Alexander Campbell,Lieut.Cc
in CGol.Benjamin Fesﬁpr'e Regiment,list of officers,Mgss.Militia.Com=-
missioned Feb.8,1776;als0,Lieut,Col. same regiment,revort teo Counecil
dated Gouldsborough,Mar.35,1777,signed by Col.Foster.

Also,Lieut,.Col. ,same regiment,service hetween May 22 and
Aug.23,1777. 31 days at Machias,Lincoln Co. Roll dated Boston.
His son James also had service as follows: James Campbell,
Glérk,capt.naniel Sullivan's Company,Cel.Benjamin Foster's Regiment,
0et.20,1780; dieeharged Dec.6,1780,service,l mo.,17 days.

(References: Milliken‘s Narraguagus;Bangoer Hist.Society Magezine}
Mass. Soldiers and Sallers of the Rev.War.)
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"M, U-RY,Jan. 29,1837,
SAMUEL AND RICHARD COFFIN OF ABDISON AND COLUMBIA

Samuel(4) and Richard(4)Coffin,sons of Trigtram and Mary(Bunker)

Goffin of Martha's Vineyard,came to Pleassnt River about 1783, They
were of the Nantucket femily of Coffins. Samuel wag born Ang.7,1720,
at Nantucket,and married Sept.6,1744,Elizsbeth Gardner,daughter of

Jonathan and Patienee(lunker)@ardner,who was born Aug.12,1724,at
Nentucket, Their children,born at Nantucket,were:

1.Elihu,b,.July 9,1745;m.Jemima Pease.
3. Themae b.July 11 1747 m.8arah Coffin.

3.8imeon, b Apr. 5, 1750 m, Euniee Ea?fin.
4, samuel b.Sept.? 1752

5,Trigtram ,b.AprT, 5 1755;m.Abigail Goffin. '
6.0bed,b. Sept 14,1757: sm. (17, Beborah Oolemsn:(2),Rhebe Coleman Joy.
7. Phebe b.Nov. 11 1760 sm, Daniel Smeil, ' 4

8. Barndbas b. Mar 7, 1763 m. Susen Garaner,

9.Miriam,b,Bept.14,1765:m, ——- Beal, '
10. Rebeeca May,b. May 29, k770 m.ChaTles Jacobs.
11.Timothy -

R;ehard{4)Go£fig,b.00t.20,1729,at Nantnoket,married_xggx Cooke
about 1750. 8he was the daughter of Temple P.and Jane ceeke,and wasg

korn July 18,1732,at Provincetown. They settled on the west side of
the Branch,at Columbia. Their children were:

1,Mary -

3.Matthew,b.1756; m.Jgge Wass,s.Jan.17,1830,
3. Riehard

4,Eligha,b.1758;m.Ruth Cates,d. Jan.zz 1830,
5.Abigail o

6.8usanna ,m,James € bell.

7.John,m, ,Phebe Go7Z ] Wass.,Oct 29,1773,
8.Jane, b 1733,m.WT11Iam Beetle of VErtha's Vineyard.
9. Temple m.Anna 1orndike,Sept.,1796.

,ris$ram$3!@eff1n,father to Richard and Samiel,was bern in

1685 the son of Jphn and Bdbo:ah(Austbn}Gofpr. He married Marz.nunker,
daughter of William and Ma:zﬁMgezznunker,b.1685,at Nantucket,and 1ived
at Nantucket.

—

! John(2)Coffin,born in Haverhill,Mass. ,0ct. 30,1647, the son of

Trigtram and Dionis(8tevens)Goffin,wag the fiTet of the family 4o
o go
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to Martha's Vineyard. Hews a hlackemith by trede,and in 1668,he
married Deborph Austin,daughter of Joseph and Sarah(Starbuek)Austin
of Nantucket. He became a large owner of real estate in Martha's

Vineyard,and died there Sept.5,1711. His widow died at Nantucket,
1724.

gristramgllcoffin was born in 1605,in Buxton Parish,Plymgpth,
Devonshire,England, the son of Peter and Joan(Fimber)Goffin. In 1630,
he married Dionis Stevensg,daughter of Robert Stevens. In 1642,he came
to America with his wife,his mother,and four children. He was first
at Salisbury,Mass.,then Haverhill,afterward,for a time,at Newbury,
and finally,in 1660,he went to Nantucket. He was a men of enterprise
and influence,and the early history of the town where he soujourned
is full of references to Iristram Coffin.

Peter Coffin was the son of Nichols and Joan Coffin of
Buxton,Zngland. Nicholas died in 1613.

| ©f his family,the following had service in eastern Maine:_

El*gggeeffin,engaged.June 34,1777;discharged June 30,1777;service 8
days under capt.Hall at Machiasg;also Gapt,Hall'a Company;discharged.
0et.5,1777;service EOdays;also,Gapr.“euben Byer‘a Co.;enlisted Sept.
16,1777;discharged Dec.S,l'Z??;serviceM_a months,21 days. :

Elibu Coffin,ehilisted Sept.26,1777;discharged Oct.5,1777;
service EOdays,gum%éd&&gﬁ.ﬁ&@asant River, '

Matthew Goffin,private,enligted Aug.14,1777;discharged Aug.
19,1777;service 5 days under capt,aéll;alao Oapt.Hall's Co.;enlisted
8ept.36,1777;discharged Oct.5,1777;service 10 days.

(References:Coffin Genealegy;Bangor Historical Eagazine,
Martha's Vineyard,Hist.,Vol.3,Nantucket Vital ecords)
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(“M.B?RR.“,Feb.18,1937)
OBED DUNBAR OF STEUBEN _
Obed( 4 bar came to Steuben about 1785. He was borm in Hing-

ham,Mgss. ,June 19,1743,the son of Beniamin(3) ahd Rebeson(Garnett)
Dunbar. He married,April 1,1773,Abigail Humphrey,daughter of Peter
and Marz&Orcutt!Eﬁgnhrez,who was born May 11,1755,at Hingham,Mass,

Their children were:

1.Merrill,bp.Dec.4,1774,at Cohasset.
2.0aleb,bp.Aug.24,at Cohasset;m.Lorinda Marston.

3.Molly,b.July 2,1780,at Oohasset;m.Hatevil Lelghton.
4,Peter,b.June 13,1784,at Oohasset;m,Katlie Yeaton.

g:ﬁzzggiéy,m.boviee Stibens. ,
Obad Bunbar had service in the Revolutionary W-r as follows:
Obed Dunbar,Cohasset.Private,Capt.Job Cushing's Co.,Col.John .
Greaton's Regiment,muster roll dated Aut.l,l??S;enlistgg May 23,1775
service 2 months and 14 days;also,Capt.Cushing's Co,,36th Regiment,
Cempany return d,ted Fort No.z,Oct.5,1775;&190,Gapt.cushing's Ce. ,Col.
Greaton's Regiment,erder for bounty coat or its equivalent in money;

dated Caomp at Gambridge,Beo.18,1775.. v

Benjamin(3)Dunbar,father of Obed(4) ,was born at Hingham,Mayl5,
1701,s0n of Joshua and Hennah(Hatch)Dunbar,,married in 1728, Anne
Grace, daughter of Edmund and Martha Grace. He later married
Rebegca Garhet,who was born at Hingham, March 2,1711-12.-Ben1am1n
moved to Seituate,

Jeshuagalngnbar,sen of Robert and Rose Dunbar,was born at
Hingham,Mass.,00t.6,1870., He married Sept.20,1699,Hannsh Hateh,
perhaps of Soituate. She died June 17,1743,at the age of.70.He
died 0et.36,1736,at the age of 66, He was called “Farmer", 4

Robert{l)Dunbar,a scetsmanlpame to Hingham with his wife,

Rose,about 1750. He died 8ept.19,1693,and hig wife died Nov.10,

1700°He’t00 wa,
.R., Mi11i¥en's Na@Fper. (Ref, 1mi gt _Cohass
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(Machisp"Union-Republican®,Oct.15,1938)

THOMAS EASTMAN OF DERNNYSVILLE

Thomas(6)Eagtman came to Dennysville and married Elizabeth Wilder
daughter of Capt.Theophilis. Their children were:

Thomas,b.1805;m. Mary Wilder.

Isaac, b 1806; m 1st, %ai,still Felt;m.2nd,Susan Dennison.
Samuel b. 1809 m.cgther ine Jellison.

Eliza, b 1812,

Hannah b.1816;m. Azor Baker.
Daniel Kilby,b 1818;m.Alicia McGregor.
Charles,b.1820;m.1s%t,MaTy Yarsley;m.and,Rachel Hewes.

George, b. 1824 m.lst gyrene Kewes m.2nd A by Tufts.
Andrew M. ;m.”annah Davis.

Catherine E{,m.lst Aaron Hobargt m.2nd,J.B.Hammond,
Tnomas(6)Eastman was the son of Isaac(5) and Hannah(George)

Eastmen,and was born in Newton,N°H.,Feb.11,1779.

Isaae{SQEastman was the son of Roger(4) and Ragchel QNiekels!
Eagtmen,and was born Oct.30,1754,in Newton,N.H',,nd died there

suddenly July 8,1793. He married Hannah George,who was born March
3,1759,and died JunelB,1838,in Topsham,Vermont.

Roger(4)Bagtman ,born in Amesbury,Mass.,April 11,1711,died in
Newton,N.H.He married Rachel Nichols,Dec.8,1730,at Amesbury. He was
the son of Roger(3) and HannahgximballlEastman.‘ L

Roger(3)Eagtman,bern in Saliébury,Mass.,Feb.26,1682,the son of
John(2) and Hannah(Heilie)Eastman, He married ,Jan.5,1710,Hannah

Kimball, the daughter of John and Mary(Jerdan)Kimbsll. He 1ived in

Amesbury,Mass. His will was admltted to probate in Aprel,1743,and his
widow's in Feb.,1753.

—

John(2)Eastman,born in Salisbury,Mass.,Jan.9,1640;dled there
Marech 25,1730. He married first,Nov.5,1670,Mary Boynton. John Eastms
too the oath of allegiance in 1677,and was made freeman in 1690. He
represented Salisbury in the General Court at Boston,in 1691. He wes
the son of Reger(1l) and Sarah{Smith)Eastman._

Boger(1)Eastman was born in Wales in 1611,and died in Sakisbury

Mass.,Dec.6,1694, He married Sarah Smith? who b A
2 Wwas born in 1621,ang
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died in Salisbury!yareh 11,1697. They were both members of the churc
in Salisbury in 1894. He came from Langford,County of Wilts,and sail
ed from Southampston in April,1838pin the ship "Canfidenee“,Jehn

Jobgon,Master,bound for the Massachusetts Bay;peleny. He received

lands in the first divisien in Salisbury,in 1640-3. His minister's
tax in 1650 was 8 s8.,3 d.

ADDITIONAL MAYFLOWER LINE OF STEPHEN SMITH OF MACHIAS

On May 28,1936,the line of Stephen Smith was published as the
intreductory article of this series. 8ince then, the following May-

flower line has been discovered. Stephen Smith,b.May 30,1729, at
Sandwich,married Deborah Ellis at Plymouth ,Dec.23,1762.

Samuel 8mith,born Jan, 18,1688, married Bethia Chipmen,
Oct.6,1817.

Steghen Smi th,born April 14,1641,m§;ried Lydia Snow.

Anthony Snew cgme to Plymegth in 1638;married Abigail Warren
16-39. She came in the "Anne" in 1623,

Richard_w rren,Mayflower passenger,married Elizabeth(came in
the “Anne" in 1623,

ADDITIONS TO THE JESSE BROWN LINE PRINTED July 32,1938,

.Elizabeth(5}Brown,a&daughter of Jesse and LxdiaiSmith)Brown,

married Josiah Sawyer in 1786.
Jameggs}grown,who married Ruth Snow in 1704,was the son of
George(2) Brown and Mehitable Knowles,and was the grandson of Willianm

end Mary(Murdeck)Brown. He is called "James,Jr." in his marriage Tecer:
but eould not have been the son of James.

(Gee:ge Brown was the son of William;he was born Jan.16,1652

?; Plymouth,Mass. ,and married Mehitable,daughtar of
=) now. :
wer)Raowles, whowas born at Eastham,May 20,1853,

Riehgnd and Ruth

TR
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(M."U.-R. ", Aug.27,1838)

BENJAMIN, WOODEN ,AND ISAIAH FOSTER OF MACHIAS
Theee brothers, Benjamin,Woeden,and I1saiahFogter, were among the

early settlers of Machias who came here from Scarborough,Maine.
They were the sons of Benjamin(4)Foster,who had lived at Ipswich,
Mass.,Oonnecticut,Greenland,N.H.,and Portsmouth,N.H. ,before coeming
to Scarboreugh.
Benjamin(5)Foster married first,Abigail Milliken;second,Green-
land,ﬁ.H.,E;;zabeth Scott.

Children:
Ja@ﬁhinuﬁauﬂxﬁémneaﬁ_

< John,m.Phbbe Burr,
Benjamin Jr, ,m.Buth Scott.
Abl jah,m, Apphia Talbot.

, .

Levi,m.Sally Beal,

Betsey,m.Joshua Burr.

Asa

Samuel,m.Comfort Scott.
TV RS T

Daniel,m.Hannah Gardner.
George,m.Cynthia Chase.

Wbeden(S)Fester married Frances Scott.
Children:

John Wooden,m,first,lLuecy Chase;second,Mehitable Megerve.
8... .,m m, Sarsh Munson
Meses m.Drus&lla ags,or West.
Jennie

Paul ,m.Betsey Webber.
Jee% m.Maxry West.

Rath m.Nathan Hanscom,
Elias m.first »Mary Goochjsecoend Lucx Dorman.
James,m, first,Lucy Geoch'seeend ,Hdannah Simson.

Isaiah(5)Foster married Lydia Fogg. Removed from the vicinity

before the Revelutionary War,

€hildren:

Hannah,m, Thomas Parsens.(Perhaps ethers) _
Benjamin(4)FOster,was born at Ipswich,Mass. ,about 1699, the son

of Benjemin(3)Foster. He died at Sacrborough,Me. ,about 1763,
Benjamin(3)Foster wasborn at Ipswich,Mgss.,June,1665,the son of

Iaaae(zl and Mery(Jackson)Foster. His wife's name is not known.He

died in 1700,at the age of 35 yearTs.
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IsaaegzzFester was born in Ejgland in 1630, the son of Reginald
Fégtgr and his first wife. He firet married Mary Jackson May 5,1658.

She died Nov,87,16§7,and he married seeoné,gpvias,1668,Hgnn&h Bowning,
who died Nov.27,17688;he married third,Mar.lG,lS?Q,Marthg Hale,who sur-
vived him, He lived in Ipswich,near Topsfield.

Reginald(l[?ester was born in England about 16857 The name of hie
first wife is unknown. FHis second wife's given neme was Judith. She die
in October,1664., He married third,Sept.19,1665,Mrs.SarahSWhitQQMartinLA
He came from Englénd in 1638,and had a grant of land in Ipswich,April s,
1641. He brought with him seven children, five sons and twe daughters. He
came from Little Badon,Basex Gounty,England,and he belonged to the Foster
famlly of Bamborough and Etherstone Castle,Cpunty Cumberland, _

Benjamin Foster's Revolutionary service is found in Vol.5,p.890,
“Mass.Soldiers and Sailors of the Revolutionary War ag followss

"Benjamin Foster. Official record of service. Official record of a
ballot of the House of ﬁepresenta,tives,dated Jan.30,1776;:said Foster
chosen @olenel of 6th Lincoln Gougty Treg't of Mass.Mi1litia; appeinzpent
cenecurred in by Council ,Feb.8,1776;reported commigsioned Feb.8,1776;a1m
Colonel 6th Linecoln Co.Reg't;reported Council dated Gouldsboreagh,ﬁareh_
35,1777 ,signed by said Foster,colenel,and Lieut.cologgl Alexander Campbel(
Tecommending the appointment of officers in 3rd Co.,Bth Lineceln Co.Reg't;
also,same regimenf,service from May_20,177$‘te June 1,1777,11 days;also
from June 23,1777 to July 26,1777,26 days;alse,from August 13,1777 to
Avg.20,1777,7 days;also,regiment orderedon duty at Machias;also,same Teg~
iment, eggaged Aug.20,1777,discharged 0¢t.10,1777,1 month,21 days,at Ma-
chias,also 6th Lincoln County Regiment,Brig.Gen.Charles Cushing's Brigade
general return of officers and men for equipment made by Adj.Gen.Peleg
Wadsworth,dated July 5,1779;also 6th3§2&g%;; genergl return of officers
and men made by Adj.Gen.Peleg Wadsworth,dated Boston,March 6,1780,
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His sons,John,Benjamin Jr.,Abijah,and Levi ,are listed as privat

in Oapt.Stephen Smith's company of their father's regiment,

Wooden Foster's service was a private in Capt.Joseph Seavey!'s
Co.,Col.Benjamin Foster's Reg't.,megt enlisted June 33,1777;d1scharged
July 16,1777,serviqe 33 days,company ordered out for the defence of
Machlias and adjacent rivers when ship "Ambuscage" lay in the harbor;
also,seme company and Tegiment,enlisted July 16,1777;diseharged Oct.10
1777,service 2months and 24 days,on an alarm gt Machias when BriQtish
ships lay in that harbor,until relived by Col.John Allen's forces;
also Oapf.SeaveY'a Company, service between Dec.5 and Béc.25,1778,one a
day at Machias.
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(M. "U.-R.",Dec.3,1938)
DAVID AND ELIJAH GARDNER OF MACHIAS

David(?7) and Elijah(7) Gardner,brothers from Nantucket,settled .
early in Machias. They were sons of David(6) and Mary(Gardner)Gardnex.

David was born June 19,1750,and married Zarniagh Huntley,daughter of

Josiah, Their children were:
1,Anna,m,.Philbrook Brown.
2.David

3.Hezekiah
4,Hepzibah,m.Enoch Hill.
5.Gideon

6.Rachel,m.Daniel Huntley .
7.Deborah,m.Nathaniel Hoit.
8.Richard

Elijah was born Dec.8,1752,at Nanthicket,and married Helena
Haontley,daughter of Josiah. They had:

1.8amuel
2.Hannah,m.Charles Davis.

David(6)Gardner,father to David and Elijah, was born at Nan—

tucket, the son of Solomon and Anna (Coffin)Gardner. He married,sept.ls,

1733,Mary,daughter of Samuel and Patience(Swaine)Gardner. She was bor:

- and died Nov.22,1799. He died Sept.28,1798,aged 89 years,11 months

at Nanticket.

Solomon(5)Gardner was born July 1,1680,at Nantucket,the son of

Richard and Mary (Austin) Gardner. He married Anna,daughter of Stephen
and Mary(Bunker)Coffin. He died in June ot July,1760,and his wife be—

fore that time.

Richard{4)Gardner was born Oct.233,1653,the son of Richard and

Sarah(Shsttuck)Gardner. He married May 17,1674,at Nantucket,Mary, daug]
ter of Joseph and Sarah Austin. He died 8,1728.

Richard(3)Gardner was born in England and came to America with

his parents,Thomas and Margaret G.rdner, He removed to Nantucket,wher:
]
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—

Be was granted a half share March 32,166-7,t0 exercise his trade as
seaman, He was chief magistrate in iG?SL vHe married Sarah,daugh-
ter of Samuel Shattuck. He died Jan.23,1888,and his widow died in
1734,aged 92 years.

Thomas(3)Gardner was born in 1592,and came to New Englend
after his marriage to Mgggaret Frier. He lived in Lynn,where he was
made a freeman in May,1637. He was representative to the General
Court in the same year. He married second,Mrs.Damaris Shattuck. He
was a merchant and died in 1674,

Thomag!l!Gardner,the first of the line inm this country,
came over in 1624,drom Dorsetshire,England,and settled under the
auspices of the Dorchester Cimpany with Rev.John White and thirteen
others at Gloucester,upon the grant of Lord Sheffield to Rébert
Qushman and Edward Winslow. Mr.CGardner was overseer of the plantatic
and by many authorities is spoken of as Governor. However,the col-
eny did not meet with the expected success and he moved to Salem twe
years later. He died in 1635, _

(ReferencesLGardner History;General History of Nantuckets
Vital Records of Nantucket;Drisko's "Machiag®.)
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(M."U.-R.",0ct.1,1936)
HENRY DYER OF STEUBEN
nry Qxer was an early’ settler of that part of Steuben called

Dyer's Bay. " “He was born in 1741 the son of H enrx and Sarah gﬁidlezz

vgxer of Truro. He married on Dec 8,1762,at Falmouxh ggjtx Simonton,who

born in 1740 and died 1n 1800 at Steuben. Their children were:
1.Andrew,m. Euth ,8au.Jesse and Lydiaf  Bmi th)Brown. (Mayflower ancestry)
2. Sarseh, b Dec. 1. 12 17653 m.Jesegh"‘agzer

3.Batty B.Jan. 4 1768 )

4, Henry,m Hannah dau, ‘of Josiah 8ggzer. -

5.Hannah, b.Feb. 1 Feb, 16 1771 ; m,Jenaﬁhan Lei zhton, -~ —.

6. Ebenezer STy Anna? : ' -
?7.bemuel m,Betgex --settled in South Addison.

8. Abigail b w_f24 1776 ;m. Rathan Sawy

~ N

‘12.Asa m, --eg- Yeaten.
13.Walter ,B. Jan.36“17§6
14, Molly,b Feb.11, 1789 m, Jﬂmes ghore. _

r-enrx Dyer,Sr., was born in rmro,Feb.14,1716 or 17,the son of
Henry and Anne(Small)Byer. He married Sept.18,1730,8a;ah Ridley,who was
born April 10,1730,the daughter of Thomasg and Marx(S@roﬁt}Ridlez. They
movedto Falmouth,Maine, He died April 38,1798,at Cape Elizebeth,Maine.

Henry Dyer was born April 11,1693,1n‘Barnstable,MaBs.,the son

of Dr.William and Mary(Taylor)Dyer. . He married in 1715,Anne,daughter o:
Daniel Small. He died before 1767.

o Dr. William er is believed to be the immigrant ancestor of this

u line. He was born about 1653,and married Mary,daughter of Henry Taylor

O T
s

%%in Dec.,1686. He 1ivedinBarnstab1e ,where he was a useful and respectabl:

citizen but later moved te Trure. He died in July,1737,at Truro,and his

QQ\wife died the folleowlng year. They are biiried in the Old North Cemetery

at Trure.

\W””’/’__Henrz ngrls'serviee in the Revolution follows:"Henry Dyer,
Township No.4,8nd Lieut.Ebenezer Crabiree's Compeny; engaged Aug.8,1775;

service to Dec.31,1775,5 months

at Frenchman'sg Bay.
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Also captain of a company of rangers,engaged Marcli 1,1780;dischar-
ged May 10,1780;servboce 2 months,10 days.

A remarkasble achievement is recorded of this family of_ Dyers in
1757,when three generptions of Henry Dyers served in the Train Band and
Alarm List of Cape Elizabeth under Capt.Loving Cughman. The eldest Ryer
was then 64 years old. He was in the same company with his son Henry,
and grandson Henry J3rd.

(References:Mgss.Archives,Vol.95,pp. 330-331;Small Gen.,Vol.II,;
Vital Records of Truro,Mass.; Milliken's"Narraguagus Valley")
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(M.%U,4R." ,Dec.10,1936)
. EBENEZER GARDNER OF MACHIAS

Ebenezer(5)Gardner csme to Machias Just before the Revolutionary War
Hig famlly had moved from Salem,Mass.,to Nova Scotia,and he came to Ma-

chias from there. He wasg born in Salem,8ept.4,1737,the son of Thomag(4)

and Eunice{!aters)Gardgpr.; He married Susannah( some authorities say
Damaris) Merrill in 1769,in Nova Scotia. She was the ﬂaughter of Eathan

and Susanna§StagleSIMerrill,b.June 25,1744,at Haverhill,Mass. Their
children were:

1.8usanna,b.0¢t.15,1770,at Nova Scotiajm.Aaron Sevey,Aug.18,1790;m.2nd, -
Marshall Thaxter,July 17,1796.

3.Eunice,b.July 14,1772,at Nova Scotia.

3.Hannah,b.July 3,1774,at Nova Scotia;m,Daniel Foster.

4.Ebenezer,b.Jan.31,1776,at Nova Scotia;m/Sally Allbee(int.May 28,1803).
5.8amuel,b.July 31,1781,at Machias;1st,Abigall Berry:m.2nd,Jane Getchell
- m,3rd,Relief Wilson.

~6.Thomas,b.0ct.10,1783;m.8ally Berry.

7.dohn,b.July 16,1785;m.1st,int.Apr.14,1812,8usan Berry;m.2nd,Lavinia
Hoit. : ’

8.William,b.0ct.24,1789;m.Lydia Albee.

9.Nathan

Thomas§42Gardner was born Feb.2,1699-1700,the son of Abel and Sara
Gardner. He marriedEunice Waters Feb.12,1738/9. He lived at Salem.
Abel(3)Gardner was born July 1,0673,the son of Samuel and Mary

(White)Gerdner. He married Sarah coe
ggmuel(Z)Gardne:,born about 1629,was the son of the first Thomas.H

is found at Salem in 1657,ehere he married Mary White. He was made .a free.

man 1n 1675;was selectman in 1686,.nd representative to the Court in 1681

1682,and 1685, His wife died in 1675,and he died Oct.,1689,
Thomas(1)Gardner came over in 1629 from Dorsetshire,England,and

settledunder the auspices of the Dorchesieg Company and Rev.John White at
Gloucester,Mass. He moved to Salem in 1626,and died in 1835.

Ebenezer Gardner had service in the Revolution after coming to
Machias. "Ebenezer Gardner,private,Capt.Smith's Co.,Col.Benjamin Fdster's
Reg't,service between Dec.4,1778,and Jan.4,1779,2 days at Machias;alse
Lieut.John 8cott's @etsched servﬁf

14 days at Machias. Roll endorsed'eeryids™ d%ih, 1779, and X
References:salem Vital &a ﬁgbaégﬁ%, ov.30,1779,

ecords,Higtor of
y Machias,Bangor Higt,5. & Gen, Rep
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(M, "U.-R.",Nov.19,1936)
AARON HAYDEN OF EASTPORT

Aaron(8)Hayden,who settled in Eastport and became a leading man in th
affairs of the town,was born Sept.8,1775,the son of Jphn and Hannah

(Clafflin)Hayden. He married 0ct.20,1800,Ruth Richards Jones, the daugh-
er ol Samuel and Mary(Richards) Jones of Dennysville, He died June

18,1842,and his wife died Jan.24,1838. Their children were:

gl.Joaeph Goddard,b.8/16/1801;d. young.
2.Mary Goddard,b.8/16/1801;d.the same day.
3.Aaron,b.7/13/1802;d.10/26/1804.

4. Hannah,b.5/4//804:m.E1ijah Dix Geeer,Nov,13,1823,
S.Marbines,b.6/88/180§?E%§335E§7[3E§k11an,Oct.17,1833.
6.8ally Leighton,b.Apr.20,T808;m.Tuke Brooks Jr, ,Mar.1,1827.
7.Charles Henry,b.5/28/1808;m. Mrs.Carol dman)Woods.
8,8usanna,b.Mar,8,1812;m, Rev, Wi1] Am L. O P, 1BAE
19.&natn;hxsapﬁ,aﬁ$§:an~mwvff??T: L EES duners 1t RyE
10.Emma Lincoln,b.Sept.8,1818;m, Rew. Benjamin Hathorne,Oct.18,1835.
11. Sophia,b.Sept.6,1816;d.June 20,1828,
12.Luey Ann,b.Mar.20,1819;m. John Ansley,June 22,1840,
13.Daniel S8harp,b.July 19,1821 ;m.Lucy A.Wheeler,May 20,1844,

John(5)Havden,Jr.,was born in Hopkinton,Mass.,Sent.1,1?40,the son of

John and Lucy !Maxnard)Hazden. He married,Oct.24,1759, Hannah Claflin,

daughter of Ebenezer and Hannah (Smith )Claflin,who was born at Honkintor
April 26,1741. He died June 18,1843.

John(4)Havden was born at Sudbury,lass, ,July 18,1703, the son of

Josiah and Elizabeth(Goodenoe!Haxden. He married Lucy Maynard,Sent. 18,

1736,at Sudbury,Mass. She was the daughtegﬂpf Zacarigh and Sateh Maynard.

Josiah(3)Hayden was bora June 19,1689, the son of_John and Hannah
"‘(—)‘—’—March 56,1691, L e
(Ames)Hayden. He married1gliz§peth,daughter of John and Mary(Read)

Boodenow,who was born Nov.18,1673.He died Dec.9,1730.

John(2)Hayden was born in 1636, at Braintree,Mass.,thg son of John
and Susannah Hayden. He wasrmasried by Gov,Endicott,on Feb.B,1680, to
Hannah Ames,daughter of William Ames. He died in 1718,

John(1)Hayden came to Dorchester with his wife Susannah, early, an

was made & freeman May 14,1834, He moved to Braintree,Mass.,in 1635,

Mayflower nacestry of thig family comes through the wife of Aaror
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Hayden,Ruth Richardsdones,daughter of Samuel and Mary(Richardg)Jones,
o granddagghtei of Abigail(Thayer)Richards,great granddaughter of

Sarah(Bags) Thayer,great-great-granddaughter of Ruth(Alden)Bass,

and greatgreat-great-granddaughter of John and Priscilla Alden.

References: Bangor Hist.Sov.Magazine.
Vital Re cords of Hopkinton,Sudbury,and Braintree.
S8avage's New England Dictionary.

Dennysville Centennial.
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(M- "Uo"Ra “ ,Augo 20,1936)
ISATAH HERSEY OF DENNYSVILLE

Isaiah Hergey,who came to Dennysville in 1787,from Hingham,Mass,,

was born Oct.13,1744,the son of Isaiah and Margaret(Sprague)Hersey.

He married Rebecca Sprapgue,the daughter of Igaac and Leah(Stodder)
Sprague,who was born at Hinéham,Oct.18,1745,and died at Passamaquoddy,
Maine,Jan,,1831,aged 85 years. He died there Peb.16,1831,aged 86 yeart
Children:(All born in Hingham,Mass.)

1.Rebecca,b.July 30,I767;d.5/26/1772.
2.Perez,b.8ept.35,1768;m.Catherine Bender.
3,08leb.b.0ct.20,1770;d.MaT.30,1771.
44,0aleb,b.Mar.1,1773;m.Lydia Dunbar,
5,Rebecca,b.Jan.8,1774;m.Abraham Bridges.
6.Joanna,b.Mar,1,1776;m,.I1saa¢ Hobart.
7.Adna,b.Bune 23,1778;m.Saxrah Leighton.
8.Leah,b.April 2,1781;m,Sgmuel eiﬁhton.
9.1Isaiah,b.Aug.5,1783;m.Lydia Gardner.

10. Thurza,b.dJuly 23,1786;m.Charles Stodder.

Isaiah Hersey was born in Hingham,Mass.,Jan.29,1720/1,3he son of
Daniel and Marx!Max!“ersez . He married Dec.14,1743,Mﬁrgaret,daughter

of Matthew and Sarah(Egarinngpragge,who was born in Hingham,Feb.32,
1721/2,end died Nov.16,1809. He died March 20,1803.

Daniel Hersey was born in Hingham,Mass., April 33,1682,the son of
John and Sarah Hersey. He married Dec.28,1710,Mary,daughter of Jonatha

and SarathangleeQM&x. She was born in Hinghem,Sept.3,1687,and died
Jan,.10,1760. He died May 20,17686.

John Hersey was born in Hingham,Mass.,Aug.9,1640,the son of Willi
gnd Elizabeth Hergey. He married,May 18,1669,Sarah -—-, at Dedham,Mas1

She died Jan.,1731/23,aged 82 years. He died Aug.7,1726,aged 86.
Williem Hersey came to New England in 1635,and located at Hinghai
in the fall of that year. He was granted five acres of land in 163§.
His wife Elizabeth died at Hingham,0ct.8,1671. He died March 22,1657
8. He became a freeman March,1638,and was a selectman of Hingham in
1643,1647,and 1650.
Isaiah Hersey had a short 8eIvice in the Revolutionary War og

y
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folkows: .
Isalah Hersey,Hingham,private ih Capt.Jas.Linceln's Co.,Co0l.Benj,
Lincoln's Reg't,assembled April 19,1775. Servi e,3 days.
References: Dennysville Centennial Memorial,Hersey Family Genealogy,

Hingham Vital Records,Mass.Soldiers and Sailors of the Revolutionar:

War,
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(Machias "Union*Republican",May 6,1937)

ISAAC HOBART OF EDMUNDS .
Isaac(6)Hobart,who settled in Edmunds in 1792,was born in Abington
Mags.,B8ept.1,1771,the son of Aeron and Elizabeth(Pilsbury)Hobart. He
married Joanna Hergey,July '7,1794. 8he was the daughter of Isaigh

and Rebecc&!&pragge)ﬂussex . She was born March 1,1774,in Hingham,Mass
and died at Edminds,May 21,1858. He died Feb.26,1847.The1r children

weres

1,Aaron,b.1796,m.Mary Kilby;m.2nd,Catherine Easgtman.
2.1s280,b.1798;m.Abigall Jones;m.2nd,Jane T.Jones.
3.Joanna,b,.1799;m, Daniel Kiiby.
4.Elizayb.1802;m.William M.Brooks.

5.Benjamin,b.1804;m. Emily Haywood;m.2nd,Mary(Felt)Mavyhew.
6.8arah,b.1807;m.Rev.Hdeman Nickerson.

Aaron(5)Hobart,was born July 8,1729,the son of Isasc and Mary
(Harden)Hobart. He married Nov.1l,1753,Elizabeth,daughter of Jacob
ond Elizabeth(Noyes)Pilsbury. She was born Oct.18,172. He died Mar.
11,1808.

Isaac(4)Hobart was born at Hingham,Mass. ,July 15,1700,the son of
Aaron and Rebecea(Sumner )Hobart. He married Apr.9,1724,Mary,daughter

of John Harden. he died Dec.231,1775,aged 76 years,and his widow died
Sept.26,1778,aged 64 years.

Aaron(3)Hobart was born at Hingham,Mass. ,Aug.5,1661,the son of
Thomas and Jane Hobart. He married Jen.27,1696/7,Rebecoa,daughter of

Roger and Mary (Josselyn)Sumner. He died March 3,1705.
Thomas(3)Hobart was born in England about 1806,the son of

Edmund and Mergaret(Dewey)Hobart, He came to Hingham,Mass.,in 1633,
with his wife and three children. He died Aug.18,1689,and hie wife,
dane,died Feb.18,1690.

Edmund(1)Hobart came from England in 1633 with Wis femily.He

settled first at Charleston and was made a freeman Mar.4,6 1634 He
e ’ ®
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— — —

went to Hingham in 1639,where he was a deputy in 18639;1640,and 1642.He

died Mar.8,1645 or 6. His wife was Margaret Deng,and she prebably
died soon after comiing to this country,for he married 005.8,1634, TS,
Sarah Lyford. She survived him,and died June 33,1649.

(References: Vital ecords of Abington;History of Hingham; Dennysville
Uentennial;Bangor Hist.Society Magazine.)
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WILLIAM INGERSOLL OF COLUMBIA FALLS,MAINE .
William(5)Ingersoll was an early settler at Columbia Falls,Maine.

He built a saw mill for lumber on Pleasant River. He was born Sept.8,

1717,the son of Benjamin(4) and Mary(Hunt)Ingersoll. On Sept.22,1737,
he married Sarah daughter of Cappt.James and Sarah(Ireson)Parker,who was

born Oct.14,1720. They lived at North Yarmouth,Maine. He married
second,Elizabeth Knowles,also of Cumberlsnd County. He died Aug.28,
1807,2t Columbia Falls.

Ghildren*
(bp first wife,Sarah '
1.8arah
2.Lucy,m.Daniel Field,Mar.13,1763.
3.Mary
4 . Rebecca
(by second w1fe ,Elizabeth)
1liam,b.Oct 1%979,1n Susan?Mass.

msa#asﬁsém%am%%s%

8. Nathaniéel,b.June 9,1781;m.1ls},Prudence Stuart;m.32nd,Elizabeth Look.
#.Sarah m,Robert Allen.
8. Samuei
9.Mary,m.Solomon Heatyamd moved to Pennsylvanla.

10.James,m.Margaret Wass.

11.Susen,m.William Hines.

12. Thomas moved West.

13. Eliza n.Isaaclittlefield.

William Ingersoll's Revolutionary service was:Corporal,Capt.Reub
Dyer's Co.;enlisted June 1,1777;discharged June 23,1777;service,one mont

23 days. Company raised hetween Mb.Desert and Machias for an expedition

to 8t.John's,N.S.

Benjaming4)Ingersoll,born 1687,at Gloucester,the son of Joseph
and Sarah(Coe)Ingerstdll. He died Aug.11,1755,at North Yarmouth,Mafne. H

married Mary Hunt,intentions at Ipswich,Mass.,Nov.16,1711. She died May
10,1733,aged 42 years., He married second,Sarah,daughter of Benjamin

Ireson,and widow of Capt.James Parker. He served on the mhster roll of
Capt.Joshua Moody's Company from June 1 to Nov.32,1735,and was known as

Engign Benjamin Ingersoll.

Joseph(3)Ingergoll was born at Gloucester ,Mass.,0ct.4,1656, the.
son of George and Elizabeth Ingersoll.

He died in Gloucester,Mass. ,Mar.
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12,1718. He went to Falmouth(now Portland) when a boy,with his father,
but at the time of the massacre,during King Philip's War,the family re-
turned to Magsachusetts after one child had been magsacred and the home
and crops destroyed by the Indians. He went to Charlestown for a time,

but by 1690,had removed to Gloucester. He married Sarah,daughter of

Mat%hew and Elizabethgwakelexlcoe of Falmouth and Gloucester. Sarah
died Jan.29,1714.

—

Georze(2)Ingersoll was born in England in 1618,the son of

Richard and Ann(Langley)Ingersold. He died in 1694. The family was
first at Salem,Mass.,but George was in Gloucester before 1646L He remove

%o Oasco Bay,where he settled at Back Cove as early as June,1657, He
married about 1642,Elizabeth ....,who died before him.
| Richard(1)Ingersoll came to Salem in 1629,with Higeinson from
Bedfordshire. Hewwgs of the original list of householders receiving hig
title to a grant of &stwo-acre houselot and elghty acres on the Cape Ann
side in 1683. He married Ann Langley in Sands,England,Oct.20,1616. He
died in 1644, '
References: A @enealogy .of the Ingersoll Family in America
Maine Historical and Genealogical Recorder,IX.,87.
N.E.Hist.and Gen.Register,Vol.49,p.189.



WASHINGTON COUNTY
(M."U,-R.%,Jan.21.1937)WILLIAM KILBY OF DENNYSVILLE

William Kilby,an early settler of Perry and Dennysville,was from
Hingham,M,ss. He was a protege of Gen.Benjsmin Lincoln and came to
Perry in 1784; he removed to Dennysville about 1792,and was clerk of
the plantation from 1800 to 1817,afterwards becoming town clerk and
selectman. He was one of the first deacons of the Congregational Church

and was a steadfast citizen of the town. On Oct.10ml787,he married

Maey,daughter of Theophilus,Jr.,and Lydia(Cushing)Wilder. He died Oct.3

1839,and his wife,July 7,1834. Thelr children were:
1.William,b.Perry,Apr.235,1789;m.Abigail Wilder,1813-1814.
2.Daniel,b.Perry,May 27,1791;m,Joanna Hobart,Dec.3(?),1818.
3.John,b.0ct.19,1793;m. Lydia Wilder,

4.Mary,b.July 31,1795;m,.Aaron Hobart.
5.Theophilus,b.Nov.10,1797;m. Deborah Wilder.
6.8arah,b.1799;4.1808.

7.Benjamin,b.1801;m.1st,Eliza Rice;m.2nd,M.H, 8toddard.
8.8arah,b,1807;d.1837,

9.Lydia,».1809;d.Aug.28,1849;m.John Allan,1833,

William(5)Kilby,baptized July 17,1763,was the son of Sarsh Kilby,
His father was Daniel Lincoln,and the latter's will reads,"To William

Kilby,son of Sarah Kilby,deceased,and the heir lawfull begotien by me,
Daniel Lincoln,the whole of my estate,both real and personal. His
mother having died when he was very young,he lived with his grandparentg
Richard and Abigeil(Cushing)Kilby,and bore their name. _
Daniel(4)Lincoln was born May 17,1719, He married March 26,
1745,0atherine Kilby,daughter of Richard and Abigail(Cushing)Xilby,who
was born April 26,1720,and died Ja.n.11;1755,w1thout children. Apparent-
ly,he later married his wife's sister,Sarah Eilby,born Febn.17,1736,by
whom William was born., Daniel died in 1771,gged 52 years. He was con-
stable in 1746,and a selectman from 1753-1769. He is described as "gen-

tleman. !

Obediah(3)Lincoln was born at Higgham,Mgss.,Aoril 21,1679,
the son of Daniel and #lizabeth(Lincoln)Lincoln., He married June 19,
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Hingham,Mass.,Nov.10,1683. He died April 10,1727,aged 48 years.
Daniel(3)Lincoln,was born at Hingham,Jan.3,1653/3,the son of

Samuel and Marth,#lincoln. He married,Jan.23,1677/8,Elizabeth,daughter
of Thomas and Margaret(Langer)Lincoln,who was born at Hingham,qec.2,
1656,and died in December,1782. He died April 29,1732,and is called

q “planter®,

SamuelSl!Lincoln came to Hingham in 1637,at the age of 18 years
His wifefs given name was Martha,and she died April 16,1693, He died
May 25,1690. He was known as Samuel,the "weaver%and he somefimes went
to sea,apparently,for he is also described as & mariner.

Richard Kilby,the grandfather of Williem Kilby,was born Jan.2,

1694/5,the son of John and Rebecca Kilby of Boston. He marrled Kbigéil
Cushing in Hingham,May.14]E7291%%®. She was the daughter of Demniel and
Abigail(Thaxter}Cuehing ,and was born in Hingham, Jan.1,1699/1700.She
later married a'Stetsen. Richard died ;ec.4,1736,a few days afterhis
arrival from Jamaica,at the age of 39. He was a master-mariner.

John Kilby and his wife,Rebeoca,were of Boston,where their
children were born from 1686-1711., No further record of them is found.

References: Dennysville Centennial;History of Hingham,Part 3.
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NEHEMIAH KNEELAND OF TOPSFIELD
The most northern town in the most eastern county of Maine was
christened in honor of Topsfield,Massachusetts. It was founded by
Nehemiah Kneeland,who moved from Topsfield,Mass. ,to Harrison,Maine,
about 1818, Ten years later,he moved to Lincoln,Maine,and in March,
1833,in company with neighbors,he loaded his household goods on s sled
drawn by oxen and went forty miles ihto the wilderness. There in the
forest they found a clearing where the founded a new town. In 1838,1t
was incororated under the name of Topsfield. Like its namesake,it}jas
se¥eral high hills,and it still has a heavy growth of timber. Some of
Kneeland's descendants still 1ive in this vicinity.

Nehemiah(5)Eneeland was born in Topsfield,Mass. ,May 5,1789, the

son of Aaron(4) and HannahgRagsdell!Kneeland. He married Mary Goodwin

of Salem,and died June 28 ,kB867,in Topsfield,Maine.
Aaron{4)Kneeland was baptized March 3,1754. He married Hannsh

Ramsdell and died at Harrison,Maine,Oct.4,1833,aged R4 years. He was
‘@ soldier in the Revolutionary War,with the @ollowing servhee: ,
Aeron Kneeland,private,Topsfield,Capt.Stephen Perkins's Co.,

which marched on the alarm of April 19,1775,service 23 days;also,Capt.
John Dodge's detachment of militia,Col.Gerrish's regiment,muster roll
for February,1778,dated Winter Hill. Service guarding Lieut.Gen.Bur-
goyne's army;also,Capt.John Dodge's Co.,Col.Jacob Gerrisgh's Regiment,
guards,enlisted Nov.12,1777,service to April 3,1778; 4 months,22 days
at Charlestown and Cambridge. _

Philip(3)Eneeland,Jr. was baptized February or April,1715-6,

at Ipswich,Mass.,the son of Philip and Mary(Jewett Kneeland,who had been
married J"ec:.lo,l'?og,.a‘l: Ipswich.



38
WASHINGTON COUNTY

Philip(2)Kneeland was the son of Edward and Martha Kneeland,
who were early settlers at Ipswich,Mass. The earliest records show
that Edward'l)Kneeland had a sharTe in Plum Island in 1664. He was &
subscriber #¢ the bell for the church in 1699,and was assigned a pew
in the meeting house in 1700,when he is called Edward,S8r. By his

wife,Martha,he had five children:
l.John ,b.S8ept.30,1673,
8.Martha,b.Jan 1,16785,
3.Edward,b.Dec. 30,1677,

4,Philip
5.Benjamin

The will of Edward Nailand was dated Jan,5,1711,and proved
Feb.25,1712. It mentions sons,Edward,Philig,Benjamin;grandson,Edward,
not of age;granddaughters,Mary Nailénd, Lydia Nailand, Martha Oraves;

daughter,Martha Macxentire;brother,Josegh Fowler of Wenham;son Edward':
wife,Mary. His son Edward was made executor. \

Meferences’ Historical Oollections of Topsfield;Vital Records
of Topsfield and Ipswich;Hammett's Ipswich Papers; Centennial History

of Harrison,Maine.
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Nathaniel Knowles of Narraguagus and Samuel Knowles of Addison
(Mayflower ancestry)
Nathanlel Knowles was among the grantees of No.5 Plantation,with
a lot fronting on Narraguagus Bay. He was born at Windham,Conn. ,about
1720,and died between 1790 and 1800 at Harrington,Maine. He was marrie
et Harwich,Mass.,May 8,1744,to Mary Maker. He removed to Falmouth befor:

1746,and both he and his brother appear in the Cape Elizabeth train ban
in 1757. He moved to No.5 after 1767,and his grant of land was confirm
ed April 2,1794,but he had lived there some time,as he had been a signe:
of a petition to the General Court during the Revolutionary War.

Samuel Knowles,his brother,was & posthumus child,born at Province-
town,Mass.,in 1733;dled at Pleasant River Plantation,now Addison,Maine,
prior to 1777. He married §gz&h Elwell 1in Falmouth,Dec,27,1754,who su

vived him. He received a grant of land in No.6 Plantation,and signed a
petition to Governor Hutchinson about 1770. Hig grant of land ,300 acr(

was confirmed to his son,Freeman Knowles, on June 4,1794.

Nathaniel and Marx!Mgker)Knowles had one child:

l.Mary,m.Thomas 8trout,Jan.2,17668,at Cape Elizabeth. They,too,settled
in No.5,now Milbridge.

Samuel and SarathlwelllKnowles had:

1.Elizabeth,m.William Ingersoll. Nasgh.
3. Freeman'b 1755;d.Nov. 27 1797 ;m. Susannah, dau. Jogseph and Susannéﬁfggawy

3.8amuel, b. June 4 ,1759;4d. Oct 7,1819;m,00t.4,1783,Jane Gray.
4,8arah, b. June, 1762; ym. Nov.l? 1779 J@hn Mccaslin.

Nathaniel(4) and Samuel(4) were sons ofNathaniel and Elizabeth

(Bacon)Knowles. _
Nathaniel(3)Xnowles was born in Eastham,May 15,1686,and died in
1732. He married first,Mary Hunt;second,Elizabeth Bacon at Windham,Coni

April 35,1817. He lived at Windh~m and Branford,Conn. ,but came back to

Provincetown,Mass. , just before his death. He was the son of Samuel

and Mercy(Freeman)Knowles.
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Samuel(2)Knowles was born in Plymouth,Mass.,Sept.17,1651,the
son of Richard and Ruth(Bower)Knowles. He died at Eastham,Mass.,June

19,1737. He married at Eastham,December,1679,Mercy Freeman. She was
born July,1658,at Eastham,the daughter of Maj.John and Mercy(Prence)
Freeman,and died there June 19,1737. Her maternal grandparents were
Gov.Thomas and Patience{Brewste:QPrence,and her great-grandparents
were Elder William and Mary Brewster,who came in 1620,0n the Mryflowe

Richard(llxnowles of Plymouth and Easthgm,Maaa.,is first found
here on Jan.2,1637 or 8,and died soon after 16870. He merried Ruth

\
Bower,Aug.15,1639, 8he was the daughter of George and Barbaza;ﬁower
of Scituate,Mass.,and Plymouth. He removed to Esstham about 1854,and
later died there.

References: Libby's Knowles Family of Mass. ;Eastham Vital
Records.
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LIBBY FAMILY OF MACHIAS
Timotnx§41,Josiah§4},George§42,and David(4)Libby were sons of

David(3) and Esther(Hanscomb)Libby. Timothy,George,and David were of
were of the association of "Sixteen Persons',formed for the purnose

of building a sawmill in Machias.

Georgé(42Libbx,b.Jan.18,1719,did not marry,but he divided hisg
time between Machias and Scarborough,and gave to the town the land
on which was built the town hall,which was called Libby “all in his

honor.

Josian(4)Libby,b.Kittery,0ct.85,1716, married June 22,1742,Mary
S8tone of 8carborough. He moved to Scarborongh,and later went to

Machias,where he died April,1786. Their children were:

1.Eleanar,bp.Nov,13,1743;m, Stephen Fogg.
Z.Reuben,bp.Mar.3,174Z;m.Rebecca eston.
3.Joseph,bp.Mar.15,1747;m. Jane Cole.
4.Eligah,bp.Dec.11,1748;m.MaTy Dresser ;m snd,Mindwell ...... .
5.Hannah.bp.Oct.7,1750;m.Peter Coolbroth.
8.Joslah,b.%eb.17,1758;m.8arah Holmes.
7.Natnan,b.Aug.19,1759;m.Pollx Larrabee.

Timothy(4)Libby was born in “ittery,1724,and married Oct.9,1746,
Sarah Stone of Scarborough. He died at Machias before June,1766, Their

ochildren were:?

l.8arah,bp.Dec.27,1747;m.John Berry,Sept.30,1787,
2.EBstner,bp. June 4,1749;m. Jonathan Pineo.
3.Timothy,bp.Jan.6,1751;m. Martha Holmes.
4.Mary,bp.Apr.22,1753;m. Amos Boynton.
5.David,b.Aug.31,1755;m. Abigall Fitts.
6.0badiah,bp.Jan.15,1758;m.Marz Hill.
7.Daniel,bp.Aug.21,1763;m. Sannah Eastman.

David(4)Libby was born in Kittery about 174°'. Se married 1lst,

Dec.13,1750,Dorcas Meang;he married an,April,1766,Mrs.Joanna(Jose}Page.
i
David did not stay in Machias long,but soon after his brother Timoth;'e

death,moved to Providence,R.I.His large family settled elsewhere.
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- David(3)Libby,father of the three brothers who settled in Machias,
was born probably in Scarborough,Maine. before his naremts.David
and Eleano® Libby,were driven away in 1890. He married Esther,
daughter of Thomas and Alice Hanscom of Kittery.He died in February,
1765;his wife died March,1781,both in Scarborough.

David(2)Libby was born in Scarborough,in 1657,the son of John
Libby. He married Eleanoe ..., . He lived in kittery for ahout ten
years after the town of Scarborough was deserted 1n1890. Then they
moved to that part of Kittery called El4iot,where he died about 173%.

John(1)Libby was born in England in 1603. He first came in the

interests of the fishing industry,and was in tne emplgy of John Winter,

near Falmouth. He came previous to 1639,probably in 1635. Hig family

came about 1640,and they tqok up residence at Black Point,now Searbor-
ough., 1In 1675,during King Philip's War,ne lost everything he nossessed
and his family fled to Boston. He returned withinag year or so,snd died

about 1882,aged 80 years. He was twice married,but his first wife,who

was the mother of David,ls unknown. His second wife was named Mary.

The Revolutionary recordg of many members of this fami'y are to

be found in Volume IX.,pp.767-782 of Massachusetts Soldiers and Sailors
of the Revolutionary War.

References:Drisko's History of Machias;The T.ibby Family;N.E.Hist
and Gen.Register.
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THEODORE LINCOLN OF DENNYSVILLE

Theodore Lincoln was the leader of the band of vpioneers from

Hingham,Msss. ,who came to Yenny's River in 1787. He was then only

22 years old. After twelve years,he married Sannash Mayhew of Buck's

Harbor. Thneir children were:

1.Theodore,b.1800;m.Elizabetn Lincoln,his cousin.
3.Hannah,b.1801;m.Ichabod R.Chadbourne.

3.Ben jamin,b.1802;d.1835
4.Mary,b.1804;unm.
5.Belar,b.1805;m.E1izabeth Rice.
6.8arah,b.1807;m.Spencer Tinkham,

7.Edmund,b. 1809 ;anm,

8.Thomas,b.1813;m.1st,Emma Johnson;m.2nd,Mary Eastman.

Theodore Lincoln was born Dec.30,1763,at Hingham,Mass.,the son of

Gov.Penjamin and Mary(Cushing)lincoln. He died June 15,1852,aged 88 yrs

Benjamin Lincoln,father of Theodore,was born in Hingham,Mass.,

June 24,1732/3. *e married at Pembroke,Mass.,Jan.15,1756,Mary Cushing,

daughter of Elljah and ElizabettharkerQCusning. Sne was born at Pem-
broke,April 32,1734,and died at Hingham,Jan.33,1816. He died May 9,

1810. 1In 1754,he was constable of Hingnam;selectman,1765-1771;on Feb.
15,1769,he was chosen a deacon in yhacﬂirst @nurch in Hingham., In 1773,
1775,1788,and 1789,he was representative. In 1774 and 1775,he Tepre~
sented the town in the Provincial Congress held at Concord,at Cambridge
and at Watertown. _ |
His first military office was adjutant of the 3rd Regiment in

suffolk County,Junepl?755. 1In June,1763,he was appointed Major,and Jan.
1773,Lieut.Colonel,a title which he held antil the putbreak of the War.

He was Major “Yeneral in the army of the Revolution,snd after the cam-

paign of 1777, commanded the Tight wing of Gen.Gateg!' army. In 1781,he

was chosen Secretary of War,and in 1787,was elected Lieut.Governor of

Massachugetts. He wes also a president of the Society of tne Cincinnat:

&n order composed of
those soldiel‘swho like Washin t +
- gton Tetireq o]
Priva+
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1ife after the war was over. See.Vol.IX.,p.800,0f Mass.Soldiers and
Sailors of tne Rev.War, )

Benjamin (4)Lincoln was born in Hingham,Aug.17,1699,son of °
Benjamin and Mary(Lewis)Lincoln. He married “ec.8,1720,Mary,daught-
er of Capt.Thomas and &keah(Buckland)Loring. She was born in Hingha®
Sept.16,1696,snd died May 20,1721. He married second,Oct.31,1723,
Mrs.Elizabeth(Thaxter)Norton, daughter of Col.Samuel and Hannah
(Gridley)T-axter. She was born in Hingham,Sept.18,1692,and died
Jan.11,1762. The Honorable “enjamin died March 1,1771. He,too0,was

active in the affairs of the town.

Benjamin(3)Lincoln was born in Hingham,J4n.16,1871-2,the son
of Benjamin and Saran(Fearing)lincoln. He married Jan.18,1694-5,
Mary Lewlis,daughter of Lieut.James and Sa:gngLane)Lewis of Barnsta-
ble,Mass. She was born at Barnstable in 1670,and died in Hingham,
Dec.31,1774. He died suddenly,July 10,1737,aged 55 years. He was

selectman, town clerk,and deacon of the First Church.

Benjamin(2)Lincoln was born in Hingham,Hay.77,1648,the son
of Thomag and Anis(Lgne)lincoln. He married Feb.6,1666-7,8arah,
daughter of Jonn and Margaret Fearing. She was born July 29,1649,
and died Nov.26,1716. He died Sept.27,1700.

Thomas Lincoln,"the cooper',came to Hingham about 1635, He
house

was granted a five-acreﬁ%ot in 1636. His wife ,whom he married in

England about 1630,was Anis,the cdughter of William Lsne.She died in

Hingham,Feb.13,1683-3. He dled Sept.28,1691. A large vart of the
8
original homestead is still in the posgssion of his descendants.

References: Higt.Of Hingham,Mags.,Vol.III. ;Dennysville Centen-
nial.
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NATHAN AND JONATHAN LONGFEL™.OW OF MACHIAS
Both Nathan(4) and Jonathan(4) “ongfellow were early settlers of

Machias. They were cousins. Nathan was baptized at Newbury,Mass.,

Sept.9,1744,the son of William and HegzibahgPlummerZLongfellow.He
married Traphenes Huntley,who was born at Lyme,Gonn.,1749; Their

children were:

1. Toaphenap;y§ePeb72277290; GeBat] 155 85Y; irdetioh-higngfel kowor)  low
2.Jdnatnan,b.Dec.87,1775;d.Jan.11,1861;m.M;s.Margaret(BigelowﬁLongfga
3.William,b.Beb.7,1773;:d.Mar. 14,1775,

4,Abigail,b.Apr.20,1781;4d. Aug. 31,1794,

5.Anni,b.July 18,1778;m.Enoch Longfellow,Jan.1,1797.
s.David,b.Aug.31,1787;d.Aug.11,1791.

William(3)Longfellow was the eldest son of Stephen and Abigail
(Tnomson)Longfellow,baptized June 12,1715,at Newbury. He married
Hepzibah Phummer of Rowley at Newbury,Jan.24,1739. She was the

daughter of Benjamin and JanegPierson)Plummer,b.Mar.6,1715,a¢‘Rowlem

Mass.

Jonatnan(4)Longfellow,b.May 23,1714,the son of Nathan and Mercy
(Greene)Longfellow,marrhed Oct.28,1731,Mercy Clark ,and moved from

Nottingham,N.H.,to Cornwallis,Nova Scotia,and thence to Machias in
1765. He built the house that was afterwards his home,and a tavern.
He was appointed Justice of the Peace for Lincoln County in 1785, the
first person to be accorded that honor east of tne Penobscot. He

died before June 24,1786,and his widow died Aug.20,1797.Their child-

ren were.:

1.8%tephen,b.July 19,1733,

2.Mary,b.June 15,1735;m.Nathaniel Batchelder in N.H.
3.Jacob,b.Nov.6,1737. .
4.8arah,b.Nov.17,1739;m.%en, Joseph Cilley,Nov.4,1756,in N.H.
5.Betsey,b.July 17,1741;m. —-- Whidden in N.H.
6.Hannah,b,.Dec.1,1747;m. -—- English in Nova Scotia.
7.Nathan,b.Dec.30,1743;1lived at Machias,m.Margaret

dau.Isaac and
Abigail(Skinner)Bigedaw. TR EEAS
8.Anna,b.0ct.15,1745(dx

9.Daniel,b.Dec.16,1749.

10.David,bﬁDec.ls,1751;r,Machias;m.Olive Go

- ENBEETE. Aug. 14, 1753( dx och in 1774
H’. Jonathan,b.4pr.28,1 7(56()dx) o .
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Nathan!S)Longfellow was the youngest son of Stephen and Abigail
(Thomgon)Longfellow,bp.Jan.19,1734-5, He married Marcy Greene,and
lived in Nottingham,N.H.

Stephen(2)Longfellow,son of William and Ann(Sewall)Longfellow,
was born Sept.22,1685,at Newbury,Mass. fe married Abigail Thomson
Mar.35,1714. 8he was the daughter of Rev.Edward Thomson of Marsh-
Syephen Longfellow was a blacksmith by trade,and was a seleotman of

the town. He was a lieutenant in the French and Indian wars,and died

Nov.17,1764,aged 79 years. His wife died 8ept.10,173,aged 85 years.
William(1)Longfellow was born in Yorkshire,England,in 16850. He
came to Newbury,Mass.,in 1676. He married Ann Sewall,sister of Samuel
Sewall, the first Ohief Justice of Massachusetts,and the daughter of
Henry and Jane(Dummer)Sewall,born Sept.3,1662,at Newbury,Mass. In
1690,Mr.Longfellow was commissioned ensign in Capt.“reenland's Co.,

under 8ir William Phipps,and was in the attack on Quebec in that year
On the return voyage,a violent storm overtookthe fleet in the Gulf of
St.Lawrence,and the vessel containing the Newbury comvany went ashore
on the Island of Anti Costi,and William Longfellow,with nine others

of the company was drowned.

Nathan Longfellow,ST.,and his two sons,Nathan and David,have
Revolutionary service as follows:

Nathan Longfellow,Machias,Corporal,Csept.Stephen Smith's Co.
enlisted Oct.236,1775;dischagged Dec.31,1775;service 4 mos.,15 ds.;
promoted to Sergeant,Nov.1,1775;also,2nd lieutenant,Capt.David Long-
fe112;§A00., commissioned July 11,1776;also,Lieut§§apt.Dyerls Co.;
enlisted June 1,1777;discharged Aug.1,1777,service 2 months;also,same
company,enlisted Aug.1,1772;discharged Yec.13,1777service 4 months,

13 days;expedition to St.John's and at Machiag for defense.
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David Longfellow,Capt.9th Co.,6th Lincoln County Regt. of Mass.Mili-

tia;1list of officers commissioned July 11,1778,
9th
David Loggfellow,private,Capt.Joe.Libby'sACo.;enlisted June 23,1777;

discharged July 16,1777;service 23 days.

Also Capt.Smith's Co.,July 16,1777,to 0ct.10,1777,2 monthe,2 dats;
algo Capt.Smith's Co.,Yec.4,1778 to Jan.4,1779,6 daysjalso Lieut.Scott!
detachment,Aug. 31,1779 to Nov.20,1779,at Machias.

Nathan Longfellow,private,Capt.Smith's Co.,Dec.4,1778 to Jan.4,1779
7 daysjalso Capt.Scott's Co.,Aug.31,1779 to Nov.20,1779,7 days.



WASHINGTON COUNTY
(M."U.-R.",0ct.29,1836)

DANIEL LOOK OF ADDISON

Daniel(5)Look was a settler of Addison about 1770. He was horn
June 7,1733,at Timsbury on Martha's Vineyard,the<son of ThHomas and
Mercszewis!Look. He married Ann Butler about 1763. She was the

daughter of David and Ann(Hatcthutler,and was born Jan.29,1740. He
died in April,1825,in Addison.Their children were:

1.Damories,b.Aug.23,1764;m.Samson Hillman, Feb.25,1783.
3.Beorge,b.1785,
3.Moses,b.1767.
4.Mary,b.1770.
5.Mercy,b.1772.

S.Eunice,b.Apr.13,1774;m.Abraham Norton,Apr.9,1795.
7.Hanneh,b.1778.
8.Anne,b.1778;m, Abraham Nash.
9.Jane,b.1780.
10.Dahiel,b.May 11,1782;m.Lois Hillman,Oct.7,1804.

Thomas(4)Look was born Nov.18,1708,the son of Samuel and Thankful
(Lewis)Look. He was a weaver by trade. He married Mercy L'ewﬁ.ta,Oct.B!,
1731. She was the daughter of Benjamin and Marsaret Follard)lLewis of
Barnstable,Mass. She was born Mar.3,1712,and died before 1782. He died
March 4,1783.

Samuel(3)Look was born Mar.16,1683,the son of Thomas and Elizabetl
(Bunker)Look. He was a miller and lived at Timbury,Martha's Vineyard, He

married Thankful “ewis,daughter of George and Eligzabeth hiewls of Barnste
Mass.,0ct.19,1704. She was born April,1684,and died Jan. 34,1679, He die¢

Han.24,17%8. He was ensign of the militia in Timsbury in 1735,

Thomas(2)Look was born June 6,1648,at Lynn,Mgss.,the son of
Thomas and Parah Look. He came to Timbury when g

young man,to work at
his trade of miller. He married Elizabeth,daughter of George and Jane

QGodfreszunker of Nantucket. _

Thomas Look and his wife Sarah came to Lynn,Mass. ,before 1645.

Five children were born to them there before 1656, gar

ah died June 30,16¢
6.
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Daniel Look's service in the Revolution is as follows:

Danlel Look,private in Capt.John Hall's detachment.Enlisted
Aug.14,1777;discharged Aug.19,1777;service 5 days;detachment drafted
from militia for service at Machias;also Capt.John Hall's detachpent;
discharged Sept.29,1777;service 4 days.

References: H story of Harthats Vineyard. Vital Records of
Chilmark,Edgarstown,and Lynn,Mass. Hist. of Lynn,
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JOSEPH] JAMES, and SAMUEL NASH

Three Nagh brothers, Joseph,James,and Samuel,were early settlers or
Pleasant River. They were born at Braintree,Mgss.,the sons of John

and Mary(Turbefield)Nash. All three were baptized on Nov.12,1727.
Joseph(3)Nagh married on ~ec.16,1746,Susanna,daugntg: of Joseph

Mary(Blanchard)ghaw of Weymouth,who was born March 3,1726. He died
before 1790. Their children were:

l.Isaiah,b.June 23,1748,at Weymouth;m.Mary Ingersoll;m.2nd,Mary Downes
m,3rd,Prigcilla Strout. '

3.Joseph,b.July 14,1750;8.a% Braintree;d.Apr.16,1839;m.Elizabeth Wass
on Oct.24,1773., She was born Sept.13,1757;d.Sept.23,1844,
3.8usanna,b.Jan.3,1753,at North Yarmouth,Maine;m.David Wass.
4,Molly,m.Benjamin Gooch.
5.John,b ,Nor¥th Yarmouth;m Eunice Merritt;m.2rd,Mrg.epzibah(Norton)Ram
dell. -
6.Isaac,b.May 10,1763,North larmouth;m.Judith Downes.
7.Abigail,in., Freeman Knowles.
8.Abtaham,b.Apr.26,1766,at Addison,Maine;m.Anna Look.

9.Ehenezer,m.Polly Strout.,

games\ 3)Nash married Margaret Thompson,Nov.9,1747. She was the
daughter of William and Margaret Thompson,and was born April 26,1726,

Thelr children were:
1.John,m.Ruth Cole.
2.Reuben,m.Mrs.Ruth(Cole)Nash.
3.Ruth b.Mar.31,1753.

4,Mary

5.William
6.James N.,bp.Apr.16,1756,

Samuel(3)Nagh,who while at Braintree,Mass.,was a private in Capt
Peter Thayer's Co. at Fort William Henry in 1757,married Kezis Orcutt,

June 10,1758. She was the caughter of Benjamin and Elizabeth Orcutt,
and was baptized May 7,1737. Their children were:

}.Samuel,m,Rachel White.
2.Isaac,m.Susan Corthell.
3.Keziah,m.John Holmes of Machias.

John(2)Nagh,father of Joseph,James,and Samuel Nash of Braintree

was called "husbandman" in the early records. e married June 28,1721

at Braintree,Mar sdaughter of James and Mar Campbell) Turbefield h
y y (camp ) efield. who
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was born Sept.16,1700,at Braintree. He died July 7,1745,and his wife
died June 6,1761.

Francis Nash was at Braintree as early as 1675,when he is 1liste

as a soldier in King Philip's War. He married lst,Blizabeth,...;m.2n¢

Mrs.Mary(Purchag)Niles, He died Aug.3,1713,and was Buried in the old
cemetery at Braintree,Mass. His widow died April 186,1735,aged 75 yeat

Joseph Nash's Revoiutionary service is as follows:

Joseph Nash,Sergeant in Capt.John Hallig detachment;enlisted
June 34,1777;discharged June 30,1777,service 6 days;detachment draftec
from the militia for service at Machias;also,Gapt.Jogp Hall's detach-
ment,Col.Benj.Foster's Reg't.;entered service Sept.26,1777;discharged
Sept.29,1777,service 4 days. Detachment marched to Machias and serve
there while British ships lay there. Roll dated at Pleasant River.

Samuel Nash,private,Capt.John Hall's Co.,Col.Benjamin Foster':
Reg't;service from Aug.7,1779 to Sept.7,1779,0ne month. Company mar-
ched on expedition to Major Bagaduce by order of Gen.Lovell. Robll en-
dorsed "Service at Penobscot".

James Nagh,corporal,Oapt.John Hall's detachment;enlisted Aug.
14,1777;discharged Sept.28,1777;service 14 days; detachment drafted
from militia for service at Machias;also,private,Capt.Hall's detach-

ment,Col.Foster's Regt.;entered service Sept.14,1777;discharged
Aug.19,1777;service 5 days;also,Capt.Halllg detachment,Col.Foster's
Regt.,entered service Spt.15,1777;dischargec Sent.28,1777,sevice 14 d;
detachment drafted from militia by order of Col.Poatéz3and marched to
the assbstance of Machias,and there served whén British ships lay in
that harbor. Roll dated Pleasant River.
References:Bangor Higt,Magazine;Nash uenealogy,

Mass.Soldiere and
S8ailors of the Rev.War;History of Braintree,Mass.
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(M'U.-R.",Feb.11,1937)

WILLIAM NICHOLS OF CHERRYFIELD

William(2)Nichols came to Narraguague and settled first at MiZRd=td)
and later came to Oherryfield. He was born in Northern Ireland,and cam
to this country with hls parents,Alexander and Henneh Nichols. He was o

Boston in 1762,and married Margaret,daughter of Samuel Breck there.
Their children were:

1.William

2.A son(these never came to Washington County)
3.Alexander,m.Martha Holway of Machies,

4.A daughter m.Robert G,Shaw.

5., Margaret,m.Jacob Townseley.
6.Betsey,m.Daniel Eliot,Apr.23,1797.

7.A daughter,m.John Campbell Todd.

Alexander(1)Nichols came with the Scotch-Irish gmigration to
America from Northern Ireland in the second quarter of the 18th cen-
tury. He lived in Bostom some years,but was at Bristol,Maine,before
1750 ,where he helped to build a sawmill at Allen Falls on Mill River.
He was a petitioner for the incorporation of the town &n May 25,1750,
and for the new county in 1752. His wife's name was Hannah, She died
Apr.3,1737. He died Feb.1,1758,aged 57 years. Two of his children
were of Washington County,Maine,William,and Elizabeth,who married
Alexander Campbell. Ther est of his children were about Boston ot

Newcastle.

William Nickels,2nd lieut. in command of Capt.Reuben Dyer's
Co.,C0ol,Benj.Foster&s Regiment;marched Sept.15,1777;discharged Oct.8,

1777,service 23 days;company marched to Machias on an alarm and served

therewiten the British ships lay in habbor;also service with roll date

at Bristol,Maineyin 1775, The latter probably the same William Nichols
-—“__-_—.
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(M."U.-R.",Feb.26,1937)
ISAAC PATTEN OF CHERRYFIELD

Isanc(5)Patten came to Cherryfield as & tanner in the days when

hides were hauled on ox teams to the forests of hemlocks for the

purpose of tanning. He was born in Billerica,Mass.,June 3,1739, the.

son of Thomas(4) and Miriam!Sterns)Patten. He married first,.....;zn;

Amy Allen of Goludsbor at Gouldsboro. She was born at Kittery.There
were children by the first marriage. By the second marriage:?

1,John,m 1st,Pamelia Leighton;m.2nd,¥rs. Nancx!Alline)Patten

3. Eobias n. Nggcz Alline.
3.Mary,m.Seth Norton.

4, William m.Ruth Foster.
5. Elizabeth m, J hn Small,

6.Lydla,m Benjamin Alline.

7.David,d.unm,
8;Nathanie1,d.unm.

Thomas(4)Patten,Jr. ,was born 0ct.23,1701,at Billerica,the son of

Thomas and Hannathoster)Pgtten. He married Miriem Stearns,daughter of
T Isaac and Mary(Crosley)Stearns,who was born Aug.5,or 3,1705.

Thomas(SIPatten was born Mar.232,1665066,the son of Thomas and
Rebecca!Pgine}Patten. He married Hannah Fogter Dec.21,1699.

Thomas(2)Patten was born Oct.,1636,1n Cambridge,the son of William,
and Mary Patten. He married April 1,1663,at Dedham,Mass.,Rebeeoa daugh ~
ter of WIhomas Paine. ~8he died May 19,1680. He became a freeman in

1688, and on May 20,1686,he married Mrs.Sarsh Dunton. He died Jan.18,
1689-90,at Billerica.

Filliam Pptten,with wife Mary came to Cambridge in 1635. He was
made a freeman in 1645,and was one of the original proprietors of

Billerica in 1658. He died Dec.10,16858.
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THOMAS AND TRISTRAM PINKHAM

Thomas(4) and Tristram(4)Pinkham came from Boothbay Harbor to

Steuben before 1769. They were the sons of Tristram and "grthggﬂazs)
Pinkham of Dover,N.H.

Thomas married Anne,daughter of Thomas and MargaretiMﬁrrax)Leighta
He died Dec.13,1825. His wife died Nov.13,1835.Their children were:

1l.Martha,b.Dec.5,1769.

SUMngaBBt b.May 4,1772.

&.Sarah,b. May 25, 1774

4, William b.0ct. 9 1776;m.Lucy «... .

5. Tristram b.Sept. 12 1781 ;m.Dolly .....

6. Benjamln b.May 37, 1779.

7.8usannah,b.May 25 1787;m.May 28,1828,S8amuel Davis.
8.Richard, b Dec.5 k788 m.1815 Elizabeth est.
9.Thomas, b. Aug.,1791 m. Nov a7, 1811 ,Peggy west.

Richard(4)Pinkham mgrried Mrs.Elizabeth(Leighton)Davis,a sister

of his brother's wife. Their children were:

l.Mary,b.8ept.4,1784.

3,James ,b.Jan.18,1783;m. Hannah Wallace.
33.Robertyb. Apr. 15,1787 ; m, Lydie Fernald.
4.Richard,b .Oct. 5 1790 m.Priscilla ..... .

SOMETHING WRONG ABOUT THIS.

Tristram(3)Pinkham, father to Richard and Tristram, was the son of

Richard and Elizabeth(Leighton)Pinkham ,and was born at Dover,N.H.} Aug.
16,1731,he married Martha Hays at Dover. She was the daughter of Samuel

and Leah Hays. His father gave him land and he also Trecelived land from
his father-in-law.

Richard(3)Pinkham,the son of Richard and Julia Pinkhem,lived at

Dover “eok,N H.,and was a carpenter. He married Elizabeth,daughter of

Thomase and ElizabethgNutter!Leightog. ‘

Richard is first mentioned as a resident of Dover Neck,N.H.,in 164

He was one of the constables,a man of study character and helpful in-
Tluence. He died after 1671. He was the fisth signer of the document

which renewed the government of the settlement of Dover Neck in 1640,

which is sometomes referred to ag Dover's Magna Charte
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Many of the e,rly Pinkhams became affiliated with the Friends' Church,
wnich was early organized at Dover. |
Although few Pinkhams are found on the lists of soldiers,owing to

their adherence to the Quaker beliefs,rristram Pinkham is found to have
the following service:

Tristram Pinkham,privete in Capt.Daniel Sullivan's Co.,Co0l.Benj.
Foster's reg't. He enlisted Nov,8,1780;discharged Nov.12,1780;service
4 days. Company ordered on duty by Col.John Allen to protect inhabi-

tants of Frenchman's Bay. Roll sworn $o at No.4,and certified at Head-

v

quarters,Eastern Indian “epartment,Machias.

References: Pinkham Genealogy;ﬁbst.col.of Dover,N.H, ;Mags.So0ld-

iers and Sailors of the Rev.War.
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(M."U,-R.",Feb.4,1937)
JOHN PUFFER OF COLUMBIA FALLS
John(#)Puffer came to Columbia Falls about 1825. He was born in
Oanton,Mass.,Nov.29,1793. He married Catherine R.Stanwood,who was born

May 5,1797,said to be of Gloucester,Mass.,but no record. They lived
for a time in Boston,then came to Frankfort,Maine,for & time,and final-
1y came to Columbia Falls. Thelr children were:

1.Jerusha,b, Aug.34,1817,Boston.
3.Catherine,b.Nov.15,1819,Boston;m.William Smith,.

3.Mary Allen,b.March 12,1832;in Boston;m,Harrison Smith.
4,John J.,b.July 29,1834,Frankfort,Maine.
5.Alice,b.Apr.15,1837,Columbia,Maine;m. Thomasg Dorr.
8.Redman,b.0ct.17,18239.

7.E1ijah Redmond,b.July 29,1834.

8. Taphena,b.8ept.13,1836;m,. Talbot French.
9.Winthrop,b.Dec.33,1828.
10.William Hensry,b.June 19,1832,
1ll.Arabella,b.July 28,1843;m.Elliot A.Foster.

John(%igg%fer was the son of Elijah(6) and Taphena(Billings)
Puffer,of Cambton,®ass. He early went to Gloucester, asgs.,and during the

War of 1813,was at sea,and was impressed into the British navy. Having

i
proved himslef an American ,he was thrown into DartmoeothPrison,where he

was kept 2 years and 5 months. .He died ec.28,1877,at Columbia Falls.

Elijah(6)Puffer was born at Stoughton,Mass.,the son of Seth
and Patience(Tolman) Puffer ,on July 23,1764, He married Traphena

Billinge of Canton. He was a cordwainer hy trade. fle died in 1813.

Seth(5)Puffer was born in 8toughton,Mass. ,Mar.11,1731,the son
of John§4§ and Abigail(Vose)Puffer. He married Mercy Bates,Dec.22,
1752;he m.2nd,June 5,1755,Patience Tolman,who died at Sharon in 1790.
S8eth died in 1786.

John(4)Puffer was born at Dorchester,Mass. ,0ct.3,1698,the son
of John(3) and Mary(Holbrook)Puffer. He lived in Stoughton,Mass. ,and
was a soldier in the French and Indian War. 4 rpivate in Major Stephen

t
Miller's Co.,May 3,1757,0on alarm 1list. He married at Boston,uec 14 129
L[] ] ~¥
4

Sa.
S22ah(01a00) Vog,
e ————

Abigail daughter of John angd
th
ere Feb.21,1765.
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John(3)Puffer was the son of Mathias(2) and Rachel(Farnsworth
Puffer,and was born at Braintree,Mass.,0ct.10,1665. He was an early
settler in the part of Dorchester afterward called Stoughton,still

later,0gnton, Hg was lieutenant in a military company during the

early colonial wars. He married,Deo.17,1695,M§zz Holbrook of Roxbury,
who died Jgn.lS,l?SO,at Stoughton, _

Matt%as!Z)Puffer,born about 1635,was the son of the first of

that name in America.George(1)Puffer of Braintree. He was one of the

thirteen persons ordered to be settled in mendon,Mass.,in September,
1663. He was selectman there in 1871-2. The first victims of King

Philip's War in Massachusetts were his wife and son,who were killed
July 10,1675. Mendon was deserted at this time,,nd although most of
the first settlers returned,he settled at Dorchester. He married at

Braintree,March 12,1663 ,Rachel, daughter of Joseph Farnsworth -of Dor-

chester. He married at Bedham,April 11,1677,Abigail Everett,and third
at Milton,May 14,1697,¥rs.Mary Orehove. He died May 9,1714.

GeorgeglzPuffer was one of the r esidents ofﬁposton who were
granted land at Mount Wollaston,Braintree,Feb.27,1639. He was born

a8 early as 1600,and died at Braintree the same year he settled there,

Sept.27,1639. His widow died at Braintree,Feb.18,1678.

Elijah Puffer and S8eth Puffer were both soldiers in the Revo-

lutionary War. Elijah puffer,private 8toughton,Mass. ,Cant.Abner Crane
Co.jenlisted Feb.2,1779;service to May 4,1779,3 months,2 days,with

guards at Boston.

Also return of men raised in Suffolk County for the Continen-

tal Army service,agreeable to Regolve of Dec.2,1780.
8toughton,May 33,1781.

Engaged for

Seth Puffer was a soldier of the French and Imdian War ,a
drummer in Capt.Stephen Meller's Co.,list dated May 3,1757. His



58

WASHI%@ON COUNTY
Revolutionary service was: private Capr.Jasmes Endicott's Co.,00l.l.emuel
Robbins's Reg't,April 19,1775;servige two days;also Capt.Samuel Figher's
Co.,Col.Jonathan Pitcomb's Reg't.;service 2 months,3 daysgexpedition to
Rhode Island,May 3,1777,also Capt.John Bradley's Co.,Col.Benj.Gill's Reg
and marched to Vermont to join the northern army;service 2 months,3 days

aleo in Capt.John Baxter's Co.,Ms3.0ob Cushing's Regt.,at Hull,roll dat-
ed Medford;service 14 days.

neferences: Puffer Genealogy,Savage's Gen.Dict.,Me.Hist.& Gen.Reg.,

Mass,.80ldiers and Sgilors in the Yev.War.
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THOMAS RIGGLES OF COLUMBIA FALLS
Thomas(6)Ruggles came to Columbia Falls after the Revolutionar

War. He was postmaster,merchant,and farmer,and became an important

figure in the early 1ife of that town. He married April 6,1796,Ruth |
Clapp of Dorchester,mass. Their children,all born at Columbia,were:

1.William Henry,b.Dec.23,1798;unm, ,
3.Charles C.Pinkney,b.Sept.27,1797.
3.Frederick Augustus,b.Jan.8,1801;m.Caroline Bucknam,

4,George Washington,gigan.11,1803;m.lst,geEecca ﬁ&lson;m.and, Lucy
SOn.

5.Benjamin Franklin,E.ﬁov.3,1804;d.Nov.5,1831.
6.Philander,®.June 6,180%;d.July 12,1805,

7.Ruth Clapp,b.Jan.26,1809;m.Joseph Crandon.
8.Betsey Mitchell,b.Nov.21,18T0;d.July %6,T814.
9.Lucy Swift,b.May 37,1813;m.Rev.Emery “rown.
10.8ophia,b.May 25,1815;unm.

Thomas§6zaggg1es was born Nov.20,1770,at Rochester,mass.,the‘sq

of Nathanbel and Deliverance(Barrow)Ruggles. He died in Mschias. qec.20
1820,aged 50 years.

Nathaniel(5)Ruggles,born April 12,1725,at Rochester,son of
Timothy and Mary(White)Ruggles. He married,Nov.5,1753,Deliverance,
daughter of Eligha and Thankful Barrow,born Mar.18,1735. He died

Dec.25,1776;he was then 51;she died Feb,1,1807,aged 73 ‘years.

Rev. Timothy(4)Ruggles,born Nov.3,1685,the son of Samuel and
Mprtha(Woodbridge)Ruggles of Roxbury. He graduated from Harvard

College in 1707,and became the minister ataﬁochester:%uss. He marri e

Mary White,uec.27,1710. He died Oct.26,1768,aged 84;sh¢: died Jan.23,

in her 62nd year.

Samuel(3)Ruggles,born Jan.1,1659,was the son of Samuel En%,;

Hannah(Fowlef)Ruggles. He married July 8,1680,Martha,duu¥;htgr of -the

Rev.John Woodbridge. He died “eb.35,1716;she died in '1738,a% Bille:

AY

ca,MaBss.



Mg‘-ﬁi—;f— o e : 80

"WASHINGTON COUNTY
Samuel(2)Rugsles ,the son of Thomas Ruggles, came from Englang
é

- with hie father in 1637. He married Jan.10,1655,Hannah Fowles,

dauggter of George Fowles of Chatlestown. He wzs representative

from 1689 to 1692,and died Aug.15,1692. His widow died Sept.11,
3 Lol P 1R

Thomas(1)Ruggles came in 1637 with his wife,Mary,and two chil-

dren. He wasmade freeman '‘ay 29,1639,and died Nov.15,1644. Mary ,
his widow,later married & Roote and lived to be 82 years old.

Nathaniel Ruggles,Rochester,Mass.,private in Capt.Joseph

Parker's Co.,Col.Ebenezer Psout's Reg't.;service 12 days;company
marched from Rochester to "Foglon ’erry“,R.I.,under the command of
2nd Lieut.John Doty on the alarm of Dec.8,17786.

References: Vital :ecords,ﬁochester,uass.;Savage's Gen.Dict/
Maine Hist,Society Coll.;Bangor Hist.Society Mag.,Vol.Edlir;Mass.

= Soldiers and Sailors; Columbia,Maine,Records.
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(Machias "U.-R.",July 2,1936)
ENOCH SANBORN OF MACHIAS

Enocli S8anborn,who was an early settler in Machias,was born in Hamps:
ton Falls,N.H.,June 28,17234. He is sald to have been an ensign in the

British army at Cape Breton. He lived most of his 1ife at Hampton Falls:
then went to Epping,N.H.;then to Machias,Maine. He died in 1798. He way

married four times;1lst to Mary Morrill,13/3/1747;2nd,to Mrs.Sarah(Green)
Sanborn,11-37-172;3rd,te Phebe 8 nborn,daughter of Jabez and Abigail

(Marston)8anbern,and 4th ,to Mrs.Hannah Day,10-15-1786. His children wer

l.Daniel
d.Apphia,m.Jacob Palmer.

3.Mary Merrill,m.AEijaE Sanborn.

4.Jdbez,m.Mar§ Rundell.

5.Enech,b. - .

6.John,b.1767;m.Betsey Parker.(?)
7.Richard,b.1769;m,1st,Hannah Foster;3nd,Betsey Williams.

8.Phebe,m.Enoch Pglmer.
9.Wiliiam,b,1773.

Enoch Sanborn was the son of Enoch and Elizebeth(Dennett)Sanborn,
who were married in 1709. Elizabeth Bennett was the daughter of Alexans

er and MehitablegTetherlx)Dennett of Portsmouth. Alexander was the son o:
Alexander,the immigrant,who came to Portsmouth from England in 1668. He

was a carpenter and surveyor of land. He livedmost of his 1ife in New
Castle,where he died in 1698. Mehitable was the daughter of Gabriel
Tetherly,who bought land at Boiling Rock in k660,

Enoch Sanborn was born in k685,the son of John and Judith(Coffin
Sanborn. He married Elizasbeth Dennett in 1709, and Mrs.Mehitable(Blake)
Godfrey ,4/1/1736. Judith Ooffin was the daughter of Iristram Coffin,an
Mrs.Judith(Greenleaf)Somerby,who were merried 3/2/1853,at Newbury,Mess.

Tristram was born in 1632,in England,the son of Tristram and Dionis

(Stephens)Coffin of Brixton,Plymouth,Devonshire._ The familt came first

to Salisbury,then Haverhill,then Newbury,about 1848,but moved to Nantuck
in 1660.
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John Sanborn,the son of tieut.John and Mary(Tuck)Ssnborn,was born
in 1649,and died 9-28-1627. Mary Tuck wes the daughter of Robert and
Lucy Page,who mme to North Hampton in 1637.

Lieut.John Sanborn was the son of John Sanboumne and Anne Bacheler

»and was born in England in 1620. His parents died soon after,and he
came to America with his maternal grandfather,ﬂev.steghen Bacheler,along
with his two brothers,William and Stephen. The came in the ship "William
and Francis',and laned in Boston June 5,1632. The went to Lynn,where th
Rey.Mr,Bacheler established himself as minister of his flock. Trouble
arose,as his beliefs did not conform to those of the Massachusetts offi-

ct@ls,and he removed to Newbury,and in 1638,he became the founder of

North Hampton,N.H.
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(Machias"U.-R.",Nov.26,1936)
JOHN, JONATHAN,EBENEZER, AND ELISHA SMALL OF NARRAGUAGUS
Three sons of Jgohn 8mall of Cape Elizabeth came with their father

to the Narraguagus Valley about 3762, The father had been twice married

Ebenezer and Jonathan were children of the first wife. Eligha was only

four years old when he came with Bis psrents.

Ebenezer Small was the son of John and Sally(Hopkins)Small. He

maTried Abigell(Nabbix¥hmlehton,and theircohildren were:

1.Deborah,m.James Colson.
3.8amuel,m. Yolly Colson.
3.Thomas,m. Deborsh Tucker.
4,Lydia,m.James Gross.
5.Nabby,m.Samuel Tuttle of Perry.
6lJohn
7.Eben,m. Harriman.
8.Peggy,m.James Cates.
9.Sa11y,m.T1mothx Cates.
10,Anna,m.8ames Leighton,July 7,1829,

Jonathan 8mall,the son of John and Sarah(Hopkins)Small,married ?
His children were:

1.John,m.Elizabeth Patten.
2.Joseph :

3.Timothy

4,Daniel,m. Coffin.
S5.James,m.Priscilla Worcester.

Elisha Smallison of John and Priscilla(Strout)Small,married
Priscilla Strout, Feb.18,1782,and their children were:

1l.Benjamin ,b.Jan.9,1785;d.July 19,1828;m.Jan.22,1815,8yrena Wakefield,b.
May 6,1796;d.Mar.11,18686. i

2.8ally,b.Mar.13,1787;d.Noc.237,1855;m. ,1806,Mark Wilson,b.Sept.20,1782;
d.Feb.15,18868. '

3.Mary,b.April 14,1789;d.0ct.28,1868;m.Isaiah Leighton. '

4.Willlam,b.July 19,1793;4.6/23/1789;m.Dec.21,1819, Lydia Godfrey,b.Nov.21
1794;d.Apr.4,1861.

5.Eligha,b.May 30,1795;d.0¢t.4,1855;m. Dec. 23,1823 ,Nancy Ward,b.Mar.21,
1798;d.Feb. 14,1875, ‘

6.1s2ac,b.Feb.16,1797;d.8ept.21,1897;m.Irene Leighton.
7.Daniel,b.0ct.10,1800;d.April,1884;m. Nancy Goffin,Mar.25,1828.

John Small,father of Jonathan,Ebenezer,and Elisha,also came to

Narraguagus in 1762. He was born in Provinc@town,Mass.,Oct.8,1731,the

son of John and Honnah(Barnaby)Small. He married 1st,Feb.9,1751, Saran

Hopking; he marrieq 2nd,at Falm :
: outh,p
at Harraguegus. ’ »Briscilla Strout,0ct.27,1757, He dleq
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John Small was born at Truro,Mass.,0ct.19,1704,the son of Baniel

Small. He married Hannah Barnaby,the daughter of Stephen and Ruth(Mor-
ton)Barnaby;intentions,Feb.24,1727/8. They 1lived at Truro,Provincetown,
and Falmouth,Maine.

Daniel Small,youngest son of Damiel and Elizabeth Smallyas born ir
Maine,between 16687 and 1674,before his father moved to the Cane. His
wife's name is not known. He was living in 1730,when he conveyes lands
to his sons at Truro. - ,

Francis Small,son of &Zdward Smell, was baptized Oct.8,1635,in
8t.Mary's Parish,Biddeford County,Devon,England. He married Flizabeth?
Leighton, He came to this country about 1834,and died in 1713,at

Trure. 1In 1657,he was of Casco Bay,when he received a deed of land from

the Indians. He lived in Falmouth amd Kittery,and in his old age went
to Cape Cod to 1live with his son Daniel,and died at Truro.

Edward Small came to this counyry about 1635,4nd is found at
Kittery before 1643. His wifeis name is Elizabeth,and it is believed
that she never came to New England. He brought Francis, then about ten
years old,with him,and she remained in England with the other children,

Edward Small was a refined and cultured man,and was of the Isles of

Shoals in 1653, Hg held many government positions during the years that
he wasen this side of the Atlantic. It is believed that he returned to

his family permanentky in 1655,0r theresbouts,as hewige?gt mentioned in

th;a country after that time,and at the time of hiiAdeath,in Biddeford,

England,Feb.10,1665, she is spoken of as his wlfe,not his widow.

In Eastern Maine,John,Elisha,and Ebenezer Small have the follow
ing service:

Ebenezer Small{private,Capt.ReubenrDyer's Comnany;enlisted Oct,

14,1777;discharged Dec.6,177;service 1 month,24 dayg, op expedit1 )
’ on S
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AGATNST STJOHN 8.

Elisha Small,Township No.4,private,Capt.Reuben Dyer's Co.:

May 28,1777;discharged July 23,1777,also corporal in Lieut.William
. charged Aug/23,1777;service,? days;
Nichols's Co. Marched Aug.15,1777;9ischarged 0ct.2,1777,service 18 daysq
alsecorporal Capt.Hall's 0o.,Aug.7,1779 to Sept.7,1779;service 1 month.
Also,sergeant,Capt.Dyer's Co.,Mar.14,1780 to May 1,1780;service,1 month,

17 days.

John Small,Narraguagus,sergeant,CQPt.Francia Shaw's Co.,enligtec
Sept.11,1775;service,3 months,3 weeks,and 8 daysjcom.at Gouldsboro No.4,
Nerraguagus,and Pjeasant River,for the defense of the sea coast,

There is also service for Daniel,Jeremiah,and Jogeph Small ,1ist-
ed from Narraguagus.
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PETER(4)TALBOT OF MACHIAS
Peter(4)Talbot came to Machias in 1771. He wasborn at Stoughton,
Mass. ,Nov.6,1745,the son of Peter(3) and Abigail(Wheeler)Talbot. He

married Lucy Hammond,the daughter of Daniel and Lucy(Joneg)Hammond,born
July 35,1752, Peter Talbot became an influential man in the town of

Machias., He was represemtative to the General Court at Boston in the .
year 1800,and he rode on horseback to attend it. He died April 28,1826,
His wife Lucy died at East Machias,June 10,1831,aged 80 years. Their

children,all born in Machias,were:

1.4pphia,b.Apr.8,1778;d. “ot.13,1860;m. AbLlah Foster,1790.
3.lucy,b.Jan,18,1775;d.Nov.27,1861;m.Joglah Harris. ,
3.8tephen,b.Feb,.7,1781;d.Apr.29,1811,unm, .
4.Peter,b.Mar.29,1783;m.Eliza Chaloner;d.1831;m.2nd,Rebecca O'Brien.
5.John Ceffin,b.0Oct.13,1784;d.4ec.18,1861;m.Mary Foster,00t.27,1809,
6.Micah Jones,b.May 18,1787;d.Jan.17,1869;m. etsey Rich,0ct.15,1809.
7.8ally Jones,b.Feb.34,1792;d.Nov.239,1856:m.Caleb ary.

Peter(3)Talbot,bapt zed Mar.3,1717,at Stoughton,Mass.,was the son

of George(2) and Mary(Turell)Talbot. He married,’ec.5,1744,Abigall
Wheeler,who died Nov.3,1750. He married 2nd,Jan.8,1752,Mary Bailey,who

died May 17,1753, He died there Oct.18,1793.

George(2)Talbot,born Dec.28,1688,was the sontof Peter and Mary(Wa-
dell)Talbot. He lived in that part ofADorchegﬁer now Stoughton., He
married MayyTurell in Milton,Mass.,Feb.18,1706/7. He and his wife were
admitted to the Milton church Apr.4,1714,and were dismissed to the Dor-
chester New Village Chmrch June 25,1718, He died July 30,1760. He mar-
ried second,Elizabeth .... , who died Apr.3,1774.

Peter(1)Talbot was born in Langashire,England,and while attending

school in Edinburgh,he with two schoolmates,was seized and impressed on
a man of war bound for America. When near the Rhode Igland shore,he eg-
caped and swam ashore. He made his way to Dorchester,where he found

work,and after two disheartening attempts to return

n to England,deqided
to remain in the new country.

He marriedq Jan.12,1677,Marz Wadell. They
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removed to Chélmsford for a time,and while there,an Indian raid on
his home resulted in the death of an infamt child and the capture of
his wife. 8She was soon recovered,but his eldest son lost his 1ife. The
the family decided to return to Dorchester,where he lived until his des
in 1704.

Peter Talbot's Revolutionary service follows:Private in Capt.Stephen

Bmith's Co.,Col.Benj.Foster's Reg't,service between qec.4,1778,and Jan.

4,1779,2 days at Mschias.

Peter Talbot(nrobably his father),8toughton,Capt.of a company in

Col.Lemuel Robinson's Reg't,which marched on the alarm of Anril 19,
1775;service 7 days.
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(Machias "U.-R,",Dec.17,1936)
WHEELER TRACY OF STHUBEN

Wheeler Tracy lived on Gouldsboro Pointmgpd is 1isted as of Steuben
in the census of 1790. He was bhorn Feb.3,1765,the son of Jonathan and
Abigailgﬁiggs}Tracz. He was their eleventh child,and the first to be

born in Gouldsboro. He married lst,8arah Clifford,and 2nd ,Sally
Bakefield. His children were:
l.Levi,m.Mary A.Tucker.
2,Darious,m.MaTy Perry.
3.Eri,d.young.

4.John,m,.Lydie Tracy.
5.Bnoch,m.Maria Guptill.
6.theler,Jr.,m;Marz‘éeland.
7.Daniel,mGAnna ascey.
8.Lydia,m.%corge Chillcott.
9.Hannah,m;WTT%faﬁ'riﬁaﬁT'

10.8arah,m.Edward Hutchins.
11.8ally,d.young.

Jonathan(4)Tracy was born Dec.29,1713,at Preston,Conn.,the son of
Ohrigtopher and lydia(Parish)Tracy. He married Abigall Riggs ,1743,at

Falmouth. She was the daughter of Jeremiah and ﬁachelelwell)Riggs,bdrn
May 5,1736;died 9,1795. Li#ed at Falmouth for a time,then removed to

Gouldsboro,Maine. He died at Steuben in 17986,

Christopher(3)Tracy,born May 1,1680,at Prestbn,conn.,the son of

Jonathan and Mary(Griswold)Teacy. He married May 20,1705, Lydia,danghter

of John and Mary(Wattell)Parish,who was born Apr.20,1687,at Groton,Conn.
He died Feb.9,1729.

- Jonathan(2)Tracy,born in 1646,at Saybrook,Conn.,the son of

fhomas and Mary Tracy,married July 11,1672,Mpry,daughter of Lieut. ranci

|
and MarzGriswold,who was born Aug.26,1656,and died Apr.24,1711.
at Preston, Conn/

ThomaegllTracz,born in 1610,1in England,was the son of 8ir Paul

He died

and grandson of Richard Tracy of Stanway,Emgland,came to Salem in 1838

and was at Wethersfield,conn.,in 1640,

He removeq to Saybrook,by 1648,
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and in 1660,was one of the proprietors of the new settlement of
Norwich,Conn. ,where he 1ived the remainder of his 1ife. Heg married

in 1641,Mrs.Mary Mason,widow of Edword Magon. She was the mother of

his seven children. He married second,Mrs.Martha(Bourne)Baadford,

and,third,Mrs.MarxfFoote)Stoddard Goodrich. He was appointed in 16873

lieutenant of the forces raised in New London Co.,Conn.,to wage war

against the Dutch and the Ipdians.

“eferences: Register of Gouldsboro¥01d Wethersfield"; "Tracy Gen, ";
Vital Records of Gloucester/
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JOSEPH, BENJAMIN,AND JOSIAH WALLACE OF NARRAGUAGUS,NOW MIIBRIDGE
Joseph(4) and Benjamin(4)Wallace were sons of John and Patience
(Hodgkins)Wallace. Joseph was bornApril 1,1736,in Gloucester,Mass,

and Ben]amin was born Oct.4,1738,1in Gloucester,mass. About 1745,

the family moved to Falmouth,Maine,now Portland. Hoseph was a sea
captain,who traded along the coast,and it was he who in 1763 brough:
the families of the first settlers to Machias. About 1760,he had
settled near the mouth of the Narraguagus River,and his brother,
farther up the river,also on the east side.

Joaeph(@)Wallagg or Wallig,as it was then svelled,married Lucy
Thorndike,Oct.5,1765,at Fallouth. She was the daug-ter of Robert
and Q}izabeth(Wbodberry%Thorndike.Their only childwas: |
1l.Josep},dr. ,born in 1762,who married Deborah,daughterof Stephen an

" ’Deborah(E11is)Smith of Machiss. Joseoh,8r,died In
1826,ageé 90 years,and his wife Lucy, in 1814,
Benjamin(4)Wallis married Hannah Penniman,July 4,1761,at
Falmouth,and their children were:
1.Robert
32.James,m,Lucy Thorndike.
3.Benjamin,Jr,.,m.8ally Wallace,
4.Patience,m.Thomasg Leighton,dr.
S.Annie,m.Temple offin.
6. Joanna,m, Solomon Strout .
Teeeeeeooym.Job Smith,

8.Mary,m.Moses Hinckley.

Joseph(4)8r.,was & Revolutionary War veteran with the fol-

lowing service: Capt.,4th Co.,Col.Benj.Foster's Reg't;comhissioned
Feb.1,1779;als0,Capt.8th Co.,Col,Benja.Foster's Lincoln County Reg"

of Mass.Militia. No date. He was commonly known as "™Ma jor",and is
80 referred to by Gen.Cob® in his diary. His commission we such is

not given in the Mass.Rev.Records.

Benjamin Wallace,lst lieutenant,Capt.Dyer's 6th Co.,Col.
Benjamin Foster's Begiment. List of officers dated Gouldsboro, Jun:

.3 ! . 76;a a ther 1list f ser-
%%cég7?n,%ﬁglsgmgo$og3%g.11,17 6;also,several othe sts o



R
D
a0

~

oK
J
e
-
N

“Went to Cape Ann a}éh&t time,and Josiah went to Gloucester:» Herew@;:ﬁi,

£ . WY TR
r ,A? gy Juaasna{h )
_AMASHINGTON cOUNTY 4

John(3)Wallis, father of Benjamin amd Joseph,was born in Glouceg-

ter,in 1696, the son of Josiash and Marzgstanfordzwallis. At an early

age,he accomnanied hig narents to Falmouth to take up residence on

v \,
lands granted to the family be‘ore the destruction of the towné.ln A

greatly. Four of Jogiah's brothers angd Jheir families were affected.

Josiah's wife ang youngest childQSusannah,were killed; two daughters

were taken into captivity,and Jo%iah himself'escaped with his young |

3

son John on his back,as hé swam across to Black Point,now Scarborough

The Wallis holdings of land were near épring Point,in what ig now

South Portland, then called Purpoduqk. Most of the Falmouth citizens

Johﬁ‘mar;iea Patifn %Hb' kins,Jan.8,1718-9. She was the daughter of

H
]
i
4

sxSamuel and Hannah Hod kins. They had a large family of children, ;

}

e ——

son of John(1) 'and Mary(Phippen)Wallis. He marri%e Mary Stanford, /
daughter of Robert Qnd Mary Stanford of E@1moutﬁiéﬁﬁﬁ&%%%ELﬁéflgiégqc |

deadir, he married?Baran “1--- »Dec.19,1776,at Gloucester. He willed

/ ;
Joaiah(z)wallis,born in 1662;died in 1741 ,a% G:oucester,was th¢

his land at Falmouth to hig children,and membeis of his family return-

ed there to claim the property.

John(1)Wallis was born at Cornwall,England,about 1630.He came
%o this country with hig brother,Nathaniel(1)w31;3§, in the 1650's,

where he was an early settler at Casco. Both took the oath of allegi-
ance to the Massachusetts government, July 13,1658, They were loyal

members of the church of England,and were very active in the move ment

which tried to prevent the Puritan government of Massachusetts from

gainiﬁg control of the eastern lands, John lived at Purpooduck Point,

but was driven away when the town was ravaged in 1875, ‘The family

- He agg
. gatturned t4
almouth,where was petitioning for ¢ nf rma ti%ﬂ of lmng
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which he claimed to have possessed "neere fifty years" in 1687,and he
was & selectman in 1681. He returned to Gloucester after the second

Indian attack,and died there Sept.35,1690. He had married Mary,probably

the daughter of Jogeph and Dorcas!Wood!Phiggen of Dorchester,Mass.,and

\
Falmouth,Maine. Hence David Phippen went surety for her upon the ad- ;v
ministration of the estate of John Wallis. She later married John Black

of Beverley,ﬁass. The early court records show traces of the family,

The Josiah(S!Walmace who settled at Narraguagus by 1792 was a
nephew of Joseph(4) and Benjamin(4),and son of Josiah(4) and Abigail
(White)Wallis of Falmouth. He married Sally Roberts Mar.31,1783,als0 of

Falmouth,and they had:

l.Joseph,m.Mar.20,1819,Sarah Small.

2.Josiah,Jr.,m.Nov.17,1§21;Sallz §awzer;m.2nd,011mena Leighton,
3.John,m. .... Young of Gouldsbkor,

4.Joanna,m.Jan,1,1803,Clement Phinney.(probably 1813)
5.Eliza,m,April 13,1818,Georze Burke. _
8.Mary C.,h.Aug.11,1833,Robert Buzzell.

7.Ablgail,m Robert Jordan of Portiand.
8.Cynthia,b.Nov.17,1835, John Strout.

dosiah Wallis,brother %6 Benjamin and Yoseph ,was also a Revo- -

lutionary veteran,with his residence at Falmouth at the tdme of the enlis

ment.

(Rt

References: History of Falmouth,History of @ oucester,History of
Salem,Maine Historical Society Coltections,History of
Machias,Vital Records of floucester and Beverly,Mass,,
New England Hist.and Gen. egister,Bangor Historical
Society Magazine,Vol.9,York County Deeds,Vol.18,Mass.
Soldiers and Saliors of the Rev.War,Mss. of 0.S.Tibbetts
of Portland,Maine.

.la&k ¢
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(Machias "U.-R.";0ct.8,1936)
TILLY WHITE OF ADDISON
Tilly White was an ear;y settler in Addison. He was born in
Lancaster,Mass.,Sept.3,1736,the son of John and Lois{Wildeerhite.
He married first,in Lancaster,intentions published 0ct.1,1761,§§§gggg
Boames of Harvard,Mass/ They resided for a time in Lancaster,and two
children were born there. We next find Tilly White at Addison,Maine,
where he married, second, Tamson Willey. In those days,when travel and
letter writing were not common,it was thought by his children,who lived
with an uncle,that their father had died when they were young. But in
his father's will,written in 1797,he saye‘"To my sonTilley one dollar,
if he comes for it in one yvear" which shows that he did not think him
dead., He lived in Aédison,Maine,gnd died there Feb.14,1810. His wife,
Tamson,died December,lazs,aged 76 years. His children were by his
first wife,were two.

Children:

Abl jah,b.Lancaster,Sept.31,17621m. Oct. , 1793, Bathehebs Hobbing.

Eunice,b.Lancaster,Oct.8,1764;m.Nathaniel Reynolds.
(by his second whfe)

- John,b.Addison;m.and settled in Sullivan.

Rachel,m.Samuel Nash.
Jonathan,m,Abigail Bancroft.

Ephraim,b. June 14,1773 ;m, ec.1,1796,Mary Libby.
Lucy,b.l?BS;m.Jehn Springer.

William,b.Mar.4,1776:m. 8511 CQummbnes , who died Sept, 1805:m. 2nd
'Willey,b. Adison,iar i 1roo b’ , ,1805;m. 2nd, Abigsil

Lois,m. .... Sawyer.
Elizabeth,m.Samuel Gummings. -

Ichabod,b.Sept.4,1791;m.lst,Feb.12,1812,Lucinda Bancroft,d.Oct.,1826;m.
3nd, Amebia Nash,b.1806;4d.1889,

Capt.John White,father of Tilley,was born in Lancaster in 1714, the
son of Jnohn and Eunice(Wilder)White. He married Mar.19,1735,Lois Wilder,

daughter ~of Judge Joseph and Lucy(Gardner)Wilder, He died in Lancaster

Feb.23,1797. His wife.Lois,died Dec.2,1790. He was a Revolutionary

soldier.

John White,born in Lancaster S
Mary(Ricgpy

pt.30,1684, the son of Josiah and

20T 0 o
LN Y ey

=married Eunice Wilder
. _e ,daugpter ofﬂggﬁygygg;apdﬁMggg,;
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QSagzerQWilder. He was a s@ldier with Capt.Lovell in 1725.against the
indian enemy. He died early in 1736,and his wife was allowed 100 nounds,

in considerstion of the good services of her husband,Capt.John Whi te,

to aid her to support her fatherless childreg.
Josiah White,baptized in Salem,June 4,1643,was born in’Wrentham,

Mass. ,and moved with his parents,John and_Joanna(West)White,to Lancas-

ter before May 1,1653. He married first,Mary Lewlis. He married Nov. 8,

1678, Mary Rice,daughter of Thomas and Mary(King)Rice of Marlboro,Mass.
Josiah White was a prominent man in the affairs of the town. He died

Nov.11,1714. His wife dled Aug.22,1733. She had later married Thomas

Sawyer.
thn,Whttewmeso@fsaakamEMass,,in 1638,when he was granted 80 gores

of land.In 1642,he was granted land at Wrentham,where he settled fot a
time. He first went to Lancaster about‘1753. He had 20 acres of land
allotted him there,and lived there the rest of his 1ife. His wife was |
Joan West,and they were married May 37,1637,at Draxton Parish,England.
His wife died May 18,1654. He died in 1873, |

Tilley White's Revolutionary services ag follows:Tilley White,

private,Capt.Daniel Sullivan's Co.,Goi.Benjamin Foster's Reg't;disch&rgr
ed 0ct.11,1777;service 1 month,8 days}company called out three times fon
service at Machias;also,Capt.Jabez West's Co.;enlisted 0ct.17,1777:dis-
charged Dec.6,1777;1 month,22 days. Company raised for exnedition
against Nova Scotia. Also Capt.John Hall's Co.,same regiment,from
Aug.7,1779,%0 8ept.7,1779;0ne month at the Penobscot.

His afther,John White,was a lieutenant in Cant.John Prescotts
Co.,April,1775. In July,Capt.John White's Co. marched to Bennington, Vt.
A payroll of his comnany in Col.Stearns's Tegiment of militia,doing

duty from April 1,1778 to July 2,1778,recorded in the Military Annails

of Lancaster,
References:Descendants of J
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(Machias "U.-R.",July 30,1936)
ZENAS AND THEOPHILUS WILDER OF DENNYSVILLE

Both Theophilus(5)Wilder,Sr.,and Theophilus(6)Wilder,Jr.were on

the lists of first settlers of DennysvBiver in 1788, They came there

from Hingham,Mass.,as dif most of the others of that earliest group of

ploneers to that tract.

Capt.Theophilus Wilder.Sr.,was born May 16,1740,the son of
Theophilug and Marx(Hersh312Wilder. He married Lydia Cushing, who,who

was born Sept.7,1745,at Hingham,Mass. ,the daughter of Ebenezer and

| Sarah!Lincolnzcushing. S8he died Aug.1,1811,at Dennysville. He died.

0ct.238,1821. He was a soldier in the Revolutionary Wer,with the fol-

lowing service:

Theonhilgg;Wilder,Hingham,lieurenant in Capt.Enoch Whiton's
Co.,C0l.Benjamin Lincoln's Regiment,whbch sssembled April 19,1775,

service 3 days.

Theophilus Wilder,also given Jr.,Hingham,1lst lieutenant,

Capt.Stephen Pennimag's Co. ;communi cation addressed to the Couneil,
dated Hull,Aug.5,1776. Also seven other lists of service in Vol.17,
PpP.352-3,extending to Oct.29,1780.

Zenas Wilder,Hingham,also had servicéd given in the same

volume,on p.355,
Their children were:

l.Lydia,b,Jan.28,1763;d. June 16,1763.

3.Lydia,b.May 31,1764;m.William Lewis,Apr.4,1784;m.2nd,ﬂ1111am South-
worth, Aug.6,1792,

S.TheophIIus,b.Jan.21,1766;m.lst,Marz Bridges;m.znd; Hannah Waterman,
Oct.20,1801.

4. Haryibodaly 15,1768:m,.William Kilb .

5.8arah,b Aug.B,1770;m.m.Moses Lincoln,Mar. 31, 1788,
6.Ebenezer,b. A .32,1772;m.Abigall Ayer.
7;Susannah,b.1774; m,Mary?Allen,
8.Bela,b.00t.15,1776;m. annah Lewis.
9.Persis,b.Feb.26,17791d.§ept,15,1799.

10.Persis,b.00t.13,1780;m.James Reynolds.

%&.éf%orah b.D307%3,1782énh illiem Mavhew.
« B, nnys

zabeth,b. 1787 a1 5 YSVIITern. Yhomis Bagtman
lﬁITheodore,b.1792;E.Margaret Hersey. astnan,
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Zenas(5)Whldeybrother of Capt.Theophilus Wilder,also came to

Dennysville. He was born Aug.20,1752,and Married Bathsheba Wilder,
daughter of Isaac and Bathsheba Wilder,on May 19,1780. Their chil-

dren were?

1,.Zenas,b.June 28,1781;m.Hannah Clark.
B.Bathsheba b. May 5, 1785.
3.Tolman,b.Dec.26,1784.

4, Theophilus b. Jan 17,1787,

5,Pyam,b. 3/2/1789.

8. Lydia b.9/9/1791.

7. Mary,b Apr.32,1794.

8.Bunice,b. Sept 26,1796.

g. Ephraim b.Sept. 24 ,1798,

Theophilus(4)Wilder,fatherof Theophilus and Zenas, was born

March 12,1710. He married Mary Hershey Dec.28,1732. She was the

daughter of Daniel and Mary(May)Hershey. He died June 30,1787. He
was the son of Jgbez and Mary(Ford)Wilder.

Jabez(3)Wilder,born in Hingham,Mass. ,March,1657/8,the son of

Edward and Eliz&beth!@gmes!ﬂilder. He married Marx Ford of Medford,
who was born May 16,1871,and died Feb.1, 1747/8. He died May 24,1731,

Edward(z)W11der was born in 1623 and died _0ct.28,1890, the son

..—-——-

of . Thomas and mgrtha Wilder. His father died in 1834,and his mother
came to America with four of her fivg children in the ship "Comfi dench

which sailed from Southhampston in 1638. Edward was one of the early
planters of Hingham,and received a grant of ten acres of71and Oct.8,

1639. He became a freeman May 29,1644,and married Elizabeth Eames

about 1680,the year of his mother's death. He was one of the Hingham
soldiers impressed into the country 8 service at the outbr-ak of King
Phillp 8 War,in 1675. 1In 1667,he was elected a selectman of Hingﬁam.
He died Oct.18,1690.

Thqmgs Wildexr,who married Yartha ........ ,wag of Shiplake,

Sulham Estate in Berks Co.,

Oxon,England. He wag proprietor of the

England. Hie oldest son,John,who diq not come 4 America th
ywas € suc-
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cesgori$o his father s estates. Thomas was the son of John and Alice

(Keats)Wilder . His grandparents were John and Agnes Wilder,ané his

great-grandfather was Nicholas Wilder,who,on April 15,1497,in the 12th yes

of the reign of nenry VII.was given a landed estate with a coat of arms.
References: Wilder‘uenealogy;Dennysville Centennial Memorial;

Higkham,Mass.,Vital Records; Massachusetts Soldiers
and Sailors of the Revolutionary War, 1
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